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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc. is filing this registration statement on Form 10 (the “Registration Statement”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”), on a voluntary basis in order to permit it to file an election to be regulated as a business development
company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), and to provide current public information to the investment community and to
comply with applicable requirements in the event of future quotation or listing of its securities on a national securities exchange or other public trading market.

In this Registration Statement, except where the context suggests otherwise:
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¢ the terms “we,” “us
Inc.;

our,” and “Company,” refer to Nuveen Churchill BDC

» the term “the Adviser” refers to Nuveen Churchill Advisors LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, which will serve as our investment
adviser;

e the term “Churchill” refers to Churchill Asset Management LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, which will serve as our investment sub-
adviser;

» the term “Advisers” refers to the Adviser and Churchill together;
and

e the term “Administrator” refers to Nuveen Churchill Administration LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, which will serve as our
administrator.

The Company is an emerging growth company as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”) and the Company will take advantage of
the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”).

This Registration Statement registers shares of the Company’s common stock (“Shares,” each a “Share”), par value $0.01 per share under the 1934 Act;
however:

¢ the Company’s Shares may not be transferred without the written consent of the
Adyviser;

¢ the Shares are not currently listed on an exchange, and it is uncertain whether they will be listed or whether a secondary market will develop;
and

e an investment in the Company may not be suitable for investors who may need the money they invest in a particular time
frame.

Once this Registration Statement has been deemed effective, we will be subject to the requirements of Section 13(a) of the 1934 Act, including the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, which will require us, among other things, to file annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K,
and we will be required to comply with all other obligations of the 1934 Act applicable to issuers filing registration statements pursuant to Section 12(g) of the 1934 Act. We
also will be subject to the proxy rules in Section 14 of the 1934 Act, and our directors, officers, and principal shareholders will be subject to the reporting requirements of
Sections 13 and 16 of the 1934 Act. The SEC maintains an internet website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains the reports mentioned in this section.

Prior to the effectiveness of this Registration Statement, we intend to file an election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. Upon filing of such election, we will
become subject to the 1940 Act requirements applicable to BDCs.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Registration Statement contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Such statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors and undue reliance should not be placed thereon. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather are based on current
expectations, estimates and projections about the Company, our current and prospective portfolio investments, our industry, our beliefs and opinions, and our assumptions.
Words such as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “will,” “may,” “continue,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “targets,” “projects,”
“outlook,” “potential,” “predicts” and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict and could cause actual

results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements, including without limitation:
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« our future  operating
results;

e our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio
companies;

« the dependence of our future success on the general economy and its impact on the industries in which we
invest;

» the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidity of credit markets on our
business;

* the impact of increased
competition;

» the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on our business and our portfolio
companies;

* our contractual arrangements and relationships with third
parties;

» the valuation of our investments in portfolio companies, particularly those having no liquid trading
market;

e actual and potential conflicts of interest with the Advisers, and/or their respective
affiliates;

e the ability of our portfolio companies to achieve their
objectives;

* the use of borrowed money to finance a portion of our
investments;

e the adequacy of our financing sources and working
capital;

e the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operations of our portfolio
companies;

« the ability of Churchill to locate suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our
investments;

« the ability of the Advisers or their respective affiliates to attract and retain highly talented
professionals;

*  our ability to qualify and maintain our qualification as a regulated investment company (a “RIC”) and as a BDC;
and

* the impact of future legislation and regulation on our business and our portfolio
companies.

Although we believe that the assumptions on which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of those assumptions could prove to be inaccurate,
and as a result, the forward-looking statements based on those assumptions also could be inaccurate. In light of these and other uncertainties, the inclusion of a projection or
forward-looking statement in this Registration Statement should not be regarded as a representation by us that our plans and objectives will be achieved. These risks and
uncertainties include those described or identified in the section entitled



“Item 1A. Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Registration Statement. These forward-looking statements apply only as of the date of this Registration Statement. We do not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements or any other information contained herein, except as required by applicable law. The safe harbor

provisions of Section 21E of the 1934 Act, which preclude civil liability for certain forward-looking statements, do not apply to the forward-looking statements in this
Registration Statement because we are an investment company.



ITEM 1. BUSINESS

(a) General Development of
Business

We were formed on March 13, 2018, as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware and we converted into a corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of Maryland on June 18, 2019. We are a specialty finance company organized to maximize the total return to our shareholders primarily in the form of
current income achieved through investing in senior secured loans to private equity-owned U.S. middle market companies.

We intend to elect to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act and intend to elect to be treated, and intend to qualify annually thereafter, as a RIC under Subchapter M
of the Code for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a BDC and a RIC, we will be required to comply with certain regulatory requirements. See “Item I(c). Description of
Business — Regulation as a Business Development Company” and “Item 1(c). Description of Business — Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations”’

Immediately prior to the Company’s election to be regulated as a BDC, the Company, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, intends to acquire all of the equity
interests (the “Acquisition”) of Churchill Middle Market CLO V Ltd., a Cayman exempt limited company managed as a collateralized loan obligation (“CLO”) vehicle that is
currently managed by Nuveen Alternatives Advisors LLC and sub-advised by Churchill (the “SPV”). The Company expects the investment portfolio of the SPV to consist
primarily of Senior Loans (the “Legacy Portfolio”). In connection with the Acquisition, the Company expects its board of directors (the “Board”) to review and approve the
fair value of the Legacy Portfolio based on management’s internal analysis and assurance from a third-party valuation firm. The SPV currently has a revolving credit facility
with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which the Company expects to retain after the Acquisition. See “Item 2. — Financial Information — Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 13. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Prior to the Acquisition, 100% of the preference shares issued by the SPV (which preference shares represent the economic residual interest in the SPV) were held by the
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America, the ultimate parent of the Advisers (“TIAA”). In connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, and prior to
our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, the Company expects to issue Shares to TIAA in exchange for all of the outstanding preference shares of the SPV,
as a result of which the SPV will become our wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary.

Subsequent to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, we expect to conduct a private offering of our common stock to “accredited investors” as defined
in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated under the 1933 Act in reliance on exemptions from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act (the “Private Offering”). Each
investor will purchase Shares pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into with us. See “ltem 1(c). Description of Business — The Private Offering”

Each of the Advisers is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware, is an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”), and is an indirect, majority- or wholly-owned subsidiary of Nuveen, LLC (“Nuveen”). Nuveen is the
investment management arm of TIAA, a life insurance company founded in 1918 by the Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching and the companion
organization of College Retirement Equities Fund. Nuveen markets a wide range of specialized investment solutions that provide investors access to the capabilities of
Nuveen’s investment management affiliates.

(c) Description of
Business

The Company — Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc.

Our investment objective is to provide investors with attractive risk-adjusted returns primarily through current income by investing in senior secured loans to private
equity-owned U.S. middle market companies. We will focus on privately originated debt to performing U.S. middle market companies, with a portfolio expected to comprise
primarily of first-lien senior secured debt and unitranche loans (other than last-out positions in unitranche loans) (collectively



“Senior Loans”). We will also opportunistically invest in junior capital opportunities (second-lien loans, subordinated debt, last-out positions in unitranche loans and equity-
related securities) (collectively “Junior Capital Investments”). Senior Loans typically pay interest at rates which are determined periodically on the basis of a floating base
lending rate, primarily the London-Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus a premium. “Unitranche” loans are those Senior Loans that typically have a first lien on all assets
of the borrower but provide leverage levels comparable to a combination of first-lien and second-lien or subordinated loans. Junior Capital Investments will include cash
paying subordinated debt (including fixed-rate subordinated loans, which may have a portion of payment-in-kind (“PIK”) income, and floating-rate second-lien term loans),
subordinated PIK notes (with no current cash payments) and/or equity securities (with no current cash payments). The investments acquired by us are collectively referred to
as “Portfolio Investments.” “Portfolio Company” means, as the context requires, (i) an entity in which a Portfolio Investment is made or (ii) an entity that is the direct owner
of assets securing (directly or indirectly) a Portfolio Investment.

We will not limit ourselves to any particular industry or geographic area when investing in qualifying assets (as defined in Section 55(a) of the 1940 Act and discussed in
“— Regulation as a Business Development Company” below), which we expect to constitute at least 70% of our total assets.

The Investment Adviser — Nuveen Churchill Advisors LL.C

Nuveen Churchill Advisors LLC, a newly organized Delaware limited liability company, will serve as the investment adviser to the Company pursuant to an investment
advisory agreement (the “Investment Advisory Agreement”), subject to approval by the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”). The Adviser will be responsible for the
overall management of the Company’s activities pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, subject to approval by the Board.

The Adviser will delegate substantially all of its day-to-day portfolio-management obligations as set forth in the Investment Advisory Agreement to Churchill pursuant to
a sub-advisory agreement (the “Sub-Advisory Agreement” and, together with the Investment Advisory Agreement, the “Advisory Agreements”). The Adviser will have
general oversight over the investment process on behalf of the Company and will manage the capital structure of the Company, including, but not limited to, asset and liability
management. The Adviser will also have ultimate responsibility for the Company’s performance under the terms of the Investment Advisory Agreement.

The Investment Sub-Adviser — Churchill Asset Management LLC

Churchill will serve as a sub-adviser to the Company pursuant to the Sub-Advisory Agreement. In addition to serving as a sub-adviser to the Company, Churchill
manages other middle-market investment strategies that seek competitive risk-adjusted yields and returns, raising assets from third-party institutional investors and the TIAA
general account.

Churchill currently manages separate accounts, CLOs and private funds investing in private middle-market leveraged loans and related strategies. The investment advice
that Churchill provides through the Senior Loan Investment Team is limited primarily to investments in first lien secured and unitranche loans made principally to private U.S.
middle market companies whose typical profile is consistent with below investment grade debt ratings categories and that are, in most cases, controlled by private equity
investment firms. As of June 30, 2019, the team of Churchill investment professionals dedicated to Senior Loan investment opportunities (the “Senior Loan Investment
Team”) has funded and/or committed to fund $6.8 billion of Senior Loan investments across its investment platform. The investment advice that Churchill provides through
teams of investment professionals dedicated to Junior Capital investment opportunities (the “Junior Capital Investment Team” and, together with the Senior Loan Investment
Team, the “Investment Teams”) is limited primarily to investments in private equity, equity co-investments and similar equity-related securities, subordinated debt and second
lien loans, in each case made principally in respect of the U.S. middle market. As of June 30, 2019, the Junior Capital Investment Team has funded $2.7 billion of Junior
Capital Investments.

Churchill will provide investment advisory and management services to the Company. Under the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement, Churchill will: (i) identify,
evaluate and negotiate the structure of investments (including performing due diligence on prospective portfolio companies); (ii) close and monitor investments; and
(iii) determine



the securities and other assets to be purchased, retained or sold. Subject to Board approval, the Adviser and Churchill will enter into the Sub-Advisory Agreement, the terms of
which the parties expect will provide Churchill with broad delegated authority to oversee the Company’s portfolio.

Joint Investment Committee

All investment decisions for the Company will require the unanimous approval of the members of a joint investment committee (the “Joint Investment Committee”)
comprised of senior investment personnel of both Investment Teams. The initial members of the Joint Investment Committee are Ken Kencel, Jason Strife and Randy
Schwimmer. The Joint Investment Committee will also be advised by the investment committees of the Senior Loan Investment Team (the “Senior Loan Investment
Committee”) and the Junior Capital Investment Team (the “Junior Capital Investment Committee™), respectively. The Senior Loan Investment Committee is currently
comprised of Ken Kencel, Randy Schwimmer, George Kurteson, Shai Vichness, Chris Cox and Mat Linett. The Junior Capital Investment Committee is currently comprised
of Ken Kencel, Jason Strife, Derek Fricke and Anne Philpott.

Ken Kencel, President and Chief Executive Officer, Churchill

Kenneth J. Kencel serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and as President and Chief Executive Officer of Churchill. Throughout his over 30-
year career, Mr. Kencel has accrued a broad range of experience in leading middle market financing businesses. Previously, he was President and a Director of Carlyle GMS
Finance (Carlyle’s publicly traded business development company); founded and was President and CEO of Churchill Financial; and served as Head of Leveraged Finance for
Royal Bank of Canada as well as Head of Indosuez Capital—a leading middle market merchant banking and asset management business. Mr. Kencel also helped to found
high yield finance businesses at both Chase Securities (now JP Morgan) and SBC Warburg (now UBS).

Mr. Kencel serves on the Pension Investment Advisory Committee for the Archdiocese of New York. He is on the Board of Trustees at Canisius High School and is also a
member of the Finance and Investment Committees. Mr. Kencel is a guest lecturer at Boston University Questrom School of Business and a former member of the Board of
Advisors and Adjunct Professor at the McDonough School of Business at Georgetown University. He earned his B.S. in Business Administration, magna cum laude, from
Georgetown University and his J.D. from Northwestern University School of Law.

Randy Schwimmer, Senior Managing Director, Head of Origination & Capital Markets, Churchill

Durant D. (“Randy”) Schwimmer supervises origination and capital markets for Churchill’s Senior Loan Investment Team. He is widely credited with developing loan
syndications for middle market companies. Mr. Schwimmer brings 30 years of experience in middle market finance to Churchill, having served as a Senior Managing Director
and Head of Capital Markets & Indirect Origination at Churchill Financial. In those positions, he took responsibility for all loan capital markets activities and for managing
the firm’s indirect origination platform. Before then, Mr. Schwimmer worked as Managing Director and Head of Leveraged Finance Syndication for BNP Paribas. He spent
15 years at JP Morgan Chase in Corporate Banking and Loan Syndications, where he originated, structured, and syndicated leveraged loans. Mr. Schwimmer graduated from
Trinity College with a cum laude B.A. He earned his M.A. from the University of Chicago.

Jason Strife, Senior Managing Director and Head of Private Equity & Junior Capital, Churchill

Jason Strife is responsible for strategy, sourcing, executing and portfolio construction for Churchill’s Junior Capital Investment mandates, including private equity fund
commitments. Mr. Strife has approximately 15 years of alternative asset investment experience, having worked in several capacities executing junior debt and equity
investments in middle market companies. Prior to joining Nuveen, Mr. Strife was a Principal at Bison Capital, a Los Angeles-based private equity firm focused on structured
junior capital investments in lower middle market companies. Prior to Bison Capital, Mr. Strife was an investment professional at Weston Presidio, a Boston and San
Francisco-based middle market private equity firm focused on growth capital and leveraged buyout investing. Prior to Weston Presidio, Mr. Strife worked in the Mergers and
Acquisitions group of Wachovia Securities, executing primarily sell side transactions on behalf of



private equity clients. Mr. Strife graduated with a Master’s degree in Accounting and a Bachelor degree in Analytical Finance from Wake Forest University.

Mr. Strife is currently an officer of Nuveen Alternatives Advisors LLC, and will become Senior Managing Director and Head of Private Equity & Junior Capital at
Churchill on or about January 1, 2020.

Senior Loan Investment Committee Members Not on the Joint Investment Committee
George Kurteson, Senior Managing Director, Head of Portfolio Management, Churchill

Overseeing portfolio management at Churchill, George F. Kurteson brings over 30 years of middle market leveraged lending experience to the company. Prior to co-
founding Churchill, Mr. Kurteson served as a managing director of Carlyle GMS Finance and as a founder and senior managing director, head of origination and underwriting
at Churchill Financial. At GE/Antares (a division of GE Capital), he held the position of senior managing director, head of the New York office, and he acted as a member of
the GE/Antares leadership team. Mr. Kurteson has also served in senior positions at Heller Financial, Fleet Bank, and Maryland National Bank. Mr. Kurteson received his
MBA and his B.S. (honors) in business and economics from Lehigh University. Mr. Kurteson has announced his plan to retire in 2020, at which point Mathew Linett will
assume the joint role of Head of Underwriting and Portfolio Management for the Senior Loan Investment Team.

Shai Vichness, Senior Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer, Churchill

Shai Vichness serves as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company and as a Senior Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of Churchill.
Previously, as Managing Director and Head of Senior Leveraged Lending for Nuveen, Mr. Vichness was responsible for initiating Nuveen’s investment program in middle
market senior loans and was directly involved in the launch of Churchill as an affiliate in 2015. Since the launch of Churchill, Mr. Vichness has been a member of Churchill’s
Investment Committee and has been actively engaged in the management of the firm, including the development of its infrastructure and operations. Mr. Vichness joined
Nuveen in 2005 and has spent his entire career in the private debt markets, with a significant amount of time spent in the firm’s workout and restructuring department. Mr.
Vichness holds a BBA from Baruch College, CUNY and is a CFA charterholder.

Christopher Cox, Senior Managing Director & Chief Risk Officer, Churchill

Christopher Cox serves as Chief Risk Officer of Churchill. Previously, he was a principal of Carlyle GMS Finance and was a managing director and Chief Risk Officer
for Churchill Financial, which he joined in 2006. In this role, he was responsible for overseeing the company’s risk management infrastructure, including all risk management
process and policies. Prior to this, Mr. Cox was a senior vice president at GE Commercial Finance (a division of GE Capital) from 1997 to 2006, where he held various risk
management roles within the corporate lending group, focusing on middle market transactions. Mr. Cox also worked at Gibbs & Cox, Inc. in New York, NY. Mr. Cox received
his B.S. in civil engineering from Tufts University and his MBA from Fordham University.

Mathew Linett, Senior Managing Director, Head of Underwriting, Churchill

Mathew Linett serves as Senior Managing Director, Head of Underwriting for the Senior Loan Investment Team of Churchill. He brings approximately 25 years of
leveraged finance experience with a strong emphasis on the middle market. He has invested at all levels of the capital structure including senior secured loans, public and
private mezzanine debt, as well as private equity co-investments. In addition, he has significant distressed debt experience both as an investor in the secondary market as well
as through direct workouts of middle market loans. Previously, he was a Credit Portfolio Manager at Loeb King Capital and Havens Advisors, a Senior Vice President at
Jefferies & Co., as well as a Vice President at Indosuez Capital, a middle market merchant banking and asset management business. Mr. Linett and Mr. Kencel worked closely
together at Indosuez Capital. Mr. Linett graduated cum laude from the University of Pennsylvania’s dual degree program with a B.S. in economics from the Wharton School
and a B.A. (honors) in international relations from the College of Arts and Sciences.



Junior Loan Investment Committee Members Not on the Joint Investment Committee
Derek Fricke, Senior Director, Private Equity & Junior Capital, Churchill

Derek Fricke is a Senior Director on the Private Equity and Junior Capital team for Churchill. He is a member of the Junior Capital Investment Team. Mr. Fricke is
actively involved in sourcing and executing Junior Capital Investments, as well as investments in private equity funds. Prior to joining the organization, Derek spent several
years as an investment team member at Chrysalis Ventures, a $400 million venture capital firm investing in early stage healthcare services, business services, and technology
companies. Previously, Derek was an active mezzanine capital and equity investor in middle-market media and technology companies as an investment team member at BIA
Digital Partners. Derek began his career in investment banking in Atlanta, GA with SunTrust Robinson Humphrey. Derek is a graduate of the University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill, where he earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the Kenan-Flagler School of Business.

Mr. Fricke is currently an officer of Nuveen Alternatives Advisors LLC, and will become a Senior Director of Private Equity & Junior Capital at Churchill on or about
January 1, 2020.

Anne Philpott, Senior Director, Private Equity & Junior Capital, Churchill

Anne Philpott is a Senior Director on the Private Equity and Junior Capital team for Churchill. She is a member of the Junior Capital Investment Team. Ms. Philpott is
actively involved in sourcing and executing investments in Junior Capital Investments, as well as investments in private equity funds. Prior to her current position, Ms.
Philpott worked in TIAA’s Private Debt Placements group focused on investment grade debt originations and underwriting. Anne holds a B.S. in Economics from the
University of Pennsylvania. She is a CFA charter holder and a member of the CFA Institute.

Ms. Philpott is currently an officer of Nuveen Alternatives Advisors LLC, and will become a Senior Director of Private Equity & Junior Capital at Churchill on or about
January 1, 2020.

Other Senior Investment Professionals of Churchill
David Heilbrunn, Senior Managing Director, Head of Product Development & Capital Raising, Churchill

Senior Managing Director David A. Heilbrunn leads product development & capital raising for Churchill, focusing on strategic initiatives, structuring new products and
developing important institutional client relationships. He is also responsible for optimizing the firm’s various financing arrangements and supervises Churchill’s CLO
platform. Prior to joining in 2017, Mr. Heilbrunn held senior roles at several firms, including managing director of Fifth Street Asset Management; managing director of The
Carlyle Group; senior managing director and Head of Corporate Strategy & Development for Churchill Financial, and managing director and CDO Group Head for Bear
Stearns & Co. and JPMorgan. Mr. Heilbrunn received an M.B.A., with Distinction, from the Ross School of Business at the University of Michigan and a B.S. in accounting,
magna cum laude, from The State University of New York at Albany in 1987.

Investment Advisory Agreement

The description below of the Investment Advisory Agreement is only a summary and is not necessarily complete. The description set forth below is qualified in its entirety
by reference to the Investment Advisory Agreement filed as an exhibit to this Registration Statement.

The Adviser will be responsible for the overall management of the Company’s activities pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement.

The Adviser will delegate substantially all of its day-to-day portfolio-management obligations as set forth in the Investment Advisory Agreement to Churchill pursuant to
the Sub-Advisory Agreement. The Adviser will have general



oversight over the investment process on behalf of the Company. The Adviser will also have ultimate responsibility for the Company’s performance under the terms of the
Advisory Agreement.

Base Management Fee

The Company will pay a management fee (the “Management Fee”) to the Adviser. The Management Fee is payable quarterly in arrears and will commence with the
initial drawdown from investors in the Private Offering. Prior to any listing of Shares on a national securities exchange (the “Exchange Listing”), or any listing of its securities
on any other public trading market, the base management fee will be calculated at an annual rate of 0.75% of average total assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents and
undrawn capital commitments and including assets financed using leverage (“Average Total Assets”), at the end of the two most recently completed calendar quarters.
Following an Exchange Listing, the base management fee will be calculated at an annual rate of 1.25% of Average Total Assets.

The Adviser will retain a portion of the management fee. The remaining amount will be paid by the Adviser to Churchill as compensation for services provided by
Churchill pursuant to the Sub-Advisory Agreement.

Incentive Fee
Prior to an Exchange Listing, or any listing of its securities on any other public trading market, the Company will pay no incentive fee to the Adviser.

Following an Exchange Listing, the Company will pay an incentive fee to the Adviser that will consist of two parts. The first part will be calculated and payable quarterly
in arrears based on the Company’s pre-incentive fee net investment income for the preceding quarter. Pre-incentive fee net investment income means interest income,
dividend income and any other income (including any other fees such as commitment, origination, structuring, diligence and consulting fees or other fees that the Company
receives from portfolio companies but excluding fees for providing managerial assistance) accrued during the calendar quarter, minus operating expenses for the quarter
(including the base management fee, any expenses payable under the administration agreement (the “Administration Agreement”) with Nuveen Churchill Administration
LLC, our administrator (the “Administrator”), and any interest expense and dividends paid on any outstanding preferred shares, but excluding the incentive fee). Pre-incentive
fee net investment income will include, in the case of investments with a deferred interest feature such as market discount, debt instruments with PIK interest, preferred shares
with PIK dividends and zero-coupon securities, accrued income that the Company has not yet received in cash. The Adviser is not under any obligation to reimburse the
Company for any part of the incentive fee it received that was based on accrued interest that the Company never actually receives.

Pre-incentive fee net investment income will not include any realized capital gains, realized capital losses or unrealized capital gains or losses. If any distributions from
portfolio companies are characterized as a return of capital, such returns of capital would affect the capital gains incentive fee to the extent a gain or loss is realized. Because
of the structure of the incentive fee, it is possible that the Company may pay an incentive fee in a quarter where it incurs a loss. For example, if the Company receives pre-
incentive fee net investment income in excess of the hurdle rate (as defined below) for a quarter, the Company will pay the applicable incentive fee even if it has incurred a
loss in that quarter due to realized and unrealized capital losses.

Pre-incentive fee net investment income, expressed as a rate of return on the value of our net assets (defined as total assets less indebtedness and before taking into
account any incentive fees payable during the period) at the end of the immediately preceding calendar quarter, is compared to a fixed “hurdle rate” of 1.50% per quarter (6%
annually). If market interest rates rise, the Company may be able to invest in debt instruments that provide for a higher return, which would increase pre-incentive fee net
investment income and make it easier for the Adviser to surpass the fixed hurdle rate and receive an incentive fee based on such net investment income.



Following an Exchange Listing, the Company will pay the Adviser with respect to pre-incentive fee net investment income in each calendar quarter as follows:

* no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in which the pre-incentive fee net investment income does not exceed the hurdle rate of 1.50% (6%
annually);

*  100% of the Company’s pre-incentive fee net investment income with respect to that portion of such pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the
hurdle rate but is less than 1.76% in any calendar quarter following an Exchange Listing. The Company refers to this portion of the Company’s pre-incentive fee net
investment income as the “catch-up” provision. Following an Exchange Listing, the catch-up is meant to provide the Adviser with 15% of the pre-incentive fee net
investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apply if this net investment income exceeds 1.76% in any calendar quarter; and

*  Following an Exchange Listing, 15% of the amount of pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds 1.76% in any calendar
quarter.

These calculations will be appropriately prorated for any period of less than three months and adjusted for any share issuances or repurchases during the current quarter.

Following an Exchange Listing, the second part of the incentive fee is a capital gains incentive fee that will be determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each
fiscal year (or upon termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement, as of the termination date), and equals 15.0% of the Company’s realized capital gains as of the end of
the fiscal year following an Exchange Listing. In determining the capital gains incentive fee payable to the Adviser, the Company will calculate the cumulative aggregate
realized capital gains and cumulative aggregate realized capital losses since inception, and the aggregate unrealized capital depreciation as of the date of the calculation, as
applicable, with respect to each of the investments in the Company’s portfolio. For this purpose, cumulative aggregate realized capital gains, if any, equals the sum of the
differences between the net sales price of each investment, when sold, and the amortized cost of such investment. Cumulative aggregate realized capital losses equals the sum
of the amounts by which the net sales price of each investment, when sold, is less than the amortized cost of such investment since inception. Aggregate unrealized capital
depreciation equals the sum of the difference, if negative, between the valuation of each investment as of the applicable calculation date and the amortized cost of such
investment. At the end of the applicable year, the amount of capital gains that will serve as the basis for the calculation of the capital gains incentive fee equals the cumulative
aggregate realized capital gains less cumulative aggregate realized capital losses, less aggregate unrealized capital depreciation, with respect to our portfolio of investments. If
this number is positive at the end of such year, then the capital gains incentive fee for such year equals 15.0% of such amount following an Exchange Listing, as applicable,
less the aggregate amount of any capital gains incentive fees paid in respect of the Company’s portfolio in all prior years following an Exchange Listing

The Adviser will retain a portion of the incentive fee. The remaining amount will be paid by the Adviser to Churchill as compensation for services provided by Churchill
pursuant to the Sub-Advisory Agreement.

Payment of Our Expenses

The expenses incurred by each Adviser and/or its affiliates, when and to the extent engaged in providing investment advisory and management services to the Company,
and the compensation and routine overhead expenses of personnel allocable to these services to the Company, will be provided and paid for by each Adviser, as applicable,
and not by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, unless the Adviser or the Sub-Adviser elects to bear or waive any of the following costs, the Company will bear all other
out-of-pocket costs and expenses of our operations and transactions, including, without limitation: (i) fees and costs incurred in organizing the Company; (ii) fees and costs
associated with calculating net asset value (“NAV”) (including the cost and expenses of any independent valuation firm); (iii) expenses, including travel, entertainment,
lodging and meal expenses, incurred by the Advisers, or members of their investment teams, or payable to third parties, in evaluating, developing, negotiating, structuring and
performing due diligence on prospective portfolio companies, including such expenses related to potential investments that were not consummated, and, if necessary,
enforcing the Company’s rights; (iv) fees and expenses incurred by the Advisers (and their affiliates)
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or Administrator or its affiliates) payable to third parties, including agents, consultants or other advisors, in monitoring financial and legal affairs for the Company and in
conducting research and due diligence on prospective investments and equity sponsors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring the Company’s investments and
monitoring investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis; (v) any and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the incurrence of leverage and
indebtedness of the Company, including borrowings, dollar rolls, reverse purchase agreements, credit facilities, securitizations, margin financing and derivatives and swaps,
and including any principal or interest on the Company’s borrowings and indebtedness (including, without limitation, any fees, costs, and expenses incurred in obtaining lines
of credit, loan commitments, and letters of credit for the account of the Company and in making, carrying, funding and/or otherwise resolving investment guarantees); (vi)
fees and costs associated with offerings, sales, and repurchases of the Company’s Shares and other securities; (vii) fees and expenses payable under any underwriting, dealer
manager or placement agent agreements, if any; (viii) investment advisory fees payable under the Investment Advisory Agreement; (ix) administration fees and expenses, if
any, payable under the Administration Agreement (including payments under the Administration Agreement between us and the Administrator, based upon our allocable
portion of the Administrator’s overhead in performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement, including rent and the allocable portion of the cost of the
Company’s chief financial officer and chief compliance officer, and their respective staffs); (x) costs incurred in connection with investor relations, board of directors
relations, and with preparing for and effectuating the listing of Shares on any securities exchange; (xi) any applicable administrative agent fees or loan arranging fees incurred
with respect to Portfolio Investments by the Advisers, the Administrator or an affiliate thereof; (xii) any and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in implementing or
maintaining third-party or proprietary software tools, programs or other technology for the benefit of the Company (including, without limitation, any and all fees, costs and
expenses of any investment, books and records, portfolio compliance and reporting systems, general ledger or portfolio accounting systems and similar systems and services,
including, without limitation, consultant, software licensing, data management and recovery services fees and expenses); (xiii) transfer agent, dividend agent and custodial
fees and expenses; (xiv) federal and state registration fees; (xv) all costs of registration and listing the Shares on any securities exchange; (xvi) federal, state and local taxes;
(xvii) independent directors’ fees and expenses, including reasonable travel, entertainment, lodging and meal expenses, and any legal counsel or other advisors retained by, or
at the discretion or for the benefit of, the independent directors; (xviii) costs of preparing and filing reports or other documents required by the SEC or other regulators, and all
fees, costs and expenses related to compliance-related matters (such as developing and implementing specific policies and procedures in order to comply with certain
regulatory requirements) and regulatory filings related to the Company’s activities and/or other regulatory filings, notices or disclosures of the Advisers and their respective
affiliates relating to the Company and its activities; (xix) costs of any reports, proxy statements or other notices to shareholders, including printing costs; (xx) fidelity bond,
directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance, and any other insurance premiums; (xxi) direct costs and expenses of administration, including printing,
mailing, long distance telephone, copying, secretarial and other staff, independent auditors, tax preparers and outside legal costs; (xxii) proxy voting expenses; (xxiii) all
expenses relating to payments of dividends or interest or distributions in cash or any other form made or caused to be made by the Board of Directors to or on account of
holders of the securities of the Company, including in connection with any dividend reinvestment plan or direct stock purchase plan; (xxiv) costs incurred in connection with
the formation or maintenance of entities or vehicles to hold the Company’s assets for tax or other purposes; (xxv) the allocated costs incurred by the Advisers and/or the
Administrator in providing managerial assistance to those portfolio companies that request it; (xxvi) allocable fees and expenses associated with marketing efforts on behalf of
the Company; (xxvii) all fees, costs and expenses of any litigation involving the Company or its portfolio companies and the amount of any judgments or settlements paid in
connection therewith, directors and officers, liability or other insurance (including costs of title insurance) and indemnification (including advancement of any fees, costs or
expenses to persons entitled to indemnification) or extraordinary expense or liability relating to Company’s affairs; (xxviii) fees, costs and expenses of winding up and
liquidating the Company’s assets; and (xxix) all other expenses incurred by the Company, the Advisers or the Administrator in connection with administering the Company’s
business.

Duration and Termination
Unless terminated earlier as described below, the Investment Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for a period of two years from the date it first becomes effective

and will remain in effect from year-to-year thereafter if approved annually by the Board or by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of our outstanding voting
securities, and, in each case, a majority of our directors who are not “interested persons”.
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The Investment Advisory Agreement will automatically terminate in the event of its assignment, as defined in the 1940 Act, by the Adviser and may be terminated by
either party without penalty upon not less than 60 days’ written notice to the other. The holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities may also terminate the
Investment Advisory Agreement without penalty.

See “Risk Factors and Potential Conflicts of Interest — Risks Relating to Our Business and Structure — We depend upon the senior management of Churchill for our
success, and upon its access to the investment professionals of Nuveen and its affiliates” and “— Each Adviser can resign on 60 days’ notice, and we may not be able to find a
suitable replacement within that time, resulting in a disruption in our operations that could adversely affect our financial condition, business and results of operations.”

Indemnification

The Investment Advisory Agreement will provide that the Company will indemnify the Adviser and its affiliates (each, an “Adviser Indemnitee”) against any liabilities
relating to the offering of its Shares or its business, operation, administration or termination, if the Adviser Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner it believed to be in,
or not opposed to, the Company’s interest and except to the extent arising out of the Adviser Indemnitee’s gross negligence, fraud or knowing and willful misconduct. The
Company may pay the expenses incurred by the Adviser Indemnitee in defending an actual or threatened civil or criminal action in advance of the final disposition of such
action, provided the Adviser Indemnitee agrees to repay those expenses if found by adjudication not to be entitled to indemnification.

Board Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement

The Board, including a majority of independent directors, will hold an in-person meeting to consider and approve the Investment Advisory Agreement and related
matters. The Board will be provided the information it required to consider the Investment Advisory Agreement, including: (a) the nature, quality and extent of the advisory
and other services to be provided to us by the Adviser; (b) comparative data with respect to advisory fees or similar expenses paid by other BDCs with similar investment
objectives; (c) our projected operating expenses and expense ratio compared to BDCs with similar investment objectives; (d) any existing and potential sources of indirect
income to the Adviser from its relationship with us and the profitability of that relationship; (e¢) information about the services to be performed and the personnel performing
such services under the Investment Advisory Agreement; (f) the organizational capability and financial condition of Adviser and its affiliates; and (g) the possibility of
obtaining similar services from other third-party service providers or through an internally managed structure.

The Board will oversee and monitor the investment performance of the Adviser. Beginning with the second anniversary of the effective date of the Investment Advisory
Agreement, the Board, including a majority of independent directors, will annually review and consider whether to re-approve the Investment Advisory Agreement, including
the compensation we pay to the Adviser.

Sub-Advisory Agreement

The description below of the Sub-Advisory Agreement is only a summary and is not necessarily complete. The description set forth below is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the Sub-Advisory Agreement filed as an exhibit to this Registration Statement.

The Adviser will delegate substantially all of its day-to-day portfolio-management obligations as set forth in the Investment Advisory Agreement to Churchill pursuant to
the Sub-Advisory Agreement. Subject to Board approval, the Adviser and Churchill will enter into the Sub-Advisory Agreement, the terms of which the parties expect will
provide Churchill with broad delegated authority to oversee the Company’s portfolio.

Under the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement, Churchill will, among other things: (i) identify, evaluate and negotiate the structure of investments (including
performing due diligence on prospective portfolio companies); (ii) close and monitor investments; and (iii) determine the securities and other assets to be purchased, retained
or sold.



Duration and Termination

Unless terminated earlier as described below, the Sub-Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for a period of two years from the date it first becomes effective and will
remain in effect from year-to-year thereafter if approved annually by the Board or by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities, and,
in each case, a majority of our directors who are not “interested persons”.

The Sub-Advisory Agreement will automatically terminate in the event of its assignment, as defined in the 1940 Act, by the Sub-Adviser and may be terminated by either
party without penalty upon not less than 60 days’ written notice to the other. The holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities may also terminate the Sub-
Advisory Agreement without penalty.

See “Risk Factors and Potential Conflicts of Interest — Risks Relating to Our Business and Structure — We depend upon the senior management of Churchill for our
success, and upon its access to the investment professionals of Nuveen and its affiliates” and “— Each Adviser can resign on 60 days’ notice, and we may not be able to find a
suitable replacement within that time, resulting in a disruption in our operations that could adversely affect our financial condition, business and results of operations.”

Indemnification

The Sub-Advisory Agreement will provide that the Company will indemnify Churchill and its affiliates (each, a “Churchill Indemnitee™) against any liabilities relating to
the offering of its Shares or its business, operation, administration or termination, if the Churchill Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner it believed to be in, or not
opposed to, the Company’s interest and except to the extent arising out of the Churchill Indemnitee’s gross negligence, fraud or knowing and willful misconduct. The
Company may pay the expenses incurred by the Churchill Indemnitee in defending an actual or threatened civil or criminal action in advance of the final disposition of such
action, provided the Churchill Indemnitee agrees to repay those expenses if found by adjudication not to be entitled to indemnification.

Board Approval of the Sub-Advisory Agreement

The Board, including a majority of the independent directors, will hold an in-person meeting to consider and approve the Sub-Advisory Agreement and related matters.
The Board will be provided the information it required to consider the Sub-Advisory Agreement, including: (a) the nature, quality and extent of the advisory and other services
to be provided to us by the Sub-Adviser; (b) comparative data with respect to advisory fees or similar expenses paid by other BDCs with similar investment objectives; (c) our
projected operating expenses and expense ratio compared to BDCs with similar investment objectives; (d) any existing and potential sources of indirect income to the Sub-
Adviser from its relationship with us and the profitability of that relationship; (e) information about the services to be performed and the personnel performing such services
under the Sub-Advisory Agreement; (f) the organizational capability and financial condition of Churchill and its affiliates; and (g) the possibility of obtaining similar services
from other third-party service providers or through an internally managed structure.

The Board will oversee and monitor the investment performance of the Sub-Adviser. Beginning with the second anniversary of the effective date of the Sub-Advisory
Agreement, the Board, including a majority of independent directors, will annually review and consider whether to re-approve the Sub-Advisory Agreement, including the
compensation paid to the Sub-Adviser.

Expense Support Agreement

The description below of the Expense Support Agreement is only a summary and is not necessarily complete. The description set forth below is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the Expense Support Agreement filed as an exhibit to this Registration Statement.

The Company intends to enter into an expense support and conditional reimbursement agreement (the “Expense Support Agreement”) with the Adviser. The Expense
Support Agreement provides that, at such times as the Adviser



determines, the Adviser may pay certain expenses of the Company, provided that no portion of the payment will be used to pay any interest expense of the Company (each, an
“Expense Payment”). Such Expense Payment will be made in any combination of cash or other immediately available funds no later than forty-five days after a written
commitment from the Adviser to pay such expense, and/or by an offset against amounts due from the Company to the Adviser or its affiliates. Following any calendar quarter
in which Available Operating Funds (as defined in the Expense Support Agreement) exceed the cumulative distributions accrued to our Shareholders based on distributions
declared with respect to record dates occurring in such calendar quarter (such amount referred to as the “Excess Operating Funds”), the Company shall pay such Excess
Operating Funds, or a portion thereof (each, a “Reimbursement Payment”), to the Adviser until such time as all Expense Payments made by the Adviser to the Company
within three years prior to the last business day of such calendar quarter have been reimbursed. The amount of the Reimbursement Payment for any calendar quarter shall
equal the lesser of (i) the Excess Operating Funds in such quarter and (ii) the aggregate amount of all Expense Payments made by the Adviser to the Company within three
years prior to the last business day of such calendar quarter that have not been previously reimbursed by the Company to the Adviser. The Expense Support Agreement
provides additional restrictions on the amount of each Reimbursement Payment for any calendar quarter and no Reimbursement Payment will be made for any quarter if: (1)
the Effective Rate of Distributions Per Share (as defined in the Expense Support Agreement) declared by the Company at the time of such Reimbursement Payment is less
than the Effective Rate of Distributions Per Share at the time the Expense Payment was made to which such Reimbursement Payment relates, or (2) the Company’s Operating
Expense Ratio (as defined in the Expense Support Agreement) at the time of such Reimbursement Payment is greater than the Operating Expense Ratio at the time the
Expense Payment was made to which such Reimbursement Payment relates. The Adviser may waive its right to receive all or a portion of any Reimbursement Payment in any
particular calendar quarter, so that such Reimbursement Payment may be reimbursable in a future calendar quarter.

Administration Agreement

The description below of the Administration Agreement is only a summary and is not necessarily complete. The description set forth below is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the Administration Agreement filed as an exhibit to this Registration Statement.

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Administrator will furnish the Company with office facilities and equipment and provide clerical, bookkeeping,
recordkeeping and other administrative services at such facilities. The Administrator will perform, or oversee the performance of, our required administrative services, which
include, among other things, assisting the Company with the preparation of the financial records that the Company is required to maintain and with the preparation of reports
to shareholders and reports filed with the SEC. The Administrator will also assist the Company in determining and publishing our NAV, overseeing the preparation and filing
of tax returns, printing and disseminating reports to shareholders and generally overseeing the payment of expenses and the performance of administrative and professional
services rendered to the Company by others. At the request of the Adviser or the Sub-Adviser, the Administrator will also provide (or cause to be provided) managerial
assistance on the Company’s behalf to those portfolio companies that have accepted the Company’s offer to provide such assistance. U.S. Bank, National Association (“U.S.
Bank”), will provide the Company with certain fund administration and bookkeeping services pursuant to a sub-administration agreement with the Administrator.

Employees

We do not have any internal employees. We depend on the investment expertise, skill and network of business contacts of the senior investment professionals of
Churchill, who evaluate, negotiate, structure, execute, monitor and service our investments in accordance with the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement.

Investment Strategy

The Company’s investment objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns primarily through current income by investing in senior secured loans to private
equity-owned U.S. middle market companies.



The Company will invest primarily in first-lien senior secured debt and unitranche loans (other than last-out positions in unitranche loans) to middle market companies
that require capital for growth, acquisitions, recapitalizations, refinancings and leveraged buyouts. Senior Loans typically pay interest at rates which are determined
periodically on the basis of a floating base lending rate, primarily LIBOR, plus a premium. “Unitranche” loans are those Senior Loans that typically have a first lien on all
assets of the borrower but provide leverage levels comparable to a combination of first-lien and second-lien or subordinated loans. The Company will also opportunistically
make direct investments in second-lien loans, subordinated debt, last-out positions in unitranche loans and equity-related securities. Such Junior Capital Investments will
include cash paying subordinated debt (including fixed-rate subordinated loans, which may have a portion of PIK income, and floating-rate second-lien term loans),
subordinated PIK notes (with no current cash payments) and/or equity securities (with no current cash payments).

The Company expects to target an investment portfolio comprising, directly or indirectly, at least 80% and up to 100% of its investment portfolio in Senior Loans. The
Company expects to invest on an opportunistic basis up to 20% of its investment portfolio in Junior Capital Investments. However, the make-up of the Company’s investment
portfolio may vary over time due to factors such as market conditions and the availability of attractive investment opportunities. For example, it is possible that the Company
will from time to time maintain a portfolio exclusively comprising Senior Loans, such as during its initial ramp-up phase.

The Company will seek to partner with strong management teams executing long-term growth strategies. Target Portfolio Companies will typically exhibit some or all of
the following characteristics:

»  carnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) of $10 million - $100 million, with a focus on EBITDA of $10 million - $50
million;

« significant cash equity capitalization supported by a private equity
Sponsor;

* sustainable leading positions in their respective
markets;

» scalable revenues and operating cash
flow;

«  experienced management teams with successful track records and the ability to successfully operate in a leveraged environment and to adapt to challenging economic
or business conditions;

e strong recurring revenue or “re-occurring” revenue, with good visibility of backlog and
revenue;

«  stable, predictable cash flows with low technology and market
risks;

» diversified product offering and customer

base;
«  low capital expenditure
requirements;

e a North American base of
operations;

*  strong customer
relationships;

*  products, services or distribution channels having distinctive competitive advantages;
and

e defensible niche strategy or other barriers to
entry.

While Churchill believes that the criteria listed above are important in identifying and investing in prospective Portfolio Companies, not all of these criteria necessarily
will be met by each prospective Portfolio Company. In addition, subject to its Charter and Bylaws, the Company may change its investment objective and/or investment
criteria over time without notice to or consent from shareholders.



Summary of Key Attributes of Middle Market Senior Loans
Churchill believes that investments in Senior Loans of middle market corporate borrowers have attributes that offer attractive risk/reward characteristics, including:

*  compelling economic and market fundamentals that support the need for Senior Loan capital and improved competitive dynamics for non-traditional
lenders;

*  “buy-and-hold” investments that emphasize a high-touch relationship alignment with sponsors and the lending
club;

» floating-rate loans that provide protection against increases in interest rates, with middle market loans typically containing floating rate floors in the event a lower-
interest rate environment returns;

* small lending groups to facilitate more effective restructurings when
necessary;

*  higher proportion of sponsor equity (typically 40% or greater) and increased likelihood of sponsors supporting troubled situations with additional equity as compared
to the broadly syndicated loan market;

* attractive yield premiums relative to public market credit and broadly syndicated debt
strategies;

* strong return potential relative to risk
profile;

»  significant downside protection due to capital structure seniority, tighter structure than publicly traded loan investments in the broadly syndicated market (in the form
of covenants), private equity sponsor backing, and deep due diligence; and

»  favorable supply/demand dynamic with strong sponsor relationships and high-hold capacities providing steady flow of attractive opportunities for well-positioned
lenders.

In assessing the middle market, Churchill anticipates that traditional middle market Senior Loan opportunities will typically, but not exclusively, have the following
characteristics relative to lower middle market opportunities and more broadly syndicated loans:

Lower Traditional Upper Broadly
middle market middle market middle market syndicated market
Size of senior loan facility $5 to $50 million $50 to $250 million >$250 to $500 million >$500 million

$1 to $10 million $10 to $50 million $50 to $100 million $50+ million
103 2106 10 to 50 20 to 100+
500 to 700 bps/100 400 to 600 bps/100 300 to 400 bps/100 300 to 400 bps/100
Traditional covenants Traditional covenants Covenant-lite Covenant-lite
Direct transactional driven Direct relationship driven Buyer model Buyer model
Iliquid Relatively illiquid Relatively illiquid Liquid

Extensive primary and secondary
due diligence

Level of borrow Primary due diligence Less due diligence Less due diligence

16




Summary of Key Attributes of Sponsored Middle Market Junior Capital Investments

Churchill believes that Junior Capital Investments in private-equity sponsored middle-market companies have attributes that offer attractive risk/reward characteristics,
including:

*  Dbetter economics, lower leverage levels and structural advantages versus larger syndicated market
alternatives;

*  better stability and capital preservation characteristics than smaller, more speculative investments akin to venture capital and/or growth
equity;

*  ‘buy-and-hold’ investments which emphasize a high-touch relationship with sponsors, with whom the Junior Capital Investment Team has deep relationships
through limited partner commitments and advisory board seats;

« compelling economic and market fundamentals that support the need for Junior Capital Investments and offer improved competitive dynamics for non-traditional
lenders;

«  diversity across cash pay investments, higher yielding non-cash pay securities, and preferred and common equity, ultimately blending to an attractive internal rate of
return (“IRR”) profile;

* in the case of Junior Capital Investments other than common equity, significant downside protection due to contractual returns, maintenance covenants, seniority to
equity, support from well capitalized private-equity sponsors, and excellent transparency/understanding of company performance through thorough due diligence
and significant information rights; and

*  substantial information advantage versus syndicated/upper market given board observer rights and accompanying sponsor
access.

Overview of Market Opportunity

Churchill believes that the U.S. middle market is an attractive target market, in terms of its size, investment opportunities and the trends supporting private equity
ownership and BDC investment within the space. Churchill believes that middle market companies, roughly defined as those with $10 million to $100 million of EBITDA, are
scaled to a sufficient size to enable durable business models and strong management teams but are still small enough to offer substantial prospects for growth and operational
improvement. Additionally, many middle market companies reside beneath the size threshold of larger, more traditional lenders, offering less competitively pursued
investment opportunities. Further, the significant private equity capital committed to the market makes it possible for an established, experienced capital provider to construct
a high-quality middle market portfolio, producing a potentially attractive risk-adjusted return. Additionally, the BDC leverage limit was legally changed in March 2018 to
allow BDCs to employ leverage of up to two times debt to equity, up from one, making the vehicle more attractive to a conservative, senior lender such as Churchill.

If it were a standalone economy, the U.S. middle market would be the third largest in the world based on measures of gross domestic product, and Churchill believes it
presents a very large and growing investment opportunity. Historically, it is a sector of the U.S. economy that had been served by commercial banks and other traditional
lenders. However, over the past 20 years, other capital providers such as other BDCs, specialty finance companies, structured-credit vehicles (such as CLOs) and private
investment funds have invested more actively in the middle market. Since the global credit crisis of 2008-2009, Churchill believes that increased capital requirements and
regulatory burdens have led to further improved competitive dynamics for these non-traditional lenders. Large banks are constrained by regulatory reforms such as the Basel
III international regulations developed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. As a result,
many large banks have shifted their focus more to broadly syndicated and more liquid deals, while also providing fee-based services that require less capital.
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Further, Churchill believes that the demand for Senior Loans by middle market companies is favorable to capital providers such as the Company. As of the end of
September 2018, private equity firms had $790 billion in uninvested private equity capital available for investment. Private equity firms will be highly motivated to deploy
these funds before the end of their investment periods, typically three to five years. At a typical capitalization of 40% or greater equity, this translates into over $1.1 trillion in
new middle market loan demand over the next several years as the private equity capital is deployed. In addition, Churchill anticipates that there is a significant need for
refinancing of existing loans made to middle market companies. The $587 billion of expected middle market loans maturing between 2019 and 2024 should provide a steady
flow of attractive opportunities for well-positioned lenders with deep and long-standing sponsor and market relationships. Combined with the private equity dry powder, this
translates into a total projected financing need of over $1.7 trillion over the next five years. Churchill expects that these factors should result in a very favorable environment
for lenders with a steady source of capital, and an experienced investment team that can correctly assess the opportunity set.

Additional dynamics that impact the current opportunity in Senior Loans include the creep of broadly syndicated loan terms into the upper middle market, the
consolidation of lending groups by sponsors, the resulting rise of importance of scale, and the volume of fundraising for direct lending strategies. Over the past few years,
more borrower-friendly terms typically found in the larger liquid credit markets have drifted down into the upper middle market (such as increased leverage, aggressive pro
forma EBITDA adjustments and “covenant-lite” structures), driving Churchill’s opportunity set towards traditional middle market borrowers with EBITDA between $10 and
$50 million. The changing dynamics of sponsor financing have generally enhanced the opportunities available to the Senior Loan Investment Team. Middle market private
equity sponsors have been consolidating their preferred lender groups, with club executions the norm in the traditional middle market. The sponsors are increasingly seeking
to partner with lenders of scale that have balance sheet strength, surety of execution and longstanding reputations and who can lead or be meaningful participants in the loans
to their portfolio companies. Finally, recognizing that middle-market companies have not had the same access to senior loan capital as larger, more liquid borrowers has led to
meaningful fundraising for private credit. However, Churchill believes that managers that focus on the unique niche of well-structured, conservatively leveraged loans to
traditional middle market businesses owned by private equity sponsors have attracted less capital than competing strategies and continue to offer a compelling investment
opportunity. Churchill believes the Company will be well-positioned due to Churchill’s strong sourcing capabilities, conservative focus and the Senior Loan Investment
Team’s ability to act as an arranger with a larger hold position in middle market Senior Loan club deals.

Churchill also believes that Junior Capital Investments are particularly well positioned within middle market buyout capital structures as valuations paid by sponsors for
assets continue to rise. Sponsors must use innovative financing solutions above and beyond traditional senior loans in order to appropriately size equity checks and achieve
desired returns. The Company provides a comprehensive set of customized capital solutions which can be tailored by the Junior Capital Investment Team according to the
needs and preferences of any middle market deal, potentially functioning as a one-stop shop where circumstances permit.

Senior Loans
The Company will primarily invest in Senior Loans. Below is a further description of anticipated Portfolio Investments in Senior Loans.

First Lien Senior Secured Loans. The Company will typically obtain collateral from Portfolio Companies in support of the repayment of such loans. This collateral will
take the form of first-priority liens on substantially all of the borrower’s assets, including the equity interests of its domestic subsidiaries. The Company’s first-lien senior
secured loans may provide for loan amortization in the early years of a loan, with the majority of the amortization deferred until loan maturity, with the expectation, and a
contractual requirement of an excess cash flow sweep, that the borrower will often pre-pay the loan from cash flows in excess of the scheduled amortization. First-lien senior
secured loans generally allow the borrower to make a large lump sum payment of principal at the end of the loan term, and there is a risk of loss if the borrower is unable to
pay the lump sum or refinance the amount owed at maturity.

Unitranche Loans. In connection with Company investments in unitranche loans, it is expected that the Company will obtain security interests in substantially all of the
assets of these Portfolio Companies that will serve as collateral



in support of the repayment of these loans. This collateral will take the form of first-priority liens on substantially all of the borrower’s assets, including the equity interests of
its domestic subsidiaries. Unitranche loans typically provide for loan amortization in the initial years of the facility, with the majority of the amortization deferred until loan
maturity, with a contractual requirement for excess cash flow sweeps which reduce the average life of the loan. Unitranche loans generally allow the borrower to make a large
lump sum payment of principal at the end of the loan term, and there is a risk of loss if the borrower is unable to pay the lump sum or refinance the amount owed at maturity.
Company investments in unitranche loans which constitute Senior Loans may be in participations across the entire loan or through an agreement among lenders in
participations in first-out term loans.

Junior Capital Investments

In addition to making investments in Senior Loans, the Company may invest opportunistically in second-lien loans, subordinated loans, “last-out” positions of unitranche
loans and equity-related securities made to middle market companies in which the Company may or may not also hold a corresponding Senior Loan investment. Below is a
further description of anticipated Portfolio Investments in Junior Capital Investments.

Second-Lien Loans. 1t is anticipated that, in connection with Company investments in second-lien loans, the Company will obtain security interests in the assets of these
Portfolio Companies that serve as collateral in support of the repayment of such loans. This collateral may take the form of second priority liens on the assets of the Portfolio
Company. The Company also considers a last-out position in a unitranche loan to be similar to a second-lien loan regarding the priority of payment of last-out positions.

Subordinated Loans. 1t is anticipated that, in connection with Company investments in subordinated loans, the Company will structure unsecured subordinated loans that
provide for high fixed interest rates with substantial current interest income and potentially equity participation or warrants that materially enhance the overall return of the
security. The subordinated loans would typically have terms of 6 to 8 years. In some cases, subordinated debt may be collateralized by a subordinated lien on some or all of
the assets of the borrower and may provide for some of the interest payable to be PIK.

Equity Investments. The Company may make equity co-investments alongside private equity sponsors in a limited number of transactions where Churchill believes the
potential returns are attractive. The Company would generally not seek to be the majority or “control” equity investor but would make such investments where Churchill
believes that there is significant potential to enhance the overall yield on the Company’s debt investment in the transaction. An equity investment may be common, preferred,
or holding company preferred. In addition, the Company may acquire equity interests other than at original investment (e.g., in connection with an out-of-court restructuring
or a bankruptcy proceeding related to a Portfolio Investment).

Competitive Advantages

Churchill believes that the foundations of its competitive advantage are its long-standing market presence, ability to invest in size, strong relationships with private equity
firms, sourcing capabilities, and its ability to compete on factors other than pricing. Churchill has built a reputation of professionalism and collaboration that positions it to be
a preferred capital provider for private equity sponsors’ capital needs. Churchill believes that this reputation in the marketplace is built upon several factors: strong
relationships with private equity firms combined with meaningful private equity fund investments; robust origination and underwriting capability that offers creative and
flexible capital solutions; an experienced and deep management team with substantial middle market finance experience; the benefits of alignment with TIAA, its ultimate
parent company and largest client; and a cycle-tested track record.

* Strong relationships with private equity firms combined with meaningful private equity fund
investments

Churchill’s Senior Loan Investment Team is led by the members of the Senior Loan Investment Committee, who average over 25 years of middle market lending

experience. A majority of the Senior Loan Investment Committee have worked together for more than 13 years, focusing exclusively on originating, underwriting and
monitoring middle market senior loans. During this time, the team has developed deep relationships with hundreds of private
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equity sponsors and has become a preferred partner to them. Dedicated origination professionals source deal flow from these long-established sources, allowing Churchill
to review upwards of 500 Senior Loan opportunities per year. The Senior Loan Investment Team’s partnership approach and strong value proposition to private equity
firms, as one of a handful of middle market lenders with the ability to commit up to $150 million per transaction, ensure that Churchill sees the widest possible range of
Senior Loan transactions in the market and can be highly selective with regards to which borrowers it ultimately decides to provide capital.

Churchill’s Junior Capital Investment Team is led by the members of the Junior Capital Investment Committee. This team, acting on behalf of TIAA, has been an active
private equity fund investor since 1998, with what Churchill believes is a blue-chip reputation as a limited partner. Since 2011, the Junior Capital Investment Team has
invested over $5.4 billion of limited partnership commitments with approximately 80 core private equity firms, with advisory board representation in the majority of
relationships. (See “—Investment Process Overview” and “Management”). Churchill believes that the Junior Capital Investment Team’s advisory board representation sets
it apart from smaller investors who do not participate in a meaningful way and places it in an attractive position to generate deal flow across the Churchill platform.

Churchill has existing relationships with over 250 middle market private equity funds and significant advisory board representation, and has been involved in significant
financial activity with (including in some cases investing as a limited partner or similar equity holder of) nearly 100 of the most active middle market private equity firms in
the United States. TIAA and Nuveen have been investors in the private debt and equity markets for almost 50 years and, as of December 31, 2018, Churchill and its private
capital affiliates held a portfolio of over $52 billion in assets that are broadly diversified by industry and region.

* Creative and flexible capital
solutions

Because all transactions are unique and require different capital solutions, Churchill’s ability to offer a variety of capital solutions is both differentiated in the market and
valued by sponsors. For example, the Senior Loan Investment Team has the ability to pivot between traditional first-lien senior secured loans and unitranche loans, while
the Junior Capital Investment Team has the ability to pivot between fixed and floating rate cash pay junior debt securities and provide more bespoke solutions, including
non-cash paying yet contractually-yielding solutions. Both Investment Teams can also offer borrowers delayed draw term loans, further enhancing flexibility. Often,
capital requirements change over the course of a transaction. Having the latitude to pivot across investment solutions without compromising the objective of superior risk-
adjusted returns has enabled Churchill and its affiliates to build market share over time.

* Robust origination and underwriting
platform

Churchill has developed a robust investment process and benefits from a team of professionals that have extensive experience in structuring investments and constructing
middle-market loan and junior capital portfolios (See sections below entitled “—Investment Process Overview” and “Management”). By way of example, the members of
Churchill’s Senior Loan Investment Committee have on average more than 25 years of industry experience and have focused expertise in originating, underwriting, and
monitoring middle market Senior Loan investments. In addition, many of the senior members of the Investment Teams have held senior management and other positions at
a number of leading middle market firms and have existing relationships with many of the active participants in the middle market. As a result, they expect that the
Company will be well positioned to take advantage of the demand for capital in the middle market, particularly from private equity sponsored companies, a market segment
where Churchill has years of investing experience.

In addition, on the basis of the relationships and partnerships that Churchill has established over the years, Churchill believes that it will be able to provide the Company
with a large and diverse pipeline of middle market investment opportunities, thereby allowing it to be highly selective and to maintain underwriting standards. Using a
disciplined approach, the Investment Teams will seek to minimize credit losses through comprehensive due diligence of Portfolio Company fundamentals, terms and
conditions and covenant packages. Similarly, following each middle market investment, it will implement a regimented credit monitoring system that involves daily,
weekly, monthly,
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and quarterly reviews and analysis by the investment professionals, which it believes may enable it to identify problems before it faces difficult liquidity constraints.

*  Experienced and deep
management

Churchill is led by industry veterans who bring an average of over 25 years’ experience in middle market investing. Senior management and the Investment Teams have a
long history of working together focused exclusively on originating, underwriting, and monitoring middle market investments. The predecessor company managed by
Churchill’s senior management team, Churchill Financial, LLC (“Churchill Financial”), was founded in 2006 by current senior management team members Ken Kencel,
George Kurteson, Randy Schwimmer and Christopher Cox (the “Churchill Financial Founders™). The Churchill Financial Founders have together unanimously approved
all of the approximately 570 loans made by Churchill Financial and Churchill since 2006. This core management team has been strengthened with the additions of David
Heilbrunn, an original Churchill Financial team member, as Head of Product Development and Capital Raising in 2016, Shai Vichness as Chief Financial Officer in 2018
(solidifying the significant role he had in launching Churchill as a part of TIAA’s asset management division (now doing business as Nuveen) in 2015); and Mat Linett, a
long-time senior investment professional of Churchill Financial and Churchill, as Head of Underwriting in early 2019. The Churchill Financial Founders, together with
Messrs. Vichness and Linett, now comprise the Senior Loan Investment Committee.

Additionally, in April 2019, Nuveen announced that its Private Equity and Junior Capital team would become part of Churchill, expected in early 2020, combining
Nuveen’s middle market private-capital capabilities in one team to achieve increased collaboration and scale. As a result of this combination, Churchill will provide
investors with a focused strategy for capitalizing on opportunities in the middle market, extensive market knowledge and a differentiated platform. The team will include
over 55 professionals in New York, Charlotte and Chicago investing over $4 billion annually and overseeing more than $18 billion in committed capital across multiple
investment vehicles and including nearly 100 limited partner commitments. In connection with this combination, Jason Strife will join the Churchill Financial Founders and
Messrs. Heilbrunn, Vichness and Linett as part of the Churchill Management Team. The Junior Capital Investment Team brings rich experience in middle market private
equity, mezzanine lending, investment banking, and capital markets roles, with several team members having experience investing across the entire balance sheet. Since
2011, Jason Strife has held a leadership role on the Junior Capital Investment Team, responsible for investing nearly $10 billion across private equity limited partnership
funds, equity co-investments and junior debt lending.

* Benefits of alignment with Nuveen and
TIAA

Churchill benefits substantially from the scale and resources of its parent company, Nuveen, and Nuveen’s parent company, TIAA. Nuveen is a $1,027 billion asset
manager with $69 billion of assets invested in private capital, in each case as of September 30, 2019. Churchill leverages experience and functionality across Nuveen’s
platform, allowing it to focus on its middle market investment expertise. Additionally, Churchill invests in Senior Loans on behalf of TIAA’s general account side-by-side
with third party investors in nearly all of its transactions, with TIAA representing approximately 45% of the Senior Loan Investment Team’s invested capital (excluding the
investments made by the Churchill Financial Founders for Churchill Financial prior to the establishment of Churchill as an affiliate of TIAA and Nuveen). The Junior
Capital Investment Team also invests on behalf of the TIAA general account, with TIAA constituting a majority of its invested capital. This alignment ensures that
Churchill consistently thinks and acts like a long-term investor in the asset class.

* Cycle tested track
record

Churchill is differentiated by the success and length of its track record. The Senior Loan Investment Team has a demonstrated ability to effectively invest across market
cycles, with the Churchill Financial Founders having underwritten $9.7 billion of senior loans in approximately 570 transactions from 2006 through 2018. Over that 13-
year period, the team, joined by the other members of the Senior Loan Investment Committee while at Churchill, have achieved a cumulative loss rate of approximately 1%
for the senior loan strategy, and a weighted average asset-level portfolio yield, net of losses, of 6.6% since inception, with the lowest annual asset-level yield of 4.2%
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in 2009. The Junior Capital Investment Team has achieved a realized gross IRR of 15.6% (inclusive of equity co-investment strips) since it began investing.
Investment Process Overview
Churchill views the investment process employed on behalf of the Company as consisting of four distinct phases described below:

Origination. Each Investment Team will source middle market investment opportunities through the investment team’s network of relationships with private equity firms
and other middle market lenders. Each Investment Team believes that the strength and breadth of its relationships with numerous middle market private equity funds and
overall deal sourcing capabilities should enable them to maximize deal flow, support a highly selective investment process, and afford the Company the opportunity to
establish favorable portfolio diversification.

Credit Evaluation. Each Investment Team intends to utilize a systematic, consistent approach to credit evaluation, with a particular focus on an acceptable level of debt
repayment and deleveraging under a “base case” set of projections (the “Base Case”), which reflects a more conservative estimate than the set of projections provided by a
prospective Portfolio Company, which the Investment Teams refer to as the “Management Case.” The key criteria that each Investment Team intends to consider include (i)
strong and resilient underlying business fundamentals, (ii) a substantial equity cushion in the form of capital ranking junior in right of payment to the Company’s investment
and (iii) a conclusion that the overall Base Case and in most cases a “downside case” allows for adequate debt repayment and deleveraging. In evaluating a particular
company, each Investment Team will put more emphasis on credit considerations (such as (i) debt repayment and deleveraging under a Base Case set of projections, (ii) the
ability of the company to maintain a modest liquidity cushion under a Base Case set of projections, and (iii) the ability of the company to service its fixed charge obligations
under a Base Case set of projections) than on profit potential and loan pricing. Each Investment Team’s due diligence process for middle market credits will typically entail:

* a thorough review of historical and pro forma financial
information;

*  meetings and discussions with
management;

e a review of loan documents and material
contracts;

e third-party “quality of earnings” accounting due
diligence;

* when appropriate, background checks on key
managers;

e third-party research relating to the company’s business, industry, markets, products and services, customers and
competitors;

* the commission of third-party analyses when
appropriate;

*  sensitivity of Management Case projections;
and

e various cash flow
analyses.
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Each Investment Team’s deal screening, underwriting, approval and closing processes are substantially similar. The following chart summarizes the investment process
of the Investment Teams:

Deepdicdiyeac: Investment Commitiee

Transaction screening approval and closing .

® Assess each potential financing opportunity based on defined ~ ®  Understand sponsor investment thesis and risk considerations ®  Prepare Investment Approval Memorandum for review and

screening criteria, or “credit box”, with a commitment to approval by the applicable Investment Committee and by the
provide initial feedback in a timely manner ® Assess qualitative factors, e.g., management meetings and site Joint Investment Committee of the Company
visit
* Evaluate worthwhile transactions through staged “Early Read” * Review and negotiate transaction documents
or “Matrix” process which employs proprietary screening and ~ ®  Evaluate industry diligence to determine market position and
underwriting templates competitive advantage * Closing Memo documents any changes from approval or

provides results of any additional post-approval due diligence
® Selected transactions clear the “Early Read” or “Matrix” process ® Complete proprietary ESG checklist and determine suitability
and enter due diligence ¢ Closing Memo required for funding
® Review quarterly earnings, industry reports, and consultant
reports

® Produce financial models including management projections,
proprietary base case projections, and break-even analysis

Execution. In executing transactions, each Investment Team will apply what it believes is a thorough, consistent approach to credit evaluation, and maintain discipline
with respect to credit, pricing and structure to ensure the ultimate success of the financing. Upon completion of due diligence, the investment professionals working on a
proposed Portfolio Investment will deliver a memorandum to the relevant Investment Committee(s). Once an investment has been approved by a unanimous vote of such
Investment Committee, the memorandum will be delivered to the Joint Investment Committee of the Company. Once an investment has been approved by a unanimous vote
of the Joint Investment Committee, it will move through a series of steps, including an in-depth review of documentation by deal teams, negotiation of final documentation,
including resolution of business points and the execution of original documents held in escrow. Upon completion of final documentation, a Portfolio Investment is funded
after execution of a final closing memorandum.

Monitoring. The Investment Teams view active portfolio monitoring as a vital part of the investment process and further consider regular dialogue with company
management and sponsors as well as detailed, internally generated monitoring reports to be critical to monitoring performance. The Investment Teams will implement a
monitoring template designed to reasonably ensure compliance with these standards. This template will be used as a tool by the Investment Teams to assess investment
performance relative to plan.

As part of the monitoring process, the Senior Loan Investment Team has developed risk policies pursuant to which it will regularly assess the risk profile of each of the
Company’s Senior Loan investments, and in a similar manner the Junior Capital Investment Team will regularly assess the risk profile for each of the Company’s Junior

Capital Investments. The Investment Teams will rate each investment based on the following categories, which are referred to as “Internal Risk Ratings”:

Internal Risk Ratings Definitions

Rating Definition

1 Performing — Superior: Borrower is performing significantly above Management Case.
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Performing — High: Borrower is performing at or near the Management Case (i.e., in a range slightly below to slightly above).
Performing — Low Risk: Borrower is operating well ahead of the Base Case to slightly below the Management Case.

Performing — Stable Risk: Borrower is operating at or near the Base Case (i.e., in a range slightly below to slightly above). This is the initial rating
assigned to all new borrowers.

Performing — Management Notice: Borrower is operating below the Base Case. Adverse trends in business conditions and/or industry outlook are viewed
as temporary. There is no immediate risk of payment default and only a low to moderate risk of covenant default.

Watch List — Low Maintenance: Borrower is operating below the Base Case, with declining margin of protection. Adverse trends in business conditions
and/or industry outlook are viewed as probably lasting for more than a year. Payment default is still considered unlikely, but there is a moderate to high risk
of covenant default.

Watch List — Medium Maintenance: Borrower is operating well below the Base Case, but has adequate liquidity. Adverse trends are more pronounced
than in Internal Risk Rating 6 above. There is a high risk of covenant default, or it may have already occurred. Payments are current, although subject to
greater uncertainty, and there is a moderate to high risk of payment default.

Watch List — High Maintenance: Borrower is operating well below the Base Case. Liquidity may be strained. Covenant default is imminent or may have
occurred. Payments are current, but there is a high risk of payment default. Negotiations to restructure or refinance debt on normal terms may have begun.
Further significant deterioration appears unlikely and no loss of principal is currently anticipated.

Watch List — Possible Loss: At the current level of operations and financial condition, the borrower does not have the ability to service and ultimately
repay or refinance all outstanding debt on current terms. Liquidity is strained. Payment default may have occurred or is very likely in the short term unless
creditors grant some relief. Loss of principal is possible.

Watch List — Probable Loss: At the current level of operations and financial condition, the borrower does not have the ability to service and ultimately

repay or refinance all outstanding debt on current terms. Payment default is very likely or may have already occurred. Liquidity is extremely limited. The
prospects for improvement in the borrower’s situation are sufficiently negative that loss of some or all principal is probable.
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The Investment Teams will monitor and, when appropriate, change the investment ratings assigned to each investment in the Company’s portfolio. Each Investment Team
will review the investment ratings in connection with monthly and quarterly portfolio reviews. In addition, the Investment Teams employ what they believe is a proactive
monitoring approach as illustrated in the chart below:

Weekly Joint Investment Team pipeline Monthly meetings to discuss Management * Senior management review of portfolio level + Amendments and waivers negotiated,
meeting Notice and Watchlist Investments metrics and trends approved, documented, and closed by deal
. . . . . . . . team
» Investment Team meeting as required « Evaluate internal risk rating » Deals covered in portfolio review depend on

Revi . b Jindustri CSRs and/or Portfolio Review T ) internal risk rating with downgraded Senior ~ + Conduct calls with agent, sponsor, and
eview news stories on borrowers/industries s and/or Portfolio Review Templates Loan investments and all Junior Capital borrower as needed

and market data via news wires and email updated monthly or quarterly following Investments reviewed each quarter

alerts review of financials « Junior Capital Investment Team attends

A ) al defaul Cond Ivsis of lts. ind » Review quarterly financials and compliance advisory board meetings to the extent they
ssess potential covenant defaults onduct anal y§1s o compgn}_/ results, industry certificates have observation rights

U des/d d £ | risk rati trends, key ratios, and liquidity
pgrades/downgrades o 1nlerna' nisk ratings »  Complete portfolio valuations « Monitor ESG risks, concerns and

evaluated by deal teams and senior opportunities

management as information is learned » Compare financials to prior year, budget, and
the Base Case

» Evaluate cushion to breakeven cash flow and
covenant default levels

» Review and confirmation of internal risk
rating

Valuation of Portfolio Investments and Net Asset Value of Shares

The Board determines the NAV of the Shares quarterly. The NAV per Share is equal to the value of the Company’s total assets minus its liabilities and the liquidation
value of any preferred shares outstanding divided by the total number of Shares outstanding. Additionally, in connection with each offering of Shares, to the extent the
Company does not have shareholder approval to sell below NAV, the Board or an authorized committee thereof will be required to make a good faith determination that the
Company is not selling Shares at a price below the then current NAV of the Shares at the time at which the sale is made.

The Board is responsible for determining the fair value of the portfolio investments for which market prices are not readily available in good faith, and in such other
instances where portfolio investments require a fair value determination. The value of investments for which recent market quotations are readily available will be determined
under procedures established by the Board. Because the Company expects that there typically will not be a readily available market price for its target portfolio investments,
the Company expects that the value of most of its portfolio investments will be their fair value as determined by the Board consistent with a documented valuation policy and
consistently applied valuation process. In making these determinations, the Board will receive input from management, a third-party independent valuation firm and the Audit
Committee.

Competition

The Company’s primary competitors in acquiring credit investments in middle market companies include other BDCs, public and private funds, CLOs, commercial and
investment banks, other middle market asset managers and, to the extent they provide an alternative form of financing, private equity and hedge funds. Many of the
Company’s potential competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than those available to the Company. In
addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments than those of the Company, which could allow them to consider a wider
variety of investments and establish more relationships than those established by the Investment Teams. There cannot be any assurance that the
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competitive pressures faced by the Company will not have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
Managerial Assistance

As a BDC, we generally will offer, and must provide upon request, managerial assistance to our portfolio companies. This assistance could involve, among other things,
monitoring the operations of our portfolio companies, participating in board and management meetings, consulting with and advising officers of portfolio companies and
providing other organizational and financial guidance. We may also receive fees for these services. The Administrator will provide, or arrange for the provision of, such
managerial assistance on our behalf to portfolio companies that request this assistance, subject to reimbursement of any fees or expenses incurred on our behalf by the
Administrator in accordance with our Administration Agreement.

Emerging Growth Company

We are an emerging growth company as defined in the JOBS Act and we are eligible to take advantage of certain specified reduced disclosure and other requirements that
are otherwise generally applicable to public companies that are not “emerging growth companies” including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor
attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”). Although we have not made a determination whether to take advantage
of any or all of these exemptions, we expect to remain an emerging growth company for up to five years following the completion of our initial public offering (“IPO”) or
until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross revenues equals or exceeds $1.07 billion, (ii) December 31 of the fiscal year that we
become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the 1934 Act which would occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates
exceeds $700.0 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter and we have been publicly reporting for at least 12 months or (iii) the
date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the preceding three-year period. In addition, we will take advantage of the
extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the 1933 Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We intend to adopt a dividend reinvestment plan pursuant to which shareholders may elect to have their cash dividends and other distributions automatically reinvested in
additional Shares, rather than receiving cash dividends and other distributions. As a result, if the Board authorizes, and we declare, a dividend or other distribution, then our
shareholders who have opted in to our dividend reinvestment plan will have their dividend or other distribution automatically reinvested in additional Shares rather than
receiving the dividend or other distribution in cash. Any fractional Share otherwise issuable to a participant in the dividend reinvestment plan will instead be paid in cash.

No action will be required on the part of a registered shareholder to receive his, her, or its dividend in cash. A registered shareholder that wishes to participate in the
dividend reinvestment plan must notify U.S. Bank in writing no later than ten days prior to the record date for any dividend or other distribution and such election will remain
in place until the shareholder notifies U.S. Bank otherwise.

The number of Shares to be issued to a shareholder under the dividend reinvestment plan will be determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the dividend or other
distribution payable to such shareholder by the NAV per Share, as of the last day of our fiscal quarter immediately preceding the date such dividend or other distribution was
declared.

There are no brokerage charges or other charges to shareholders who participate in the plan.

The plan is terminable by us upon notice in writing mailed to each shareholder of record at least 30 days prior to any record date for the payment of any dividend or other

distribution by us.
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The Private Offering

Pursuant to the Private Offering, we are offering shares of our common stock to “accredited investors” as defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated under the
1933 Act in reliance on exemptions from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act. There will be no limit on the number of shares or the amount of capital raised in
connection with the Private Offering. Each investor will make a capital commitment to purchase shares of our common stock pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into
with us. At each closing in the Private Offering, investors will be required to purchase additional Shares up to the amount of their respective unfunded capital commitments.
The initial closing of the Private Offering subsequent to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act is expected to occur in the first quarter of 2020 (the “Initial
Closing”). The Company expects to hold additional closings (each a “Subsequent Closing”) for a period of 18 months after the Initial Closing (the “Fundraising Period”). The
Fundraising Period may be extended to 24 months after the Initial Closing in the sole discretion of the Board.

Potential Liquidity Options

Subject to approval by the Board, the Company may seek an Exchange Listing and may complete an IPO in connection with such Exchange Listing. If the Company is
unable to complete an Exchange Listing within five years of the Initial Closing, subject to up to two one-year extensions in the discretion of the Board, the Company will use
commercially reasonable efforts to wind down or liquidate pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Charter and Bylaws.

Regulation as a Business Development Company

The following discussion is a general summary of the material prohibitions and descriptions governing BDCs generally. It does not purport to be a complete description
of all of the laws and regulations affecting BDCs.

Qualifying Assets. Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any asset other than assets of the type listed in Section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, which are referred to as
“qualifying assets,” unless, at the time the acquisition is made, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the company’s total assets. The principal categories of qualifying
assets relevant to the Company’s business are any of the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the issuer of such securities, which issuer (subject to certain limited exceptions) is an
eligible portfolio company, or from any person who is, or has been during the preceding 13 months, an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio company, or from
any other person, subject to such rules as may be prescribed by the SEC. An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 1940 Act as any issuer which:

(a) 1is organized under the laws of, and has its principal place of business in, the United
States;

(b) is not an investment company (other than a small business investment company wholly owned by the BDC) or a company that would be an investment company
but for certain exclusions under the 1940 Act; and

(c) satisfies any of  the
following:

(i) does not have any class of securities that is traded on a national securities
exchange;

(i1) has a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange, but has an aggregate market value of outstanding voting and non-voting common equity of
less than $250 million;

(iii) is controlled by a BDC or a group of companies including a BDC and the BDC has an affiliated person who is a director of the eligible portfolio
company; or
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(iv) is a small and solvent company having total assets of not more than $4 million and capital and surplus of not less than $2
million;

(2) Securities of any eligible portfolio company controlled by the
Company;

(3) Securities purchased in a private transaction from a U.S. issuer that is not an investment company or from an affiliated person of the issuer, or in transactions incident
thereto, if the issuer is in bankruptcy and subject to reorganization or if the issuer, immediately prior to the purchase of its securities was unable to meet its
obligations as they came due without material assistance other than conventional lending or financing arrangements;

(4) Securities of an eligible portfolio company purchased from any person in a private transaction if there is no ready market for such securities and the Company already
owns 60% of the outstanding equity of the eligible portfolio company;

(5) Securities received in exchange for or distributed on or with respect to securities described in (1) through (4) above, or pursuant to the exercise of warrants or rights
relating to such securities; or

(6) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of
investment.

In addition, a BDC must be operated for the purpose of making investments in the types of securities described in (1), (2) or (3) above.

Significant Managerial Assistance. A BDC must have been organized and have its principal place of business in the United States and must be operated for the purpose of
making investments in the types of securities described above. A BDC must also offer to make available to the issuer of the qualifying assets significant managerial
assistance; except that, where the BDC purchases such securities in conjunction with one or more other persons acting together, one of the other persons in the group may
make available such managerial assistance. Making available significant managerial assistance means, among other things, any arrangement whereby the BDC, through its
directors, officers or employees, offers to provide and, if accepted, does so provide, significant guidance and counsel concerning the management, operations or business
objectives and policies of a portfolio company through monitoring of portfolio company operations, selective participation in board and management meetings, consulting
with and advising a portfolio company’s officers or other organizational or financial guidance.

Temporary Investments. Pending investment in other types of qualifying assets, as described above, the Company’s investments can consist of cash, cash equivalents,
U.S. government securities or high quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment, which are referred to herein, collectively, as temporary
investments, so that 70% of the Company’s assets would be qualifying assets.

Issuance of Warrants, Options or Rights.Under the 1940 Act, a BDC is subject to restrictions on the issuance, terms and amount of warrants, options or rights to purchase
shares of stock that it may have outstanding at any time. In particular, the amount of shares that would result from the conversion or exercise of all outstanding warrants,
options or rights to purchase shares cannot exceed 25% of the BDC’s total outstanding shares.

Senior Securities; Asset Coverage Ratio. The Company is generally permitted, under specified conditions, to issue multiple classes of indebtedness and one class of stock
senior to our Shares if our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is at least equal to 150% (i.e. we can borrow $2 for every $1 of equity), if certain requirements are met.
In connection with the organization of the Company, the Board and TIAA (as the Company’s initial shareholder) authorized the Company to adopt the 150% Asset Coverage
Ratio.

In addition, while certain types of senior securities remain outstanding, the Company will be required to make provisions to prohibit the payment of any dividend

distribution to our shareholders or the repurchase of such Shares unless we meet the applicable Asset Coverage Ratio at the time of the dividend distribution or repurchase.
The Company
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will also be permitted to borrow amounts up to 5% of the value of our total assets for temporary or emergency purposes, which borrowings would not be considered senior
securities. The Company’s borrowings, whether for temporary or emergency purposes or otherwise, are subject to the asset coverage requirements of section 61(a)(1) of the
1940 Act.

The Company intends to establish (directly, through the SPV, or through additional special purpose vehicles established as wholly-owned subsidiaries or otherwise) one
or more credit facilities or enter into other financing arrangements to facilitate investments and the timely payment of expenses. The Company cannot assure shareholders that
it will be able to enter into a credit facility. Shareholders will indirectly bear the costs associated with any borrowings under a credit facility or otherwise, including increased
management fees payable to the Adviser as a result of such borrowings. In connection with a credit facility or other borrowings, lenders may require the Company to pledge
assets, commitments and/or drawdowns (and the ability to enforce the payment thereof) and may ask to comply with positive or negative covenants that could have an effect
on the Company’s operations. The Company may pledge up to 100% of its assets and may grant a security interest in all of its assets under the terms of any debt instrument
that we enter into with lenders. In addition, from time to time, the Company’s losses on leveraged investments may result in the liquidation of other investments held by the
Company and may result in additional drawdowns to repay such amounts.

Code of Ethics. The Company and each of the Advisers are each subject to a code of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act and Rule 204A-1 under the
Advisers Act, respectively, that establishes procedures for personal investments and restricts certain personal securities transactions by the Company’s officers and the
Adviser’s employees. The Company has also adopted a separate code of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act that establishes procedures for personal investments
and restricts certain personal securities transactions by the Company’s independent directors. Individuals subject to these codes are permitted to invest in securities for their
personal investment accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Company, so long as such investments are made in accordance with such code’s
requirements. You may obtain copies of these codes of ethics by e-mailing our Adviser at Liz.Perreten@churchillam.com, or by writing to our Adviser at Liz Perreten c¢/o
Churchill Asset Management, 430 Park Avenue, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10022.

Affiliated Transactions. The Company may be prohibited under the 1940 Act from conducting certain transactions with its affiliates without the prior approval of our
independent directors and, in some cases, the prior approval of the SEC.

The Company expects to co-invest on a concurrent basis with other affiliates of the Company and the Advisers, unless doing so would be impermissible under existing
regulatory guidance, applicable regulations, the terms of any exemptive relief granted to the Company and its affiliates, and the allocation procedures of Churchill. On June 7,
2019, the Advisers, the Company, and certain other funds and accounts sponsored or managed by either of the Advisers and/or their affiliates were granted an order (the
“Order”) that permits the Company greater flexibility than the 1940 Act permits to negotiate the terms of co-investments if the Board determines that it would be
advantageous for the Company to co-invest with other accounts sponsored or managed by either of the Advisers or their respective affiliates in a manner consistent with the
Company’s investment objective, positions, policies, strategies and restrictions as well as regulatory requirements and other pertinent factors.

The Company believes that the ability to co-invest with similar investment structures and accounts sponsored or managed by either of the Advisers and their affiliates will
provide additional investment opportunities and the ability to achieve greater diversification. Under the terms of the Order, a majority of the Company’s independent directors
are required to make certain determinations in connection with a co-investment transaction, including that (1) the terms of the proposed transaction are reasonable and fair to
the Company and the Company’s shareholders and do not involve overreaching of the Company or the Company’s shareholders on the part of any person concerned and (2)
the transaction is consistent with the interests of the Company’s shareholders and is consistent with the Company’s investment strategies and policies. The Board will regularly
review the allocation policy of Churchill.

Other. The Company will be periodically examined by the SEC for compliance with the 1940 Act, and be subject to the periodic reporting and related requirements of the
1934 Act.
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The Company is also required to provide and maintain a bond issued by a reputable fidelity insurance company to protect against larceny and embezzlement.
Furthermore, as a BDC, the Company is prohibited from protecting any director or officer against any liability to shareholders arising from willful misfeasance, bad faith,
gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of such person’s office.

The Company is also required to designate a chief compliance officer and to adopt and implement written policies and procedures reasonably designed to prevent
violation of the federal securities laws and to review these policies and procedures annually for their adequacy and the effectiveness of their implementation.

The Company is not permitted to change the nature of its business so as to cease to be, or to withdraw our election as, a BDC unless approved by a majority of its
outstanding voting securities. A majority of the outstanding voting securities of a company is defined under the 1940 Act as the lesser of: (i) 67% or more of such company’s
shares present at a meeting if more than 50% of the outstanding shares of such company are present or represented by proxy, or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares
of such company.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

The Board has delegated the responsibility for voting proxies relating to portfolio securities held by the Company to the Adviser, and has approved the delegation of such
responsibility from the Adviser to Churchill, and has directed Churchill to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities held by the Company consistent with the duties and
procedures set forth in Churchill’s policies and procedures. Churchill may retain one or more vendors to review, monitor and recommend how to vote proxies in a manner
consistent with the duties and procedures set forth in such policies and procedures, to ensure that such proxies are voted on a timely basis and to provide reporting and/or
record retention services in connection with proxy voting for the Company.

Churchill acts as a fiduciary of the Company and must vote proxies in a manner consistent with the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. In discharging this
fiduciary duty, Churchill must maintain and adhere to its policies and procedures for addressing conflicts of interest and must vote proxies in a manner substantially consistent
with its policies, procedures and guidelines, as presented to the Board.

Any actual or potential conflicts of interest between the Company and Churchill arising from the proxy voting process will be addressed by the application of Churchill’s
proxy voting procedures. In the event Churchill determines that a conflict of interest cannot be resolved under Churchill’s proxy voting procedures, Churchill is responsible
for notifying the Board or the Audit Committee of such irreconcilable conflict of interest and assisting the Board or the Audit Committee with any actions it determines are
necessary.

Proxy Policies

Churchill will vote all proxies relating to our portfolio securities in the best interest of our shareholders. Churchill reviews on a case-by-case basis each proposal
submitted to a shareholder vote to determine its impact on the portfolio securities held by the Company. Although Churchill will generally vote against proposals that may
have a negative impact on our clients’ portfolio securities, Churchill may vote for such a proposal if there exist compelling long-term reasons to do so. Churchill will abstain
from voting only in unusual circumstances and where there is a compelling reason to do so. Churchill may retain one or more vendors to review, monitor and recommend how
to vote proxies in a manner consistent with the duties and procedures set forth in its policies and procedures, to ensure that such proxies are voted on a timely basis and to
provide reporting and/or record retention services in connection with proxy voting for the Company.

Churchill’s proxy voting decisions are made by members of the applicable Investment Team who are responsible for monitoring each of our investments.Any actual or
potential conflicts of interest between the Company and Churchill arising from the proxy voting process will be addressed by the application of the Churchill’s proxy voting
procedures. In the event Churchill determines that a conflict of interest cannot be resolved under Churchill’s proxy voting procedures, Churchill will be responsible for
notifying the Board or the audit committee of the Board of such irreconcilable conflict of interest and assisting the Board or the audit committee of the Board with any actions
it determines are necessary.
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Proxy Voting Records

You may obtain information about how Churchill voted proxies by making a written request for proxy voting information to: Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc., 430 Park
Avenue, 14t Floor, New York, NY 10022, Attention: Chief Compliance Officer, Thomas Grenville.

Privacy Policy

The following information is provided to help investors understand what personal information the Company collects, how the Company protects that information and
why, in certain cases, the Company may share information with select other parties.

In order to provide you with individualized service, the Company collects certain nonpublic personal information about you from information you provide on your
subscription agreement or other forms (such as your address and social security number), and information about your account transactions with the Company (such as
purchases of Shares and account balances). The Company may also collect such information through your account inquiries by mail, email, telephone, or web site.

The Company does not disclose any nonpublic personal information about you to anyone, except as permitted by law. Specifically, so that the Company, the Advisers and
their affiliates may continue to offer services that best meet your investing needs, the Company may disclose the information we collect, as described above, to companies
that perform administrative or marketing services on behalf of the Company, such as transfer agents, or printers and mailers that assist us in the distribution of investor
materials. These companies will use this information only for the services for which they have been hired, and are not permitted to use or share this information for any other
purpose.

We will continue to adhere to the privacy policies and practices described in this notice if you no longer hold Shares of the Company.

The Company and the Advisers maintain internal security procedures to restrict access to your personal and account information to those officers and employees who
need to know that information to service your account. The Company maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to protect your nonpublic personal
information.

Reporting Obligations

We will furnish our shareholders with annual reports containing audited financial statements, quarterly reports, and such other periodic reports as we determine to be
appropriate or as may be required by law. We are filing this Registration Statement with the SEC voluntarily with the intention of establishing the Company as a reporting
company under the 1934 Act. Upon the effectiveness of this Registration Statement, we will be required to comply with all periodic reporting, proxy solicitation and other
applicable requirements under the 1934 Act.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion is a general summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to the Company and to an investment in the Shares. This
discussion does not purport to be a complete description of the income tax considerations applicable to such an investment. For example, this discussion does not describe tax
consequences that the Company has assumed to be generally known by investors or certain considerations that may be relevant to certain types of holders subject to special
treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws, including persons who hold the Company’s Shares as part of a straddle or a hedging, integrated or constructive sale transaction,
persons subject to the alternative minimum tax, tax-exempt organizations, insurance companies, brokers or dealers in securities, pension plans and trusts, persons whose
functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, U.S. expatriates, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, personal holding companies, persons who acquire
Shares in connection with the performance of services, and financial institutions. Such persons should consult with their own tax advisers as to the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of an investment in our Shares, which may differ substantially from those
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described herein. This discussion assumes that shareholders hold our Shares as capital assets (within the meaning of the Code).

The discussion is based upon the Code, Treasury regulations, and administrative and judicial interpretations, each as of the date of this Registration Statement and all of
which are subject to change, possibly retroactively, which could affect the continuing validity of this discussion. The Company has not sought and will not seek any ruling
from the Internal Revenue Service regarding any matter discussed herein. Prospective investors should be aware that, although the Company intends to adopt positions it
believes are in accord with current interpretations of the U.S. federal income tax laws, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) may not agree with the tax positions taken by the
Company and that, if challenged by the IRS, the Company’s tax positions might not be sustained by the courts. This summary does not discuss any aspects of U.S. estate,
alternative minimum, or gift tax or foreign, state or local tax. It also does not discuss the special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws that could result if the Company
invested in tax-exempt securities or certain other investment assets.

For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Shareholder” generally is a beneficial owner of the Company’s Shares that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

e a citizen or individual resident of the United
States;

e a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the U.S., any state thereof or the District of
Columbia;

* atrust that is subject to the supervision of a court within the U.S. and the control of one or more U.S. persons or that has a valid election in effect under applicable
U.S. Treasury Regulations to be treated as a U.S. person; or

e an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its
source.

A “Non-U.S. Shareholder” is a beneficial owner of the Company’s Shares that is not a U.S. shareholder or a partnership for U.S. tax purposes.

If a partnership (including an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds Shares, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership will
generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Any partner of a partnership holding Shares should consult its tax advisers with respect to
the purchase, ownership and disposition of such Shares.

Tax matters are very complicated and the tax consequences to an investor of an investment in Shares will depend on the facts of his, her or its particular situation.
Taxation as a RIC

As soon as practicable after the Company’s election to be a BDC, the Company intends to elect to be treated and to qualify each year thereafter as a RIC. As a RIC, the
Company generally will not have to pay corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains that it distributes to shareholders as dividends. To
qualify as a RIC, the Company must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and asset diversification requirements (as described below). In addition, in order to
obtain RIC tax benefits, the Company must distribute to shareholders, for each taxable year, at least 90% of its “investment company taxable income,” which is generally its
ordinary income plus the excess of realized net short-term capital gains over realized net long-term capital losses (the “Annual Distribution Requirement”).

If the Company:

e qualifies as a RIC;
and

«  satisfies the Annual Distribution
Requirement,
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then it will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the portion of income it distributes (or is deemed to distribute) to shareholders. The Company will be subject to
U.S. federal income tax at the regular corporate rates on any income or capital gains not distributed (or deemed distributed) to shareholders.

The Company will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax on certain undistributed income unless it distributes in a timely manner an amount at least
equal to the sum of (i) 98% of net ordinary income for each calendar year, (ii) 98.2% of the amount by which capital gains exceeds capital losses (adjusted for certain ordinary
losses) for the one-year period ending October 31 in that calendar year and (iii) any income and gains recognized, but not distributed, from previous years on which the
Company paid no U.S. federal income tax (the “Excise Tax Avoidance Requirement”). While the Company intends to distribute any income and capital gains in order to
avoid imposition of this 4% U.S. federal excise tax, it may not be successful in avoiding entirely the imposition of this tax. In that case, the Company will be liable for the tax
only on the amount by which it does not meet the foregoing distribution requirement.

In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Company must, among other things:

* continue to qualify as a BDC under the 1940 Act at all times during each taxable
year;

« derive in each taxable year at least 90% of gross income from dividends, interest, payments with respect to loans of certain securities, gains from the sale or other
taxable disposition of stock or other securities or foreign currencies, net income from certain “qualified publicly traded partnerships,” or other income derived with
respect to the business of investing in such stock or securities (the “90% Income Test”); and

» diversify its holdings so that at the end of each quarter of the taxable
year:

o at least 50% of the value of its assets consists of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government securities, securities of other RICs, and other securities if such other
securities of any one issuer do not represent more than 5% of the value of its assets or more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer; and

o no more than 25% of the value of its assets is invested in the (i) securities, other than U.S. government securities or securities of other RICs, of one issuer,
(i1) securities of two or more issuers that are controlled, as determined under applicable Code rules, by us and that are engaged in the same or similar or related
trades or businesses or (iii) securities of one or more “qualified publicly traded partnerships” (the “Diversification Tests”).

The Company may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which it does not receive cash. For example, if the Company holds debt obligations that
are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue discount (such as debt instruments with PIK interest or, in certain cases, increasing interest rates or issued with
warrants), it must include in income each year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardless of whether cash representing such
income is received by the Company in the same taxable year. The Company may also have to include in income other amounts that it has not yet received in cash, such as PIK
interest and deferred loan origination fees that are paid after origination of the loan. Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued will be included in the
Company’s investment company taxable income for the year of accrual, it may be required to make a distribution to shareholders in order to satisfy the Annual Distribution
Requirement, even though it will not have received the corresponding cash amount.

Although the Company does not presently expect to do so, it is authorized to borrow funds, to sell assets and to make taxable distributions of its Shares and debt securities
in order to satisfy distribution requirements. The Company’s ability to dispose of assets to meet distribution requirements may be limited by (i) the illiquid nature of its
portfolio and/or (ii) other requirements relating to its status as a RIC, including the Diversification Tests. If the Company disposes of assets in order to meet the Annual
Distribution Requirement or the Excise Tax Avoidance Requirement, it may make such dispositions at times that, from an investment standpoint, are not advantageous. If the
Company is unable to obtain cash from other sources to satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement, it may fail to qualify for tax treatment as a RIC and become subject to
tax as an ordinary corporation.
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Under the 1940 Act, the Company is not permitted to make distributions to our shareholders while debt obligations and other senior securities are outstanding unless
certain “asset coverage” tests are met. If the Company is prohibited from making distributions, it may fail to qualify for tax treatment as a RIC and become subject to tax as an
ordinary corporation.

Certain of the Company’s investment practices may be subject to special and complex U.S. federal income tax provisions that may, among other things: (i) disallow,
suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions; (ii) convert lower taxed long-term capital gain into higher taxed short-term capital gain or ordinary
income; (iii) convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into a capital loss (the deductibility of which is more limited); (iv) cause the Company to recognize income or gain
without a corresponding receipt of cash; (v) adversely affect the time as to when a purchase or sale of securities is deemed to occur; (vi) adversely alter the characterization of
certain complex financial transactions; and (vii) produce income that will not be qualifying income for purposes of the 90% Income Test described above. The Company will
monitor its transactions and may make certain tax decisions in order to mitigate the potential adverse effect of these provisions.

ARIC is limited in its ability to deduct expenses in excess of its “investment company taxable income” (which is, generally, ordinary income plus the excess of net short-
term capital gains over net long-term capital losses). If Company expenses in a given year exceed investment company taxable income, the Company would experience a net
operating loss for that year. However, a RIC is not permitted to carry forward net operating losses to subsequent years. In addition, expenses can be used only to offset
investment company taxable income, not net capital gain. Due to these limits on the deductibility of expenses, the Company may, for tax purposes, have aggregate taxable
income for several years that it is required to distribute and that is taxable to shareholders even if such income is greater than the aggregate net income it actually earned
during those years. Such required distributions may be made from cash assets or by liquidation of investments, if necessary. The Company may realize gains or losses from
such liquidations. In the event the Company realizes net capital gains from such transactions, a shareholder may receive a larger capital gain distribution than it would have
received in the absence of such transactions.

Failure to Qualify as a RIC

While the Company intends to elect to be treated as a RIC as soon as practicable following its election to be a BDC, the Company anticipates that it may have difficulty
satisfying the Diversification Tests as it ramps up its portfolio. To the extent that the Company has net taxable income prior to qualification as RIC, the Company will be
subject to U.S. federal income tax on such income. The Company would not be able to deduct distributions to shareholders, nor would distributions be required to be made.
Distributions, including distributions of net long-term capital gain, would generally be taxable to shareholders as ordinary dividend income to the extent of the Company’s
current and accumulated earnings and profits. Subject to certain limitations under the Code, corporate shareholders would be eligible to claim a dividend received deduction
with respect to such dividend; non-corporate shareholders would generally be able to treat such dividends as “qualified dividend income,” which is subject to reduced rates of
U.S. federal income tax. Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits would be treated first as a return of capital to the extent of the shareholder’s
tax basis, and any remaining distributions would be treated as a capital gain. In order to qualify as a RIC, in addition to the other requirements discussed above, the Company
would be required to distribute all previously undistributed earnings and profits attributable to any period prior to becoming a RIC by the end of the first year that the
Company intends to qualify as a RIC. To the extent that the Company has any net built-in gains in our assets (i.e., the excess of the aggregate gains, including items of
income, over aggregate losses that would have been realized with respect to such assets if we had been liquidated) as of the beginning of the first year that it qualifies as a
RIC, it would be subject to a corporate-level U.S. federal income tax on such built-in gains if and when recognized over the next five years. Alternatively, the Company may
choose to recognize such built-in gains immediately prior to qualification as a RIC.

If the Company has previously qualified as RIC, but is subsequently unable to qualify for treatment as a RIC, and certain amelioration provisions are not applicable, the
Company would be subject to tax on all of its taxable income (including net capital gains) at regular corporate rates. The Company would not be able to deduct distributions
to shareholders, nor would distributions be required to be made. Distributions, including distributions of net long-term capital gain, would generally be taxable to
shareholders as ordinary dividend income to the extent of the Company’s
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current and accumulated earnings and profits. Subject to certain limitations under the Code, corporate shareholders would be eligible to claim a dividend received deduction
with respect to such dividend; non-corporate shareholders would generally be able to treat such dividends as “qualified dividend income,” which is subject to reduced rates of
U.S. federal income tax. Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits would be treated first as a return of capital to the extent of the shareholder’s
tax basis, and any remaining distributions would be treated as a capital gain. In order to requalify as a RIC, in addition to the other requirements discussed above, the
Company would be required to distribute all previously undistributed earnings attributable to the period it failed to qualify as a RIC by the end of the first year that it intends to
requalify as a RIC. If the Company fails to requalify as a RIC for a period greater than two taxable years, it may be subject to regular corporate tax on any net built-in gains
with respect to certain assets (i.e., the excess of the aggregate gains, including items of income, over aggregate losses that would have been realized with respect to such assets
if the Company had been liquidated) that the Company elects to recognize on requalification or when recognized over the next five years.

The remainder of this discussion assumes that the Company qualifies as a RIC for each taxable year.
Taxation of U.S. Shareholders
Distributions

Distributions by the Company generally are taxable to U.S. Shareholders as ordinary income or capital gains. Distributions of “investment company taxable income”
(which is, generally, net ordinary income plus realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses) will be taxable as ordinary income to
U.S. Shareholders to the extent of current or accumulated earnings and profits, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares. To the extent such distributions paid by
us to shareholders taxed at individual rates are attributable to dividends from U.S. corporations and certain qualified foreign corporations, such distributions (“Qualifying
Dividends”) may be eligible for a current maximum tax rate of 20%. In this regard, it is anticipated that distributions paid by the Company will generally not be attributable to
dividends and, therefore, generally will not qualify for the 20% maximum rate applicable to Qualifying Dividends. Distributions of net capital gains (which are generally our
realized net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital losses) properly reported by the Company as “capital gain dividends” will be taxable to a U.S.
Shareholder as long-term capital gains that are currently taxable at a maximum rate of 20% in the case of sharecholders taxed at individual rates, regardless of the U.S.
Shareholder’s holding period for his, her or its Shares and regardless of whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares. Distributions in excess of earnings and profits
first will reduce a U.S. Shareholder’s adjusted tax basis in such shareholder’s Shares and, after the adjusted basis is reduced to zero, will constitute capital gains to such U.S.
Shareholder.

The Company may retain some or all of our realized net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital losses, but designate the retained net capital
gains and elect to be deemed to have made a distribution of the retained portion to our Shareholders (a “deemed distribution”) under the “designated undistributed capital
gains” rule of the Code. In that case, among other consequences, the Company will pay tax on the retained amount, each U.S. Shareholder will be required to include his, her
or its share of the deemed distribution in income as if it had been actually distributed to the U.S. Shareholder, and the U.S. Shareholder will be entitled to claim a credit equal
to his, her or its allocable share of the tax paid thereon by the Company. Because the Company expects to pay tax on any retained capital gains at its regular corporate tax rate,
and because that rate is in excess of the maximum rate currently payable by U.S. Shareholders taxed at individual rates on long-term capital gains, the amount of tax that
individual U.S. Shareholders will be treated as having paid will exceed the tax they owe on the capital gain distribution and such excess generally may be refunded or claimed
as a credit against the U.S. Shareholder’s other U.S. federal income tax obligations. The amount of the deemed distribution net of such tax will be added to the U.S.
Shareholder’s cost basis for his, her or its Shares. In order to utilize the deemed distribution approach, the Company must provide written notice to shareholders prior to the
expiration of 60 days after the close of the relevant taxable year.

For purposes of determining (i) whether the Annual Distribution Requirement is satisfied for any year and (ii) the amount of capital gain dividends paid for that year, the

Company may, under certain circumstances, elect to treat a dividend that is paid during the following taxable year as if it had been paid during the taxable year in question. If
the Company makes such an election, the U.S. Shareholder will still be treated as receiving the dividend in the taxable
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year in which the distribution is made. However, any dividend declared by the Company in October, November or December of any calendar year, payable to our shareholders
of record on a specified date in such a month and actually paid during January of the following year, will be treated as if it had been received by our U.S. Shareholders on
December 31 of the year in which the dividend was declared.

With respect to the reinvestment of dividends, if a U.S. Shareholder owns Shares registered in its own name, the U.S. Shareholder may have all cash distributions
automatically reinvested in additional Shares if the U.S. Shareholder opts in to the reinvestment of dividends by delivering a written notice to U.S. Bank prior to the record
date of the next dividend or distribution. Any distributions reinvested will nevertheless remain taxable to the U.S. Shareholder. The Shareholder will have an adjusted basis in
the additional Shares purchased through the reinvestment equal to the amount of the reinvested distribution. The additional Shares will have a new holding period commencing
on the day following the day on which the Shares are credited to the U.S. Shareholder’s account.

If an investor purchases Shares shortly before the record date of a distribution, the price of the Shares will include the value of the distribution. However, the shareholder
will be taxed on the distribution as described above, despite the fact that, economically, it may represent a return of his, her or its investment.

The Company (or the applicable withholding agent) will send to each of its U.S. Shareholders, as promptly as possible after the end of each calendar year, a notice
reporting the amounts includible in such U.S. Shareholder’s taxable income for such year as ordinary income and as long-term capital gain. In addition, the federal tax status
of each year’s distributions generally will be reported to the IRS (including the amount of dividends, if any, eligible for the 20% maximum rate). Dividends paid by the
Company generally will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction or the preferential tax rate applicable to Qualifying Dividends because our income generally will
not consist of dividends. Distributions may also be subject to additional state, local and foreign taxes depending on a U.S. Shareholder’s particular situation.

Dispositions

A U.S. Shareholder generally will recognize taxable gain or loss if the U.S. Shareholder sells or otherwise disposes of his, her or its Shares. The amount of gain or loss
will be measured by the difference between such U.S. Shareholder’s adjusted tax basis in Shares sold and the amount of the proceeds received in exchange. Any gain arising
from such sale or disposition generally will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Shareholder has held his, her or its Shares for more than one year.
Otherwise, it will be classified as short-term capital gain or loss. However, any capital loss arising from the sale or disposition of Shares held for six months or less will be
treated as long-term capital loss to the extent of the amount of capital gain dividends received, or undistributed capital gain deemed received, with respect to such Shares. In
addition, all or a portion of any loss recognized upon a disposition of Shares may be disallowed if other Shares are purchased (whether through reinvestment of distributions
or otherwise) within 30 days before or after the disposition.

In general, U.S. Shareholders taxed at individual rates currently are subject to a maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 20% on their recognized net capital gain (i.e.,
the excess of recognized net long-term capital gains over recognized net short-term capital losses, subject to certain adjustments), including any long-term capital gain derived
from an investment in Shares. Such rate is lower than the maximum rate on ordinary income currently payable by such U.S. Shareholders. In addition, individuals with
modified adjusted gross incomes in excess of $200,000 ($250,000 in the case of married individuals filing jointly) and certain estates and trusts are subject to an additional
3.8% tax on their “net investment income,” which generally includes gross income from interest, dividends, annuities, royalties, and rents, and net capital gains (other than
certain amounts earned from trades or businesses), reduced by certain deductions allocable to such income. Corporate U.S. Shareholders currently are subject to U.S. federal
income tax on net capital gain at the maximum 21% rate also applied to ordinary income. Non-corporate U.S. Shareholders with net capital losses for a year (i.e., capital
losses in excess of capital gains) generally may deduct up to $3,000 of such losses against their ordinary income each year. Any net capital losses of a non-corporate U.S.
Shareholder in excess of $3,000 generally may be carried forward and used in subsequent years as provided in the Code. Corporate U.S. Shareholders generally may not
deduct any net capital losses for a year, but may carry back such losses for three years or carry forward such losses for five years.
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Tax Shelter Reporting Regulations

Under applicable Treasury regulations, if a U.S. Shareholder recognizes a loss with respect to Shares of $2 million or more for a non-corporate U.S. Shareholder or $10
million or more for a corporate U.S. Shareholder in any single taxable year (or a $20 million loss over a combination of years), the U.S. Shareholder must file with the IRS a
disclosure statement on Form 8886. Direct U.S. Shareholders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance,
U.S. Shareholders of a RIC are not excepted. Future guidance may extend the current exception from this reporting requirement to U.S. Shareholders of most or all RICs. The
fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer’s treatment of the loss is proper. U.S. Shareholders should
consult their own tax advisers to determine the applicability of these regulations in light of their individual circumstances.

Backup Withholding

The Company may be required to withhold U.S. federal income tax (“backup withholding”) from all distributions to certain U.S. Shareholders (i) who fail to furnish us
with a correct taxpayer identification number or a certificate that such shareholder is exempt from backup withholding or (ii) with respect to whom the IRS notifies us that
such shareholder furnished an incorrect taxpayer identification number or failed to properly report certain interest and dividend income to the IRS and to respond to notices to
that effect. An individual’s taxpayer identification number is his or her social security number. Any amount withheld under backup withholding is allowed as a credit against
the U.S. Shareholder’s federal income tax liability, provided that proper information is provided to the IRS.

Limitation on Deduction for Certain Expenses

For any period that the Company does not qualify as a “publicly offered regulated investment company,” as defined in the Code, the Company’s shareholders will be
taxed as though they received a distribution of some of the Company’s expenses. A “publicly offered regulated investment company” is a RIC whose shares are
(i) continuously offered pursuant to a public offering, (ii) regularly traded on an established securities market or (iii) held by at least 500 persons at all times during the taxable
year. If the Company is not a publicly offered RIC for any period, a non-corporate shareholder’s allocable portion of affected expenses, will be treated as an additional
distribution to the shareholder and will be deductible by such shareholder only to the extent permitted under the limitations described below. In particular, these expenses,
which are “miscellaneous itemized deductions”, are currently not deductible by an individual or other non-corporate taxpayer (and beginning in 2026, are deductible only to
the extent they exceed 2% of such a shareholder’s adjusted gross income, and are not deductible for alternative minimum tax purposes). We anticipate that we will not be a
publicly offered RIC immediately after the Private Offering. We may qualify as a publicly offered RIC in future taxable years, but we cannot provide any assurance that we
will qualify as a publicly offered RIC in any taxable year.

U.S. Taxation of Tax Exempt U.S. Shareholders

A U.S. Shareholder that is a tax-exempt organization for U.S. federal income tax purposes and therefore generally exempt from U.S. federal income taxation may
nevertheless be subject to taxation to the extent that it is considered to derive unrelated business taxable income (“UBTI”). The direct conduct by a tax-exempt U.S.
Shareholder of the activities the Company proposes to conduct could give rise to UBTI. However, a BDC is a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and its
business activities generally will not be attributed to its shareholders for purposes of determining their treatment under current law. Therefore, a tax-exempt U.S. Shareholder
generally should not be subject to U.S. taxation solely as a result of the shareholder’s ownership of the Company’s Shares and receipt of dividends with respect to such Shares.
Moreover, under current law, if we incur indebtedness, such indebtedness will not be attributed to a tax-exempt U.S. Shareholder. Therefore, a tax-exempt U.S. Shareholder
should not be treated as earning income from “debt-financed property” and dividends the Company pays should not be treated as “unrelated debt-financed income” solely as
a result of indebtedness that the Company incurs. Legislation has been introduced in Congress in the past, and may be introduced again in the future, which would change the
treatment of “blocker” investment vehicles interposed between tax-exempt investors and non-qualifying investments if enacted. In the event that any such proposals were to be
adopted and applied to BDCs, the treatment of dividends payable to tax-exempt investors could be adversely affected. In addition, special rules would apply if the Company
were to invest in certain real estate mortgage investment conduits,
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which it does not currently plan to do, that could result in a tax-exempt U.S. Shareholder recognizing income that would be treated as UBTI.
Taxation of Non-U.S. Shareholders

Distributions and Dispositions

The following discussion only applies to certain Non-U.S. Shareholders. Whether an investment in the Shares is appropriate for a Non-U.S. Shareholder will depend upon
that person’s particular circumstances. An investment in the Shares by a Non-U.S. Shareholder may have adverse tax consequences. Non-U.S. Shareholders should consult
their tax advisers before investing in our Shares.

Distributions of our “investment company taxable income” to Non-U.S. Shareholders (including interest income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of
realized long-term capital losses, which generally would be free of withholding if paid to Non-U.S. Shareholders directly) will be subject to withholding of federal tax at a
30% rate (or lower rate provided by an applicable treaty) to the extent of the Company’s current and accumulated earnings and profits unless an applicable exception applies.
No withholding will be required with respect to certain distributions if (i) the distributions are properly reported as “interest-related dividends” or “short-term capital gain
dividends,” (ii) the distributions are derived from sources specified in the Code for such dividends and (iii) certain other requirements are satisfied. No assurance can be
provided as to whether any of the Company’s distributions will be reported as eligible for this exemption. If any distributions are effectively connected with a U.S. trade or
business of the Non-U.S. Shareholder, the Company will not be required to withhold federal tax if the Non-U.S. Shareholder complies with applicable certification and
disclosure requirements, although the distributions will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the rates applicable to U.S. persons. (Special certification requirements apply
to a Non-U.S. Shareholder that is a foreign partnership or a foreign trust, and such entities are urged to consult their own tax advisers.)

Actual or deemed distributions of net capital gains to a Non-U.S. Shareholder, and gains realized by a Non-U.S. Shareholder upon the sale, exchange or other taxable
disposition of the Company’s Shares, will generally not be subject to federal withholding tax and generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless the
distributions or gains, as the case may be, are effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the Non-U.S. Shareholder.

Under the Company’s reinvestment of dividends policy, if a Non-U.S. Shareholder owns Shares registered in its own name, the Non-U.S. Shareholder may have all cash
distributions reinvested in additional Shares if it opts in to the reinvestment of dividends policy by delivering a written notice to U.S. Bank prior to the record date of the next
dividend or distribution. If the distribution is a distribution of the Company’s investment company taxable income, is not designated as a short-term capital gains dividend or
interest-related dividend and it is not effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the Non-U.S. Shareholder (or, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is not
attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment of the Non-U.S. Shareholder), the amount distributed (to the extent of current or accumulated earnings and profits) will be
subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax at a 30% rate (or lower rate provided by an applicable treaty) and only the net after-tax amount will be reinvested in the
Company’s Shares. The Non-U.S. Shareholder will have an adjusted basis in the additional Shares purchased through the reinvestment equal to the amount reinvested. The
additional Shares will have a new holding period commencing on the day following the day on which the Shares are credited to the Non-U.S. Shareholder’s account.

The tax consequences to Non-U.S. Shareholders entitled to claim the benefits of an applicable tax treaty or that are individuals that are present in the U.S. for 183 days or
more during a taxable year may be different from those described herein. Non-U.S. Shareholders are urged to consult their tax advisers with respect to the procedure for
claiming the benefit of a lower treaty rate and the applicability of foreign taxes.

If the Company distributes net capital gains in the form of deemed rather than actual distributions, a Non-U.S. Shareholder will be entitled to a U.S. federal income tax
credit or tax refund equal to the shareholder’s allocable share of the tax we pay on the capital gains deemed to have been distributed. In order to obtain the refund, the Non-
U.S. Shareholder must obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number and file a refund claim even if the Non-U.S. Shareholder would not otherwise be required to obtain a U.S.
taxpayer identification number or file a U.S. federal income tax return.

38



For a corporate Non-U.S. Shareholder, distributions (both actual and deemed), and gains realized upon the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of the Company’s
Shares that are effectively connected to a U.S. trade or business may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional “branch profits tax™ at a 30% rate (or at a lower
rate if provided for by an applicable treaty). Accordingly, investment in the Shares may not be advisable for a Non-U.S. Shareholder.

Backup Withholding

The Company must generally report to Non-U.S. Shareholders and the IRS the amount of dividends paid during each calendar year and the amount of any tax withheld.
Information reporting requirements may apply even if no withholding was required because the distributions were effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Shareholder’s
conduct of a United States trade or business or withholding was reduced or eliminated by an applicable income tax treaty. This information also may be made available under
a specific treaty or agreement with the tax authorities in the country in which the Non-U.S. Shareholder resides or is established. Under U.S. federal income tax law, interest,
dividends and other reportable payments may, under certain circumstances, be subject to “backup withholding” at the then applicable rate (currently 28%). Backup
withholding, however, generally will not apply to distributions to a Non-U.S. Shareholder of our Shares, provided the Non-U.S. Shareholder furnishes to us the required
certification as to its non-U.S. status, such as by providing a valid IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E, or IRS Form W-8ECI, or certain other requirements are met.
Backup withholding is not an additional tax but can be credited against a Non-U.S. Shareholder’s federal income tax, and may be refunded to the extent it results in an
overpayment of tax and the appropriate information is timely supplied to the IRS.

FATCA

Legislation commonly referred to as the “Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act,” or “FATCA,” generally imposes a 30% withholding tax on payments of certain types of
income to foreign financial institutions that fail to enter into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury to report certain required information with respect to accounts held by U.S.
persons (or held by foreign entities that have U.S. persons as substantial owners) or that reside in a jurisdiction that has not entered into an agreement with the United States to
collect and share such information. The types of income subject to the tax include U.S. source interest and dividends. While existing U.S. Treasury regulations would also
require withholding on payments of the gross proceeds from the sale of any property that could produce U.S. source interest or dividends, the U.S. Treasury has indicated in
subsequent proposed regulations its intent to eliminate this requirement. The information required to be reported includes the identity and taxpayer identification number of
each account holder that is a U.S. person and certain transaction activity within the holder’s account. In addition, subject to certain exceptions, this legislation also imposes a
30% withholding on payments to foreign entities that are not financial institutions unless the foreign entity certifies that it does not have a greater than 10% U.S. owner or
provides the withholding agent with identifying information on each greater than 10% U.S. owner. Depending on the status of a Non-U.S. Shareholder and the status of the
intermediaries through which they hold their Shares, Non-U.S. Shareholders could be subject to this 30% withholding tax with respect to distributions on their Shares and
potentially proceeds from the sale of their Shares. Under certain circumstances, a Non-U.S. Shareholder might be eligible for refunds or credits of such taxes.

Non-U.S. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisers with respect to the U.S. federal income tax and withholding tax, and state, local and foreign tax
consequences of an investment in the Shares.
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ITEM 1A. RISK
FACTORS

Investments in the Company involve a high degree of risk. There can be no assurance that our investment objectives will be achieved, or that a shareholder will receive a
return of its capital. In addition, there will be occasions when the Advisers and their respective affiliates may encounter potential conflicts of interest in connection with the
Company. The following considerations should be carefully evaluated before making an investment in our common stock. If any of those risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to the Company’s Business and Structure
The Company has a lack of operating history.

The Company is a new entity with no operating history and has no financial information on which a prospective investor can evaluate an investment in the Shares or prior
performance. As a result, we are subject to the business risks and uncertainties associated with recently formed businesses, including the risk that we will not achieve our
investment objective and the value of a shareholder’s investment could decline substantially or become worthless. While we believe that the past professional experiences,

including investment and financial experience, will allow Churchill to manage the Company successfully, there can be no assurance that this will be the case.

We depend upon the senior manag t of Churchill for our success, and upon its access to the investment professionals of Nuveen and its affiliates.

We do not have any internal management capacity or employees. We depend on the investment expertise, skill and network of business contacts of the senior investment
professionals of Churchill, who evaluate, negotiate, structure, execute, monitor and service our investments in accordance with the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreements.
Our success depends to a significant extent on the continued service and coordination of the senior investment professionals of Churchill. These individuals may have other
demands on their time now and in the future, and we cannot assure you that they will continue to be actively involved in our management. Each of these individuals is not
subject to an employment contract with the Company, and the departure of any of these individuals or competing demands on their time in the future could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to achieve our investment objective.

Churchill will evaluate, negotiate, structure, close and monitor our investments in accordance with the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement. We can offer no assurance,
however, that the current senior investment professionals of Churchill will continue to provide investment advice to us. If these individuals do not maintain their existing
relationships with Nuveen and its affiliates and do not develop new relationships with other sources of investment opportunities, we may not be able to grow our investment
portfolio or achieve our investment objective.

The Joint Investment Committee that oversees our investment activities is comprised of representatives of both Investment Teams. The Joint Investment Committee
consists of Messrs. Kencel, Strife and Schwimmer. The loss of any member of the Joint Investment Committee or of other Nuveen senior investment professionals could
negatively impact the Company’s ability to achieve its investment objectives and operate as anticipated. This could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations.

Our business model depends to a significant extent upon strong referral relationships with financial institutions, sponsors and investment professionals. Any inability of
Churchill to maintain or develop these relationships, or the failure of these relationships to generate investment opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We depend upon the senior investment professionals of Churchill to maintain their relationships with financial institutions, sponsors and investment professionals, and we
rely to a significant extent upon these relationships to provide us with potential investment opportunities. If the senior investment professionals of Churchill fail to maintain
such relationships, or to develop new relationships with other sources of investment opportunities, we will not be able to grow our investment portfolio. In addition,
individuals with whom the senior investment professionals of Churchill have relationships are not obligated to provide us with investment opportunities, and, therefore, we
can offer no assurance that these relationships will generate investment opportunities for us in the future.
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Our financial condition and results of operations depend on our ability to manage our business effectively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objective and grow depends on our ability to manage our business. This depends, in turn, on the ability of Churchill to identify,
invest in and monitor companies that meet our investment criteria. The achievement of our investment objective depends upon Churchill’s execution of our investment
process, their ability to provide competent, attentive and efficient services to us and, to a lesser extent, our access to financing on acceptable terms. Churchill has substantial
responsibilities under the Sub-Advisory Agreement. The senior origination professionals and other personnel of Churchill and its affiliates may be called upon to provide
managerial assistance to our portfolio companies. These activities may distract them or slow our rate of investment. Any failure to manage our business and our future growth
effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Our results of operations depend on many factors,
including the availability of opportunities for investment, readily accessible short and long-term funding alternatives in the financial markets and economic conditions.
Furthermore, if we cannot successfully operate our business or implement our investment policies and strategies, it could negatively impact our ability to pay dividends or
other distributions and you may lose all or part of your investment.

There is currently no public market for our Shares, and the liquidity of your investment is limited.

There is currently no public market for our Shares, and a market for our Shares may never develop. Our Shares are not registered under the 1933 Act, or any state
securities law and are restricted as to transfer by law and the terms of our Charter. Our shareholders generally may not sell, assign or transfer Shares without prior written
consent of the Adviser, which the Adviser may grant or withhold in its sole discretion. Except in limited circumstances for legal or regulatory purposes, our shareholders are
not entitled to redeem their Shares. Our shareholders must be prepared to bear the economic risk of an investment in our Shares for an indefinite period of time. While we
may engage in a liquidity event in the future, there can be no assurance that a liquidity event will be consummated for shareholders.

We have not identified any specific investments that we will make with the proceeds from our private offering, and you will not have the opportunity to evaluate our
investments prior to subscribing to purchase our Shares. As a result, our offering may be considered a “blind pool” offering.

Neither we nor Churchill has presently identified, made investments in or contracted to make any investments (except for the Legacy Portfolio to be acquired pursuant to
the Acquisition). As a result, you will not be able to evaluate the economic merits, transaction terms or other financial or operational data concerning our investments prior to
purchasing Shares. You must rely on Churchill and the Board to implement our investment policies, to evaluate our investment opportunities and to structure the terms of our
investments. Because investors are not able to evaluate our investments in advance of purchasing our Shares, the private offering may entail more risk than other types of
offerings. This additional risk may hinder your ability to achieve your own personal investment objective related to portfolio diversification, risk-adjusted investment returns
and other objectives.

Our shareholders may experience dilution.

Our shareholders will not have preemptive rights to subscribe for or purchase any Shares issued in the future. To the extent we issue additional equity interests, including
in a public offering, a rights offering, or following a subsequent closing, a shareholder’s percentage ownership interest in the Company will be diluted. In addition, depending
upon the terms and pricing of any additional offerings or rights offerings and the value of our investments, a shareholder may also experience dilution in the NAV and fair

value of our Shares.

There may be conflicts related to obligations that senior investment professionals of Churchill and bers of its investment committee have to other clients.

The senior investment professionals and members of the investment committee of each Investment Team serve or may serve as officers, directors or principals of entities
that operate in the same or a related line of business as we do, or of investment funds, accounts or other investment vehicles sponsored or managed by Churchill or its
affiliates. In serving in these multiple capacities, they may have obligations to other clients or investors in those entities, the fulfillment of which may not be in our best
interests or in the best interest of our shareholders. For example, Messrs. Kencel, Strife and Schwimmer have and will continue to have management responsibilities for other
investment funds, accounts or other investment vehicles sponsored or managed by affiliates of Churchill. Churchill seeks to allocate investment opportunities among eligible
accounts in a manner that is fair and equitable over time and consistent with their respective allocation policies. In addition, Churchill or its affiliates may earn additional fees
related to the securities in which the Company invests, which may result in conflicts of interests for the senior investment professionals and members of the investment
committee making investment decisions.
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For example, Churchill and its affiliates may act as an arranger, syndication agent or in a similar capacity with respect to securities in which the Company invests, in which
case Churchill and its affiliates receive compensation from the issuers of such securities, which compensation would be paid to them separately from management fees paid
by the Company. Additionally, affiliates of Churchill may act as the administrative agent on credit facilities under which such securities are issued, which may contemplate
additional compensation to such affiliates for the service of acting as administrative agent thereunder.

Churchill may also simultaneously be managing certain securities for the Company and the same investments on a whole-loan, whole-security basis for TIAA pursuant to
separate engagements, which may lead to conflicts of interest.

As described herein, Nuveen has announced its plan to bring its Private Equity and Junior Capital investment team together with Churchill, combining Nuveen’s middle
market private-capital capabilities into Churchill. In certain instances, it is possible that other entities managed by Churchill or a proprietary account of TIAA may be
invested in the same or similar loans or securities as held by the Company, and which may be acquired at different times at lower or higher prices. Those investments may
also be in securities or other instruments in different parts of the company’s capital structure that differ significantly from the investments held by the Company, including
with respect to material terms and conditions, including without limitation seniority, interest rates, dividends, voting rights and participation in liquidation proceeds.
Consequently, in certain instances these investments may be in positions or interests which are potentially adverse to those taken or held by the Company. In such
circumstances, measures will be taken to address such actual or potential conflicts, which may include, as appropriate, establishing an information barrier between or among
the applicable personnel of the relevant affiliated entities (including as between officers of Churchill), requiring recusal of certain personnel from participating in decisions
that give rise to such conflicts, or other protective measures as shall be established from time to time to address such conflicts.

Further, an affiliate of TIAA may serve as the administrative or other named agent on behalf of the lenders with respect to investments by the Company and/or one or
more of its affiliates. In some cases, investments that are originated or otherwise sourced by Churchill may be funded by a loan syndicate organized by Churchill or its
affiliate (“Loan Syndicate™). The participants in a Loan Syndicate (the “Loan Syndicate Participants”), in addition to the Company and its affiliates may include other lenders
and various institutional and sophisticated investors (through private investment vehicles in which they invest). The entity acting as agent may serve as an agent with respect
to loans made at varying levels of a borrower’s capital structure. Loan Syndicate Participants may hold investments in the same or distinct tranches in the loan facilities of
which the Portfolio Investment is a part or in different positions in the capital structure under such Portfolio Investment. As is typical in such agency arrangements, the agent is
the party responsible for administering and enforcing the terms of the loan facility, may take certain actions and make certain decisions in its discretion and generally may
take material actions only in accordance with the instructions of a designated percentage of the lenders. In the case of loan facilities that include both senior and subordinate
tranches, the agent may take actions in accordance with the instructions of the holders of one or more of the senior tranches without any right to vote or consent (except in
certain limited circumstances) by the subordinated tranches of such indebtedness. Churchill expects that the Portfolio Investments held by the Company and its affiliates may
represent less than the amount of debt sufficient to direct, initiate or prevent actions with respect to such loan facility or a tranche thereof of which the Company’s investment
is a part (other than preventing those that require the consent of each lender). As a result of an affiliate of TIAA acting as agent for an agented loan where a Loan Syndicate
Participant may own more of the related indebtedness of the obligor or hold indebtedness in a position in the capital structure of an obligor different from that of the Company
and its affiliates, such Loan Syndicate Participants will be in a position to exercise more control with respect to the related loan facility than that which Churchill could
exercise on behalf of the Company, and may exercise such control in a manner adverse to the interests of the Company.

In addition, TIAA, as advised by an affiliate of the Advisers, may be a limited partner investor in many of the private equity funds that own the portfolio companies in
which the Company will invest or TIAA may otherwise have a relationship with the private equity funds or portfolio companies, which may give rise to certain conflicts or
limit the Company’s ability to invest in such portfolio companies. TIAA (and other private clients managed by affiliates of the Advisers) may also hold passive equity co-
investments in such private equity funds or portfolio companies owned by such fund, or in holding companies elsewhere in the capital structure of the private equity fund or
portfolio company, which may give rise to certain conflicts for the investment professionals of affiliates of the Advisers when making investment decisions.

Each Investment Team or each Investment Committee may, from time to time, possess material nonpublic information, limiting our investment discretion.

The managing members and the senior origination professionals of each Investment Team and the senior professionals and members of each investment committee may
serve as directors of, or in a similar capacity with, companies in which we invest, the securities of which are purchased or sold on our behalf. In the event that material
nonpublic information is obtained
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with respect to such companies, or we become subject to trading restrictions under the internal trading policies of those companies or as a result of applicable law or
regulations, we could be prohibited for a period of time from purchasing or selling the securities of such companies, and this prohibition may have a material adverse effect on
us.

Our management and incentive fee structure may create incentives for Churchill and certain of its investment professionals that are not fully aligned with the interests of
our shareholders.

In the course of our investing activities, we pay management and incentive fees to the Advisers. Management fees are based on our Average Total Assets (which include
assets purchased with borrowed amounts but exclude cash and cash equivalents). As a result, investors in our Shares invest on a “gross” basis and receive distributions on a
“net” basis after expenses, resulting in a lower rate of return than one might achieve through direct investments. Because these fees are based on our total assets, including
assets purchased with borrowed amounts but excluding cash and cash equivalents, the Advisers benefit when we incur debt or otherwise use leverage. This fee structure may
encourage Churchill to cause us to borrow money to finance additional investments or to maintain leverage when it would otherwise be appropriate to pay off our
indebtedness. Under certain circumstances, the use of borrowed money may increase the likelihood of default, which would disfavor our shareholders. The Board is charged
with protecting our interests by monitoring how the Advisers address these and other conflicts of interest associated with their management services and compensation. Our
independent directors periodically review Churchill’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance. In connection with these
reviews, our independent directors consider whether our fees and expenses (including those related to leverage) remain appropriate. As a result of this arrangement, the
Advisers or their affiliates may from time to time have interests that differ from those of our shareholders, giving rise to a conflict.

In addition, certain investment professionals share directly in the management fee. Such professionals would face similar conflicts when considering investments for and
making decisions on behalf of the Company.

The part of the incentive fee payable to the Advisers that relates to our net investment income is computed and paid on income that may include interest income that has
been accrued but not yet received in cash. This fee structure may be considered to involve a conflict of interest for Churchill to the extent that it may encourage Churchill to
favor debt financings that provide for deferred interest, rather than current cash payments of interest. Churchill may have an incentive to invest in PIK interest securities in
circumstances where it would not have done so but for the opportunity to continue to earn the incentive fee even when the issuers of the deferred interest securities would not
be able to make actual cash payments to us on such securities. This risk could be increased because the Advisers are not obligated to reimburse us for any incentive fees
received even if we subsequently incur losses or never receive in cash the deferred income that was previously accrued. In addition, the part of the incentive fee payable to
Churchill that relates to our net investment income does not include any realized capital gains, realized capital losses or unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation. Any
net investment income incentive fee would not be subject to repayment.

Our incentive fee may induce Churchill to make certain investments, including speculative investments.

The Advisers receive an incentive fee based, in part, upon net capital gains realized on our investments. Unlike that portion of the incentive fee based on income, there is
no hurdle rate applicable to the portion of the incentive fee based on net capital gains. As a result, Churchill may have a tendency to invest more capital in investments that are
likely to result in capital gains as compared to income producing securities. Such a practice could result in our investing in more speculative securities than would otherwise

be the case, which could result in higher investment losses, particularly during economic downturns.

The Advisory Agr ts were not negotiated on an arm’s length basis and may not be as favorable to us as if they had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third-party.

We negotiated the Advisory Agreements with related parties. Consequently, their terms, including fees payable to the Advisers, may not be as favorable to us as if they
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third-party. In addition, we may choose not to enforce, or to enforce less vigorously, our rights and remedies under these agreements
because of our desire to maintain our ongoing relationship with the Advisers. Any such decision, however, would breach our fiduciary obligations to our shareholders.
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TIAA (directly or through one or more of its affiliates) intends to make a significant investment in the Company and may purchase additional Shares from certain
unaffiliated shareholders, which may present certain conflicts of interest.

TIAA, the ultimate parent of the Advisers, intends to make a significant investment in the Company (directly or through one or more of its affiliates). This may result in
TIAA’s ownership of a significant percentage of the Company’s Shares. TIAA and other shareholders may from time to time hold equity and other interests in the Advisers or
their affiliates, which may present conflicts of interest for the Advisers, including senior investment professionals and members of the investment committee making
investment decisions for the Company that also provide investment advice to TIAA.

Additionally, TIAA may provide liquidity to certain shareholders by offering to purchase all or a portion of their Shares of the Company after a certain period of time
elapses. However, not all shareholders will be presented with the opportunity to sell their Shares to TIAA. This may be detrimental to other shareholders as TIAA may control
a significant percentage of the shareholder vote and may vote in a manner that is beneficial to the Advisers.

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affiliates is restricted, which may limit the scope of investments available to us.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from participating in certain transactions with our affiliates without the prior approval of our independent directors and, in some
cases, of the SEC. Any person that owns, directly or indirectly, five percent or more of our outstanding voting securities is our affiliate for purposes of the 1940 Act, and we
are generally prohibited from buying any security from such affiliate, absent the prior approval of our independent directors. The 1940 Act also prohibits us from participating
in certain “joint” transactions with certain of our affiliates, which could include investments in the same portfolio company without prior approval of our independent
directors and, in some cases, of the SEC. For example, we are prohibited from buying or selling any security from or to any person (or certain affiliates of a person) who owns
more than 25% of our voting securities, or entering into prohibited joint transactions with such persons, absent the prior approval of the SEC. As a result of these restrictions,
we may be prohibited from buying or selling any security (other than any security of which we are the issuer) from or to any portfolio company at the same time as another
fund managed by any of the Advisers or their affiliates without the prior approval of the SEC, which may limit the scope of investment opportunities that would otherwise be
available to us. In addition, TIAA (directly or through one or more of its affiliates) intends to invest $75 million in the Company, which may result in its ownership of more
than 25% of the voting securities of the Company.

We may, however, co-invest with each Adviser and its affiliates’ other clients in certain circumstances where doing so is consistent with applicable law and SEC staff
interpretations. For example, we may co-invest with such accounts consistent with guidance promulgated by the SEC staff permitting us and such other accounts to purchase
interests in a single class of privately placed securities so long as certain conditions are met, including that the applicable Adviser, acting on our behalf and on behalf of other
clients, negotiates no term other than price. We may also co-invest with the Advisers’ or their affiliates’ other clients as otherwise permissible under regulatory guidance,
applicable regulations, and Churchill’s allocation policy, which Churchill maintains in writing. Under this allocation policy, a fixed percentage of each opportunity, which
may vary based on asset class and from time to time, is offered to us and similar eligible accounts, as periodically determined by Churchill. However, we can offer no
assurance that investment opportunities will be allocated to us fairly or equitably in the short-term or over time.

Additionally, the Advisers, the Company, and certain other funds and accounts sponsored or managed by the Advisers and their affiliates have been granted the Order by
the SEC, which permits the Company greater flexibility to negotiate the terms of co-investments if the Board determines that it would be advantageous for the Company to co-
invest with other accounts sponsored or managed by the Advisers or their affiliates in a manner consistent with the Company’s investment objective, positions, policies,
strategies and restrictions as well as regulatory requirements and other pertinent factors.

In situations where co-investment with other funds managed by one of the Advisers or its affiliates is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to
invest in different securities of the same issuer or where the different investments could be expected to result in a conflict between our interests and those of other clients of
the Advisers that cannot be mitigated or otherwise addressed pursuant to the policies and procedures of the applicable Adviser, the applicable Adviser must decide which
client will proceed with the investment. Each Adviser makes these determinations based on its policies and procedures, which generally require that such opportunities be
offered to eligible accounts on a basis that will be fair and equitable over time (and which takes into consideration the ability of the relevant account(s) to acquire securities in
an amount and on terms suitable for the relevant transaction). Moreover, there will be a conflict of interest if we invest in any issuer in which a fund managed by the Advisers
or their affiliates has previously invested, and in some cases, we will
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be restricted from making such investment. Similar restrictions limit our ability to transact business with our officers or directors or their affiliates.
We operate in a highly competitive market for investment opportunities, which could reduce returns and result in losses.

We compete with a number of specialty and commercial finance companies to make the types of investments that we make in middle-market companies, including
business development companies, traditional commercial banks, private investment funds, regional banking institutions, small business investment companies, investment
banks and insurance companies. Additionally, with increased competition for investment opportunities, alternative investment vehicles such as hedge funds may seek to invest
in areas they have not traditionally invested in or from which they had withdrawn during the economic downturn, including investing in middle-market companies. As a
result, competition for investments in middle-market companies has intensified, and we expect that trend to continue. Certain of our existing and potential competitors are
large and may have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. For example, some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding
sources that are not available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments, which could allow them to consider a
wider variety of investments and establish more relationships than us. These characteristics could allow our competitors to consider a wider variety of investments, establish
more relationships and offer better pricing and more flexible structuring than we offer. We may lose investment opportunities if we do not match our competitors’ pricing,
terms and structure. If we are forced to match our competitors’ pricing, terms and structure, however, we may not be able to achieve acceptable returns on our investments or
may bear substantial risk of capital loss.

Furthermore, many of our competitors are not subject to the regulatory restrictions that the 1940 Act imposes on us as a BDC or the source of income, asset
diversification and distribution requirements we must satisfy to obtain and maintain our RIC status. The competitive pressures we face may have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations. As a result of this competition, we may not be able to take advantage of attractive investment opportunities from
time to time, and we may not be able to identify and make investments that are consistent with our investment objective.

We will be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income tax if we are unable to qualify or maintain qualification as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.

We intend to elect to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code as soon as practicable, and intend to qualify annually thereafter; however, no assurance can be
given that we will be able to qualify for and maintain RIC status. To receive RIC tax treatment under the Code and to be relieved of federal taxes on income and gains
distributed to our shareholders, we must meet certain requirements, including source-of-income, asset diversification and distribution requirements. The annual distribution
requirement applicable to RICs is satisfied if we distribute at least 90% of our net ordinary income and net short-term capital gains in excess of net long-term capital losses, if
any, to our shareholders on an annual basis. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax to the extent that we do not satisfy certain additional
minimum distribution requirements on a calendar year basis. To the extent we use debt financing, we will be subject to certain asset coverage ratio requirements under the
1940 Act and may be subject to financial covenants under loan and credit agreements, each of which could, under certain circumstances, restrict us from making annual
distributions necessary to receive RIC tax treatment. If we are unable to obtain cash from other sources, we may fail to be taxed as a RIC and, thus, may be subject to
corporate-level U.S. federal income tax on our entire taxable income without regard to any distributions made by us. In order to be taxed as a RIC, we must also meet certain
asset diversification requirements at the end of each calendar quarter. Failure to meet these tests may result in our having to dispose of certain investments quickly in order to
prevent the loss of RIC status. Because most of our investments are in private or thinly traded public companies, any such dispositions could be made at disadvantageous
prices and may result in substantial losses. If we fail to be taxed as a RIC for any reason and become subject to corporate income tax, the resulting corporate taxes could
substantially reduce our net assets, the amount of income available for distributions to shareholders and the amount of our distributions and the amount of funds available for
new investments. Such a failure would have a material adverse effect on us and our shareholders.

An extended disruption in the capital markets and the credit markets could negatively affect our business.

As a BDC, it will be necessary for us to maintain our ability to raise additional capital for investment purposes. Without sufficient access to the capital markets or credit
markets, we may be forced to curtail our business operations or we may not be able to pursue new business opportunities. The capital markets and the credit markets have
experienced periods of extreme volatility and disruption and, accordingly, there has been and may in the future be uncertainty in the financial markets in general. Ongoing
disruptive conditions in the financial industry and the impact of new legislation in response to those conditions could restrict our business operations and could adversely
impact our results of operations and financial condition.
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We may access the capital markets periodically to issue debt or equity securities or borrow from financial institutions in order to obtain such additional capital.
Unfavorable economic conditions could increase our funding costs, limit our access to the capital markets or result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us. A
reduction in the availability of new capital could limit our ability to pursue new business opportunities and grow our business. In addition, we are required to distribute at least
90% of our net ordinary income and net short-term capital gains in excess of net long-term capital losses, if any, to our shareholders to qualify for the tax benefits available to
RICs. As a result, these earnings will not be available to fund new investments. An inability to access the capital markets successfully could limit our ability to grow our
business and execute our business strategy fully and could decrease our earnings, if any, which may have an adverse effect on the value of our securities.

We may have difficulty paying our required distributions if we recognize income before, or without, receiving cash representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we will include in income certain amounts that we have not yet received in cash, such as original issue discount, or through
contracted PIK interest, which represents contractual interest added to the loan balance and due at the end of the loan term. Original issue discount, which could be significant
relative to our overall investment activities, or increases in loan balances as a result of contracted PIK arrangements, will be included in income before we receive any
corresponding cash payments. We also may be required to include in income certain other amounts that we will not receive in cash.

That part of the incentive fee payable by us that relates to our net investment income is computed and paid on income that may include interest that has been accrued but
not yet received in cash, such as original issue discount and PIK interest. If we pay a net investment income incentive fee on interest that has been accrued, but not yet
received in cash, it will increase the basis of our investment in that loan, which will reduce the capital gain incentive fee that we would otherwise pay in the future.
Nevertheless, if we pay a net investment income incentive fee on interest that has been accrued but not yet received, and if that portfolio company defaults on such a loan, it is
possible that accrued interest previously included in the calculation of the incentive fee will become uncollectible.

Because we may recognize income before or without receiving cash representing such income, we may have difficulty meeting the requirements applicable to RICs. In
such a case, we may have to sell some of our investments at times and/or at prices we would not consider advantageous, raise additional debt or equity capital or reduce new
investment originations and sourcings to meet these distribution requirements. If we are not able to obtain such cash from other sources, we may fail to qualify for the tax
benefits available to RICs and thus be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income tax.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to and the way in which we raise additional capital.

We may issue debt securities or preferred shares and/or borrow money from banks or other financial institutions, which we refer to collectively as “senior securities,” up
to the maximum amount permitted by the 1940 Act. Under the provisions of the 1940 Act, we are permitted as a BDC to issue senior securities in amounts such that our Asset
Coverage Ratio, as defined in the 1940 Act, equals at least 150% of total assets less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities, immediately after each
issuance of senior securities. If the value of our assets declines, we may be unable to satisfy this test. If that happens, we may be required to sell a portion of our investments
and, depending on the nature of our leverage, repay a portion of our indebtedness at a time when such sales may be disadvantageous. This could have a material adverse effect
on our operations and we may not be able to make distributions in an amount sufficient to be subject to taxation as a RIC, or at all. In addition, issuance of securities could
dilute the percentage ownership of our current shareholders in us.

No person or entity from which we borrow money will have a veto power or a vote in approving or changing any of our fundamental policies. If we issue preferred
shares, the preferred shares would rank “senior” to Shares in our capital structure, preferred shareholders would have separate voting rights on certain matters and might have
other rights, preferences or privileges more favorable than those of our shareholders, and the issuance of preferred shares could have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing a transaction or a change of control that might involve a premium price for holders of our Shares or otherwise be in your best interest. Holders of our Shares will
directly or indirectly bear all of the costs associated with offering and servicing any preferred shares that we issue. In addition, any interests of preferred shareholders may not
necessarily align with the interests of holders of our Shares and the rights of holders of preferred shares to receive dividends would be senior to those of holders of our
Shares.

As a BDC, we generally are not able to issue our Shares at a price below NAV per share without first obtaining the approval of our shareholders and our independent
directors. If we raise additional funds by issuing more Shares or senior
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securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, our shares, then percentage ownership of our shareholders at that time would decrease, and you might experience dilution.
We may seek shareholder approval to sell Shares below NAV in the future.

There are significant financial and other resources necessary to comply with the requirements of being an SEC reporting entity.

Upon the effectiveness of this Registration Statement on Form 10, even though we will be an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act, we will still be subject to
the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act and requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. These requirements may place a strain on our systems and resources. The 1934 Act
requires that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we maintain effective
disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting, which are discussed below. In order to maintain and improve the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls, significant resources and management oversight will be required. We intend to implement procedures, processes,
policies and practices for the purpose of addressing the standards and requirements applicable to public companies. These activities may divert management’s attention from
other business concerns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We expect to incur significant
additional annual expenses related to these steps and, among other things, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, director fees, reporting requirements of the SEC, transfer
agent fees, additional administrative expenses payable to the Administrator to compensate them for hiring additional accounting, legal and administrative personnel, increased
auditing and legal fees and similar expenses.

The systems and resources necessary to comply with public company reporting requirements will increase further once we cease to be an “emerging growth company”
under the JOBS Act. As long as we remain an emerging growth company, we intend to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are
applicable to other public companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act. We will remain an emerging growth company for up to five years following an IPO or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual
gross revenues equal or exceeds $1.07 billion, (ii) December 31 of the fiscal year that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the 1934 Act
which would occur if the market value of our Shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700.0 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second
fiscal quarter and we have been publicly reporting for at least 12 months and have filed an annual report on Form 10-K, (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0
billion in non-convertible debt securities during the preceding three-year period or (iv) December 31 of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of our first
sale of common equity securities pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act.

We are not currently required to comply with all of the internal control evaluation requir ts of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

We are not required to comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, including the internal control evaluation and certification requirements of Section 404 of
that statute (“Section 404”), and will not be required to comply with all of those requirements until we have been subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act for a
specified period of time or the date we are no longer an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act. Accordingly, our internal controls over financial reporting do not
currently meet all of the standards contemplated by Section 404 that we will eventually be required to meet. We are in the process of addressing our internal controls over
financial reporting and are establishing formal procedures, policies, processes and practices related to financial reporting and to the identification of key financial reporting
risks, assessment of their potential impact and linkage of those risks to specific areas and activities within the Company.

Upon registering the Shares under the 1934 Act, we will be subject to certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules and regulations promulgated by the
SEC, and our management will be required to report on our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 beginning with our second annual report on Form
10-K. We have begun the process of documenting our internal control procedures to satisfy the requirements of Section 404, which requires annual management assessments
of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting after the first full year as a reporting company under the 1934 Act. Our independent registered public
accounting firm will not be required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting until the later of the year following our first annual
report required to be filed with the SEC, or the date we are no longer an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act. Because we do not currently have comprehensive
documentation of our internal controls and have not yet tested our internal controls in accordance with Section 404, we cannot conclude in accordance with Section 404 that
we do not have a material weakness in our internal controls or a combination of significant deficiencies that could result in the conclusion that we have a material weakness in
our internal controls. As a publicly-reporting entity, we will be required to complete our initial assessment in a timely manner. If we are not able to implement the
requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, our operations, financial reporting or financial results could be adversely affected. Matters
impacting
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our internal controls may cause us to be unable to report our financial information on a timely basis and thereby subject us to adverse regulatory consequences, including
sanctions by the SEC or violations of applicable stock exchange listing rules, and result in a breach of the covenants under the agreements governing any of our financing
arrangements. There could also be a negative reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of investor confidence in the Company and the reliability of our financial
statements. Confidence in the reliability of our financial statements could also suffer if we or our independent registered public accounting firm were to report a material
weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting. This could materially adversely affect us and, following an IPO, lead to a decline in the market price of our Shares.

Recent legislation allows us to incur additional leverage.

The 1940 Act generally prohibits us from incurring indebtedness unless immediately after such borrowing we have an asset coverage for total borrowings of at least
200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not exceed 50% of the value of our gross assets). However, recent legislation provides that in order for a BDC to be subject to a reduced
150% Asset Coverage Ratio (i.e., we can borrow $2 for every $1 of equity), the BDC must either obtain: (i) approval of the required majority of its independent directors who
have no financial interest in the proposal, which would become effective one year after the date of such approval, or (ii) obtain shareholder approval (of more than 50% of the
votes cast for the proposal at a meeting in which quorum is present), which would become effective on the first day after the date of such shareholder approval. The Board and
TIAA (as the Company’s initial shareholder) approved a proposal to adopt an Asset Coverage Ratio of 150% in connection with the organization of the Company. Incurring
additional indebtedness could increase the risk of investing in the Company.

Leverage magnifies the potential for loss on investments in our indebtedness and on invested equity capital. As we use leverage to partially finance our investments, you
will experience increased risks of investing in our Shares. If the value of our assets increases, then leveraging would cause the NAV attributable to our Shares to increase
more sharply than it would have had we not leveraged. Conversely, if the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause NAV to decline more sharply than it
otherwise would have had we not leveraged our business. Similarly, any increase in our income in excess of interest payable on the borrowed funds would cause our net
investment income to increase more than it would without the leverage, while any decrease in our income would cause net investment income to decline more sharply than it
would have had we not borrowed. Such a decline could negatively affect our ability to pay dividends, scheduled debt payments or other payments related to our securities.
Leverage is generally considered a speculative investment technique.

Provisions in a credit facility may limit discretion.

To the extent we borrow money to make investments, such underlying credit facility may be backed by all or a portion of our loans and securities on which the lenders
will have a security interest. We may pledge up to 100% of our assets and may grant a security interest in all of our assets under the terms of any debt instrument we enter into
with lenders. We expect that any security interests we grant will be set forth in a pledge and security agreement and evidenced by the filing of financing statements by the
agent for the lenders. In addition, we expect that the custodian for our securities serving as collateral for such loan would include in its electronic systems notices indicating
the existence of such security interests and, following notice of occurrence of an event of default, if any, and during its continuance, will only accept transfer instructions with
respect to any such securities from the lender or its designee. If we were to default under the terms of any debt instrument, the agent for the applicable lenders would be able
to assume control of the timing of disposition of any or all of our assets securing such debt, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

In addition, any security interests and/or negative covenants required by a credit facility may limit our ability to create liens on assets to secure additional debt and may
make it difficult for us to restructure or refinance indebtedness at or prior to maturity or obtain additional debt or equity financing. In addition, if our borrowing base under a
credit facility were to decrease, we may be required to secure additional assets in an amount sufficient to cure any borrowing base deficiency. In the event that all of our assets
are secured at the time of such a borrowing base deficiency, we could be required to repay advances under a credit facility or make deposits to a collection account, either of
which could have a material adverse impact on our ability to fund future investments and to make distributions.

In addition, we may be subject to limitations as to how borrowed funds may be used, which may include restrictions on geographic and industry concentrations, loan
size, payment frequency and status, average life, collateral interests and investment ratings, as well as regulatory restrictions on leverage which may affect the amount of
funding that may be obtained. There may also be certain requirements relating to portfolio performance, including required minimum portfolio yield and limitations on
delinquencies and charge-offs, a violation of which could limit further advances and, in some cases, result in an event of default. An event of default under a credit facility
could result in an accelerated maturity date for all amounts
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outstanding thereunder, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. This could reduce our liquidity and cash flow and impair our
ability to grow our business.

Any defaults under a credit facility could adversely affect our business.

In the event we default under a credit facility or other borrowings, our business could be adversely affected as we may be forced to sell a portion of our investments
quickly and prematurely at what may be disadvantageous prices to us in order to meet our outstanding payment obligations and/or support working capital requirements under
such borrowing facility, any of which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, following
any such default, the agent for the lenders under such borrowing facility could assume control of the disposition of any or all of our assets, including the selection of such
assets to be disposed and the timing of such disposition, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our portfolio may be exposed to risks associated with changes in interest rates.

Interest rate fluctuations may have a substantial negative impact on our investments, the value of our Shares and our rate of return on invested capital. A reduction in the
interest rates on new investments relative to interest rates on current investments could have an adverse impact on our net investment income while an increase in interest rates
could decrease the value of any investments we hold which earn fixed interest rates and increase our interest expense, thereby decreasing our net income. An increase in
interest rates available to investors could also make investment in our Shares less attractive unless we are able to increase our dividend rate. In addition, a significant increase
in market interest rates could also result in an increase in our non-performing assets and a decrease in the value of our portfolio because our floating-rate loan portfolio
companies may be unable to meet higher payment obligations.

Actions by the BBA, regulators or law enforcement agencies may result in changes to the manner in which LIBOR is determined. Uncertainty as to the nature of such
potential changes may adversely affect the market for LIBOR-based securities, including our portfolio of LIBOR-indexed, floating-rate debt securities. In addition, any
further changes or reforms to the determination or supervision of LIBOR may result in a sudden or prolonged increase or decrease in reported LIBOR, which could have an
adverse impact on the market for LIBOR-based securities or the value of our portfolio of LIBOR-indexed, floating-rate debt securities. For example, On July 27, 2017, the
United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, announced that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021. It is expected that a transition
away from the widespread use of LIBOR to alternative rates will occur over the course of the next several years. As a result of this transition, interest rates on financial
instruments tied to LIBOR rates, as well as the revenue and expenses associated with those financial instruments, may be adversely affected. Further, any uncertainty
regarding the continued use and reliability of LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate could adversely affect the value of our financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates. The U.S.
Federal Reserve, in conjunction with the Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a steering committee comprised of large U.S. financial institutions, is considering replacing
U.S. dollar LIBOR with a new index calculated by short term repurchase agreements, backed by Treasury securities, called the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”).
The first publication of SOFR was released in April 2018. Whether or not SOFR attains market traction as a LIBOR replacement remains a questions and the future of LIBOR
at this time is uncertain.

Additionally, on June 12, 2019 the Staff of the SEC’s Division of Corporate Finance, Division of Investment Management, Division of Trading and Markets, and Office
of the Chief Accountant issued a statement about the potentially significant effects on financial markets and market participants when LIBOR is discontinued in 2021 and no
longer available as a reference benchmark rate. The Staff encouraged all market participants to identify contracts that reference LIBOR and begin transitions to alternative
rates. The elimination of LIBOR or any other changes or reforms to the determination or supervision of LIBOR could have an adverse impact on the market for or value of any
LIBOR-linked securities, loans, and other financial obligations or extensions or credit held by or due to us or on our overall financial condition or results of operations. If
LIBOR ceases to exist, we may need to renegotiate the credit agreements extending beyond 2021 with our portfolio companies that utilize LIBOR as a factor in determining
the interest rate to replace LIBOR with the new standard that is established. In addition, the cessation of LIBOR could:

*  Adversely impact the pricing, liquidity, value of, return on and trading for a broad array of financial products, including any LIBOR-linked securities, loans and
derivatives that are included in our assets and liabilities;

*  Require extensive changes to documentation that governs or references LIBOR or LIBOR-based products, including, for example, pursuant to time-consuming
renegotiations of existing documentation to modify the terms of outstanding investments;
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*  Result in inquiries or other actions from regulators in respect of our preparation and readiness for the replacement of LIBOR with one or more alternative reference
rates;

*  Result in disputes, litigation or other actions with portfolio companies, or other counterparties, regarding the interpretation and enforceability of provisions in our
LIBOR-based investments, such as fallback language or other related provisions, including, in the case of fallbacks to the alternative reference rates, any economic,
legal, operational or other impact resulting from the fundamental differences between LIBOR and the various alternative reference rates;

*  Require the transition and/or development of appropriate systems and analytics to effectively transition our risk management processes from LIBOR-based products
to those based on one or more alternative reference rates, which may prove challenging given the limited history of the proposed alternative reference rates; and

* Cause us to incur additional costs in relation to any of the above
factors.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could fail to qualify as a BDC, which would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets.
See “Regulation as a Business Development Company — Qualifying Assets.” We believe that most of the investments that we may acquire in the future will constitute
qualifying assets. However, we may be precluded from investing in what we believe are attractive investments if such investments are not qualifying assets for purposes of the
1940 Act. If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could violate the 1940 Act provisions applicable to business development companies.
As a result of such violation, specific rules under the 1940 Act could prevent us, for example, from making follow-on investments in existing portfolio companies which could
result in the dilution of our position or could require us to dispose of investments at inappropriate times in order to come into compliance with the 1940 Act. If we need to
dispose of investments quickly, it could be difficult to dispose of such investments on favorable terms. We may not be able to find a buyer for such investments and, even if we
do find a buyer, we may have to sell the investments at a substantial loss. Any such outcomes would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows.

Many of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board and, as a result, there may be uncertainty as to the value of our
portfolio investments.

Under the 1940 Act, we are required to carry our portfolio investments at market value or if there is no readily available market value, at fair value as determined by the
Board. Many of our portfolio investments may take the form of securities that are not publicly traded. The fair value of securities and other investments that are not publicly
traded may not be readily determinable, and we value these securities at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board, including to reflect significant events affecting the
value of our securities. As part of the valuation process, we may take into account the following types of factors, if relevant, in determining the fair value of our investments:

* a comparison of the portfolio company’s securities to publicly traded
securities;

* the enterprise value of a portfolio
company;

* the nature and realizable value of any
collateral;

*  the portfolio company’s ability to make payments and its earnings and discounted cash
flow;

*  the markets in which the portfolio company does business;
and

»  changes in the interest rate environment and the credit markets generally that may affect the price at which similar investments may be made in the future and other
relevant factors.

We expect that most of our investments (other than cash and cash equivalents) will be classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy and require disclosures about the
level of disaggregation along with the inputs and valuation techniques we use to measure fair value. This means that our portfolio valuations are based on unobservable inputs
and our own assumptions about how market participants would price the asset or liability in question. Inputs into the determination of fair value of our portfolio investments
require significant management judgment or estimation. Even if observable market data is available,
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such information may be the result of consensus pricing information or broker quotes, which include a disclaimer that the broker would not be held to such a price in an actual
transaction. The non-binding nature of consensus pricing and/or quotes accompanied by disclaimers materially reduces the reliability of such information. We employ the
services of one or more independent service providers to review the valuation of these securities. The types of factors that the Board may take into account in determining the
fair value of our investments generally include, as appropriate, comparison to publicly traded securities including such factors as yield, maturity and measures of credit
quality, the enterprise value of a portfolio company, the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the portfolio company’s ability to make payments and its earnings and
discounted cash flow, the markets in which the portfolio company does business and other relevant factors. Because such valuations, and particularly valuations of private
securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, may fluctuate over short periods of time and may be based on estimates, our determinations of fair value may differ
materially from the values that would have been used if a ready market for these securities existed. Due to this uncertainty in the value of our portfolio investments, a fair
value determination may cause NAV on a given date to materially understate or overstate the value that we may ultimately realize upon one or more of our investments. As a
result, investors purchasing our Shares based on an overstated NAV would pay a higher price than the value of the investments might warrant. Conversely, investors selling
Shares during a period in which the NAV understates the value of investments will receive a lower price for their Shares than the value the investment portfolio might warrant.

We will adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfolio to reflect the determination of the Board of the fair value of each investment in our portfolio. Any changes in fair
value are recorded in our statements of operations as net change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly operating results.

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterly operating results due to a number of factors, including our ability or inability to make investments in companies that
meet our investment criteria, the interest rate payable on the debt securities we acquire, the default rate on such securities, the level of our expenses, variations in and the
timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degree to which we encounter competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result
of these factors, results for any period should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods.

Global economic, political and market conditions, as well as changes in laws or regulations governing our operations, may adversely affect our business or cause us to
alter our business strategy.

The current worldwide financial market situation, as well as various social and political tensions in the United States and around the world, may contribute to increased
market volatility, may have long-term effects on the U.S. and worldwide financial markets, and may cause economic uncertainties or deterioration in the United States and
worldwide. The U.S. and global capital markets experienced extreme volatility and disruption during the economic downturn that began in mid-2007, and the U.S. economy
was in a recession for several consecutive calendar quarters during the same period. In 2010, a financial crisis emerged in Europe, triggered by high budget deficits and rising
direct and contingent sovereign debt, which created concerns about the ability of certain nations to continue to service their sovereign debt obligations. Risks resulting from
such debt crisis, including any austerity measures taken in exchange for bailout of certain nations, and any future debt crisis in Europe or any similar crisis elsewhere could
have a detrimental impact on the global economic recovery, sovereign and non-sovereign debt in certain countries and the financial condition of financial institutions
generally. In June 2016, the United Kingdom held a referendum in which voters approved an exit from the European Union (“Brexit”) and, subsequently, on March 29, 2017,
the U.K. government began the formal process of leaving the European Union. However, because of recent events the timing of Brexit, if at all, is uncertain. Brexit created
political and economic uncertainty and instability in the global markets (including currency and credit markets), and especially in the United Kingdom and the European
Union, and this uncertainty and instability may last indefinitely. Given that no formal withdrawal arrangements have been agreed to, there have been several extensions to
Brexit and the United Kingdom has yet to formally leave the European Union. On October 29, 2019, the European Union granted the United Kingdom a further extension to
effectuating Brexit until January 31, 2020. There is continued concern about national-level support for the Euro and the accompanying coordination of fiscal and wage policy
among European Economic and Monetary Union member countries. In addition, the fiscal and monetary policies of foreign nations, such as Russia and China, may have a
severe impact on the worldwide and U.S. financial markets.

The Republican Party currently controls the executive branch and the Senate portion of the legislative branch of government, which increases the likelihood that
legislation may be adopted that could significantly affect the regulation of U.S. financial markets. Areas subject to potential change, amendment or repeal include the Dodd-
Frank Act and the authority of the Federal Reserve and the Financial Stability Oversight Council. For example, in March 2018, the U.S. Senate passed a bill that eased
financial regulations and reduced oversight for certain entities. The U.S. may also potentially withdraw from
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or renegotiate various trade agreements and take other actions that would change current trade policies of the U.S. We cannot predict which, if any, of these actions will be
taken or, if taken, their effect on the financial stability of the U.S. Such actions could have a significant adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. We cannot predict the effects of these or similar events in the future on the U.S. economy and securities markets or on our investments. We monitor developments
and seek to manage our investments in a manner consistent with achieving our investment objective, but there can be no assurance that we will be successful in doing so.

On May 24, 2018, President Trump signed into law the Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act, which increased from $50 billion to $250
billion the asset threshold for designation of “systemically important financial institutions” or “SIFIs” subject to enhanced prudential standards set by the Federal Reserve
Board, staggering application of this change based on the size and risk of the covered bank holding company. On May 30, 2018, the Federal Reserve Board voted to consider
changes to the Volcker Rule that would loosen compliance requirements for all banks. The effect of this change and any further rules or regulations are and could be complex
and far-reaching, and the change and any future laws or regulations or changes thereto could negatively impact our operations, cash flows or financial condition, impose
additional costs on us, intensify the regulatory supervision of us or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, changes to the laws and regulations governing our operations, including those associated with RICs, may cause us to alter our investment strategy in order
to avail ourselves of new or different opportunities or result in the imposition of corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on us. Such changes could result in material
differences to the strategies and plans set forth herein and may shift our investment focus from the areas of expertise of each of the Investment Teams to other types of
investments in which each of the Investment Teams may have little or no expertise or experience. Any such changes, if they occur, could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and the value of your investment.

Over the last several years, there also has been an increase in regulatory attention to the extension of credit outside of the traditional banking sector, raising the possibility
that some portion of the non-bank financial sector will be subject to new regulation. While it cannot be known at this time whether any regulation will be implemented or
what form it will take, increased regulation of non-bank credit extension could negatively impact our operations, cash flows or financial condition, impose additional costs on
us, intensify the regulatory supervision of us or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Uncertainty about presidential administration initiatives could negatively impact our business, financial conditions and results of operations.

The current administration has called for significant changes to U.S. trade, healthcare, immigration, foreign and government regulatory policy. In this regard, there is
significant uncertainty with respect to legislation, regulation and government policy at the federal level, as well as the state and local levels. Recent events have created a
climate of heightened uncertainty and introduced new and difficult-to-quantify macroeconomic and political risks with potentially far-reaching implications. There has been a
corresponding meaningful increase in the uncertainty surrounding interest rates, inflation, foreign exchange rates, trade volumes and fiscal and monetary policy. To the extent
the U.S. Congress or the current administration implements changes to U.S. policy, those changes may impact, among other things, the U.S. and global economy, international
trade and relations, unemployment, immigration, corporate taxes, healthcare, the U.S. regulatory environment, inflation and other areas. Although we cannot predict the
impact, if any, of these changes to our business, they could adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows. Until we know what policy
changes are made and how those changes impact our business and the business of our competitors over the long term, we will not know if, overall, we will benefit from them
or be negatively affected by them.

Changes to U.S. tariff and import/export regulations may have a negative effect on our portfolio companies and, in turn, harm us.

There has been ongoing discussion and commentary regarding potential significant changes to U.S. trade policies, treaties and tariffs. The current U.S. presidential
administration, along with the U.S. Congress, has created significant uncertainty about the future relationship between the United States and other countries with respect to
trade policies, treaties and tariffs. These developments, or the perception that any of them could occur, may have a material adverse effect on global economic conditions and
the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly reduce global trade and, in particular, trade between the impacted nations and the United States. Any of these
factors could depress economic activity and restrict our portfolio companies’ access to suppliers or customers and have a material adverse effect on their business, financial
condition and results of operations, which in turn would negatively impact us.
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Legislative or other actions relating to taxes could have a negative effect on us.

The rules dealing with U.S. federal income taxation are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process and by the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) and the U.S. Treasury Department. Tax reform legislation was passed in late 2017 (the “2017 Tax Act”). Such legislation makes many changes to the Internal Revenue
Code, including, among other things, significant changes to the taxation of business entities, the deductibility of interest expense, and the tax treatment of capital investment.
While we do not foresee that the 2017 Tax Act or any additional tax legislation will have any impact on our ability to qualify for tax treatment as a RIC, we cannot predict with
certainty how any changes in the tax laws, U.S. Treasury regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions interpreting such legislation might affect us, investors or
our portfolio investments.

We anticipate that we will not qualify as a publicly offered RIC immediately after the Private Offering.

We anticipate that we will not qualify as a publicly offered RIC immediately after the Private Offering. If we are not a publicly offered RIC for any period, a non-
corporate shareholder’s allocable portion of our affected expenses, including its management fees, will be treated as an additional distribution to the shareholder and will be
deductible by such shareholder only to the extent permitted under the limitations described below. In particular, these expenses, which are “miscellaneous itemized
deductions”, are not currently deductible by an individual or other non-corporate investor (and, beginning in 2026, will be deductible only to the extent they exceed 2% of
such a shareholder’s adjusted gross income, and are not deductible for alternative minimum tax purposes). We may qualify as a publicly offered RIC in future taxable years,
but we can provide no assurances that we will qualify as a publicly offered RIC for any taxable year.

The Board may change our investment objective, operating policies and strategies without prior notice or shareholder approval, the effects of which may be adverse.

The Board has the authority, except as otherwise prohibited by the 1940 Act, to modify or waive certain of our operating policies and strategies without prior notice and
without shareholder approval. However, absent shareholder approval, we may not change the nature of our business so as to cease to be, or withdraw our election as, a BDC.
We cannot predict the effect any changes to our current operating policies and strategies would have on our business, operating results and the price value of our Shares.
Nevertheless, any such changes could adversely affect our business and impair our ability to make distributions.

Each Adviser can resign on 60 days’ notice, and we may not be able to find a suitable replacement within that time, resulting in a disruption in our operations that could
adversely affect our financial condition, business and results of operations.

Each Adviser has the right to resign under the Advisory Agreements without penalty at any time upon 60 days’ written notice to us, whether we have found a replacement
or not. If an Adviser resigns, we may not be able to find a new investment adviser or hire internal management with similar expertise and ability to provide the same or
equivalent services on acceptable terms within 60 days, or at all. If we are unable to do so quickly, our operations are likely to experience a disruption, our financial condition,
business and results of operations as well as our ability to pay distributions are likely to be adversely affected and the market price of our Shares may decline. In addition, the
coordination of our internal management and investment activities is likely to suffer if we are unable to identify and reach an agreement with a single institution or group of
executives having the expertise possessed by each Adviser and its affiliates. Even if we were able to retain comparable management, whether internal or external, the
integration of such management and their lack of familiarity with our investment objective may result in additional costs and time delays that may adversely affect our
financial condition, business and results of operations.

The Administrator can resign on 60 days’ notice from its role as our administrator under the Administration Agreement, and we may not be able to find a suitable
replacement within that time, resulting in a disruption in our operations that could adversely affect our financial condition, business and results of operations.

The Administrator has the right to resign under the Administration Agreement without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to us, whether we have found a replacement
or not. If the Administrator resigns, we may not be able to find a new administrator or hire internal management with similar expertise and ability to provide the same or
equivalent services on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are unable to do so quickly, our operations are likely to experience a disruption, our financial condition, business and
results of operations as well as our ability to pay distributions are likely to be adversely affected and the market price of our Shares may decline. In addition, the coordination
of our internal management and administrative activities is likely to suffer if we are unable to identify and reach an agreement with a service provider or individuals with
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the expertise possessed by the Administrator. Even if we were able to retain a comparable service provider or individuals to perform such services, whether internal or
external, their integration into our business and lack of familiarity with our investment objective may result in additional costs and time delays that may adversely affect our
financial condition, business and results of operations.

The failure in cybersecurity systems, as well as the occurrence of events unanticipated in our disaster recovery systems and g t continuity planning, could
impair our ability to conduct business effectively.

The occurrence of a disaster such as a cyber-attack, a natural catastrophe, an industrial accident, a terrorist attack or war, events unanticipated in our disaster recovery
systems, or a support failure from external providers, could have an adverse effect on our ability to conduct business and on our results of operations and financial condition,
particularly if those events affect our computer-based data processing, transmission, storage, and retrieval systems or destroy data. If a significant number of our managers
were unavailable in the event of a disaster, our ability to effectively conduct our business could be severely compromised.

The Advisers and third-party service providers with which we do business depend heavily upon computer systems to perform necessary business functions. Despite the
implementation of a variety of security measures, computer systems could be subject to cyber-attacks and unauthorized access, such as physical and electronic break-ins or
unauthorized tampering. The Advisers may experience threats to their data and systems, including malware and computer virus attacks, unauthorized access, system failures
and disruptions. If one or more of these events occurs, it could potentially jeopardize the confidential, proprietary and other information processed and stored in, and
transmitted through, the Advisers’ computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in operations, which could result in damage to our
reputation, financial losses, litigation, increased costs, regulatory penalties and/or customer dissatisfaction or loss.

If the Advisers or the Administrator are unable to maintain the availability of their electronic data systems and safeguard the security of their data, their and our ability to
conduct business may be compromised, which could impair liquidity, disrupt business, damage their and our reputation and cause losses.

Cybersecurity refers to the combination of technologies, processes, and procedures established to protect information technology systems and data from unauthorized
access, attack, or damage. We, the Advisers and the Administrator are subject to cybersecurity risks. Information cybersecurity risks have significantly increased in recent
years and, while we, the Advisers and the Administrator have not experienced any material losses relating to cyber-attacks or other information security breaches, we could
suffer such losses in the future. The Advisers’ and the Administrator’s computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses
or other malicious code and other events that could have a security impact. If one or more of such events occur, this potentially could jeopardize confidential and other
information, including nonpublic personal information and sensitive business data, processed and stored in, and transmitted through, the Advisers’ and the Administrator’s
computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our operations or the operations of our customers or counterparties. This could result in
significant losses, reputational damage, litigation, regulatory fines or penalties, or otherwise adversely affect ours, the Advisers’ and the Administrator’s business, financial
condition or results of operations. Privacy and information security laws and regulation changes, and compliance with those changes, may result in cost increases due to
system changes and the development of new administrative processes. In the future, the Advisers or the Administrator may be required to expend significant additional
resources to modify their protective measures and to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures arising from operational and security risks. In addition, we,
the Advisers and the Administrator may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are not fully insured.

Third parties with which we, the Advisers and the Administrator do business may also be sources of cybersecurity or other technological risks. We outsource certain
functions, and these relationships allow for the storage and processing of our information, as well as customer, counterparty, employee and borrower information. While we
engage in actions to reduce our exposure resulting from outsourcing, ongoing threats may result in unauthorized access, loss, exposure or destruction of data, or other
cybersecurity incidents, with increased costs and other consequences, including those described above.

We may incur lender liability as a result of our lending activities.
In recent years, a number of judicial decisions have upheld the right of borrowers and others to sue lending institutions on the basis of various evolving legal theories,

collectively termed “lender liability.” Generally, lender liability is founded on the premise that a lender has either violated a duty, whether implied or contractual, of good
faith and fair dealing owed to the borrower or has assumed a degree of control over the borrower resulting in the creation of a fiduciary duty owed to
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the borrower or its other creditors or shareholders. We may be subject to allegations of lender liability, which could be time-consuming and expensive to defend and result in
significant liability.

We may incur liability as a result of providing managerial assistance to our portfolio companies.

In the course of providing significant managerial assistance to certain portfolio companies, certain of our management and directors may serve as directors on the boards
of such companies. To the extent that litigation arises out of investments in these companies, our management and directors may be named as defendants in such litigation,
which could result in an expenditure of our funds, through our indemnification of such officers and directors, and the diversion of management time and resources.

Churchill may not be able to achieve the same or similar returns as those achieved by our senior management and investment personnel while they were employed at
prior positions.

The track record and achievements of the senior investment professionals of Churchill are not necessarily indicative of future results that will be achieved by Churchill.
As a result, Churchill may not be able to achieve the same or similar returns as those previously achieved by the senior investment professionals of Churchill.

Risks Related to Our Investments
Economic recessions or downturns could impair our portfolio companies and harm our operating results.

Many of our portfolio companies will be susceptible to economic slowdowns or recessions and may be unable to repay our loans during these periods. Therefore, any
non-performing assets are likely to increase and the value of our portfolio is likely to decrease during these periods. Adverse economic conditions may decrease the value of
collateral securing some of our loans and the value of our equity investments and could lead to financial losses in our portfolio and a corresponding decrease in revenues, net
income and assets.

Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase our funding costs, limit our access to the capital markets or result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us.
These events could prevent us from increasing our investments and harm our operating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financial or operating covenants imposed by us or other lenders could lead to defaults and, potentially, acceleration of its loans
and foreclosure on its assets, which could trigger cross-defaults under other agreements and jeopardize our portfolio company’s ability to meet its obligations under the debt
securities that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extent necessary to seek recovery upon default or to negotiate new terms with a defaulting portfolio company. It is
possible that we could become subject to a lender liability claim, including as a result of actions taken if we or Churchill renders significant managerial assistance to the
borrower. Furthermore, if one of our portfolio companies were to file for bankruptcy protection, even though we may have structured our investment as senior secured debt,
depending on the facts and circumstances, including the extent to which we or Churchill provided managerial assistance to that portfolio company or otherwise exercise
control over it, a bankruptcy court might re-characterize our debt as a form of equity and subordinate all or a portion of our claim to claims of other creditors.

Market conditions have materially and adversely affected debt and equity capital markets in the United States and around the world.

In the past, the global capital markets experienced periods of disruption resulting in increasing spreads between the yields realized on riskier debt securities and those
realized on securities perceived as being risk-free and a lack of liquidity in parts of the debt capital markets, significant write-offs in the financial services sector relating to
subprime mortgages and the re-pricing of credit risk in the broadly syndicated market. These events, along with the deterioration of the housing market, illiquid market
conditions, declining business and consumer confidence and the failure of major financial institutions in the United States, led to a general decline in economic conditions.
This economic decline materially and adversely affected the broader financial and credit markets and reduced the availability of debt and equity capital for the market as a
whole and to financial firms in particular. If such a period of disruption were to occur in the future, to the extent that we wish to use debt to fund our investments, the debt
capital that will be available to us, if at all, may be at a higher cost, and on terms and conditions that may be less favorable, than what we expect, which could negatively
affect our financial performance and results. A prolonged period of market illiquidity may cause us to reduce the volume of loans we originate and/or fund below historical
levels and adversely affect the value of our portfolio investments, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations. The spread between the yields realized on riskier debt securities
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and those realized on securities perceived as being risk-free has remained narrow on a relative basis recently. If these spreads were to widen or if there were deterioration of
market conditions, these events could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our investments in leveraged portfolio companies may be risky, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Investment in leveraged companies involves a number of significant risks. Leveraged companies in which we invest may have limited financial resources and may be
unable to meet their obligations under their debt securities that we hold. Such developments may be accompanied by a deterioration in the value of any collateral and a
reduction in the likelihood of our realizing any guarantees that we may have obtained in connection with our investment. In addition, our junior secured loans are generally
subordinated to Senior Loans. As such, other creditors may rank senior to us in the event of an insolvency.

We intend to invest in middle-market, privately owned companies, which may present a greater risk of loss than loans to larger companies.

We intend to invest in loans to middle-market, privately owned companies. Compared to larger, publicly traded firms, these companies generally have more limited
access to capital and higher funding costs, may be in a weaker financial position and may need more capital to expand, compete and operate their business. In addition, many
of these companies may be unable to obtain financing from public capital markets or from traditional sources, such as commercial banks. Accordingly, loans made to these
types of borrowers may entail higher risks than loans made to companies that have larger businesses, greater financial resources or are otherwise able to access traditional
credit sources on more attractive terms.

Investing in middle-market companies involves a number of significant risks, including that middle-market companies:

* may have shorter operating histories, narrower product lines and smaller market shares than larger businesses, which tend to render them more vulnerable to
competitors’ actions and market conditions, as well as general economic downturns;

» are more likely to depend on the management talents and efforts of a small group of persons; therefore, the death, disability, resignation or termination of one or
more of these persons could have a material adverse impact on our portfolio company and, in turn, on us;

* typically have more limited access to the capital markets, which may hinder their ability to refinance
borrowings;

»  will be unable to refinance or repay at maturity the unamortized loan balance as we structure our loans such that a significant balance remains due at
maturity;

»  generally have less predictable operating results, may be particularly vulnerable to changes in customer preferences or market conditions, depend on one or a limited
number of major customers;

* may from time to time be parties to litigation, may be engaged in rapidly changing businesses with products subject to a substantial risk of obsolescence, and may
require substantial additional capital to support their operations, finance expansion or maintain their competitive position; and

»  generally have less publicly available information about their businesses, operations and financial condition. If we are unable to uncover all material information
about these companies, we may not make a fully informed investment decision, and may lose all or part of our investment.

Any of these factors or changes thereto could impair a portfolio company’s financial condition, results of operation, cash flow or result in other adverse events, such as
bankruptcy, any of which could limit a portfolio company’s ability to make scheduled payments on loans from us. This, in turn, may lead to their inability to make payments
on outstanding borrowings, which could result in losses in our loan portfolio and a decrease in our net interest income and book value.

We may be subject to risks associated with our investments in Senior Loans.
We intend to invest in Senior Loans. Senior Loans are usually rated below investment grade or may also be unrated. As a result, the risks associated with senior secured

loans may be considered by credit rating agencies to be similar to the risks of below investment grade fixed income instruments, although Senior Loans are senior and secured
in contrast to other below investment grade fixed income instruments, which are often subordinated or unsecured. Investment in Senior Loans rated
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below investment grade is considered speculative because of the credit risk of their issuers. Such companies are more likely than investment grade issuers to default on their
payments of interest and principal owed to us, and such defaults could have a material adverse effect on our performance. An economic downturn would generally lead to a
higher non-payment rate, and a Senior Loan may lose significant market value before a default occurs. Moreover, any specific collateral used to secure a Senior Loans may
decline in value or become illiquid, which would adversely affect the Senior Loan’s value.

There may be less readily available and reliable information about most senior secured loans than is the case for many other types of securities, including securities
issued in transactions registered under the 1933 Act or registered under the 1934 Act. As a result, Churchill will rely primarily on its own evaluation of a borrower’s credit
quality rather than on any available independent sources. Therefore, we will be particularly dependent on the analytical abilities of Churchill.

In general, the secondary trading market for senior secured loans is not well developed. No active trading market may exist for certain senior secured loans, which may
make it difficult to value them. Illiquidity and adverse market conditions may mean that we may not be able to sell senior secured loans quickly or at a fair price. To the extent
that a secondary market does exist for certain senior secured loans, the market for them may be subject to irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended trade
settlement periods.

We may be subject to risks associated with our investment in junior debt securities.

We may invest in junior debt securities. Although certain junior debt securities are typically senior to common stock or other equity securities, the equity and debt
securities in which we will invest may be subordinated to substantial amounts of senior debt, all or a significant portion of which may be secured. Such subordinated
investments may be characterized by greater credit risks than those associated with the senior obligations of the same issuer. These subordinated securities may not be
protected by all of the financial covenants, such as limitations upon additional indebtedness, typically protecting such senior debt. Holders of junior debt generally are not
entitled to receive full payments in bankruptcy or liquidation until senior creditors are paid in full. Holders of equity are not entitled to payments until all creditors are paid in
full. In addition, the remedies available to holders of junior debt are normally limited by restrictions benefitting senior creditors. In the event any portfolio company cannot
generate adequate cash flow to meet senior debt service, we may suffer a partial or total loss of capital invested.

We may be subject to risks associated with “covenant-lite” loans.

Certain loans in which we invest may be “covenant-lite.” We use the term “covenant-lite” loans to refer generally to loans that do not have a complete set of financial
maintenance covenants. Generally, “covenant-lite” loans provide borrower companies more freedom to negatively impact lenders because their covenants are incurrence-
based, which means they are only tested and can only be breached following an affirmative action of the borrower, rather than by a deterioration in the borrower’s financial
condition. Accordingly, to the extent we are exposed to “covenant-lite” loans, we may have a greater risk of loss on such investments as compared to investments in or
exposure to loans with financial maintenance covenants.

We may be subject to risks associated with our investments in unitranche secured loans and securities.

We may invest in unitranche secured loans, which are a combination of senior secured and junior secured debt in the same facility. Unitranche secured loans provide all
of the debt needed to finance a leveraged buyout or other corporate transaction, both senior and junior, but generally in a first lien position, while the borrower generally pays
a blended, uniform interest rate rather than different rates for different tranches. Unitranche secured debt generally requires payments of both principal and interest throughout
the life of the loan. Generally, we expect these securities to carry a blended yield that is between senior secured and junior debt interest rates. Unitranche secured loans
provide a number of advantages for borrowers, including the following: simplified documentation, greater certainty of execution and reduced decision-making complexity
throughout the life of the loan. In some cases, a portion of the total interest may accrue or be paid in kind. Because unitranche secured loans combine characteristics of senior
and junior financing, unitranche secured loans have risks similar to the risks associated with senior secured and second-lien loans and junior debt in varying degrees according
to the combination of loan characteristics of the unitranche secured loan.

We may be subject to risks associated with our investment in equity-related securities.
Our investments may include equity-related securities, such as rights and warrants that may be converted into or exchanged for the issuer’s common stock or the cash

value of the issuer’s common stock. The equity interests we receive may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accordingly, we may not be able to realize
gains from our equity interests, and any gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests may not be sufficient to offset any
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other losses we experience. We will generally have little, if any, control over the timing of any gains we may realize from our equity investments. We may also be unable to
realize any value if a portfolio company does not have a liquidity event, such as a sale of the business, recapitalization or public offering, which would allow us to sell the
underlying equity interests. We may be unable to exercise any put rights we acquire, which would grant us the right to sell our equity securities back to the portfolio company,
for the consideration provided in its investment documents if the issuer is in financial distress. Additionally, we may make equity or equity-related investments alongside a
Senior Loan investment, which may result in conflicts related to the rights of those investments.

Loans may become nonperforming for a variety of reasons.

A loan or debt obligation may become non-performing for a variety of reasons. Such non-performing loans may require substantial workout negotiations or restructuring
that may entail, among other things, a substantial reduction in the interest rate, a substantial write-down of the principal amount of the loan and/or the deferral of payments. In
addition, such negotiations or restructuring may be quite extensive and protracted over time, and therefore may result in substantial uncertainty with respect to the ultimate
recovery. We may also incur additional expenses to the extent that it is required to seek recovery upon a default on a loan or participate in the restructuring of such obligation.
The liquidity for defaulted loans may be limited, and to the extent that defaulted loans are sold, it is highly unlikely that the proceeds from such sale will be equal to the
amount of unpaid principal and interest thereon. In connection with any such defaults, workouts or restructuring, although we exercise voting rights with respect to an
individual loan, we may not be able to exercise votes in respect of a sufficient percentage of voting rights with respect to such loan to determine the outcome of such vote.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may adversely affect our business.

All of our assets may be invested in illiquid securities, and a substantial portion of our investments in leveraged companies will be subject to legal and other restrictions
on resale or will otherwise be less liquid than more broadly traded public securities. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments
when desired. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we have previously
recorded these investments. As a result, we do not expect to achieve liquidity in our investments in the near-term. However, to maintain the election to be regulated as a BDC
and qualify as a RIC, we may have to dispose of investments if we do not satisfy one or more of the applicable criteria under the respective regulatory frameworks. We may
also face other restrictions on our ability to liquidate an investment in a portfolio company to the extent that we or any of the Advisers have material nonpublic information
regarding such portfolio company.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate debt markets may adversely affect the fair value of our portfolio investments, reducing our NAV through increased net
unrealized depreciation.

As a BDC, we will be required to carry our investments at market value or, if no market value is ascertainable, at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board.
When an external event such as a purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs, we use the pricing indicated by the external event to corroborate our
valuation. We record decreases in the market values or fair values of our investments as unrealized depreciation. Declines in prices and liquidity in the corporate debt markets
may result in significant net unrealized depreciation in our portfolio. The effect of all of these factors on our portfolio may reduce our NAV by increasing net unrealized
depreciation in our portfolio. Depending on market conditions, we could incur substantial realized losses and may suffer additional unrealized losses in future periods, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our portfolio companies may prepay loans, which prepayment may reduce stated yields if capital returned cannot be invested in transactions with equal or greater
expected yields.

The loans that will underlie our portfolio may be callable at any time, and many of them can be repaid with no premium to par. It is not clear at this time when or if any
loan might be called. Whether a loan is called will depend both on the continued positive performance of the portfolio company and the existence of favorable financing
market conditions that allow such company the ability to replace existing financing with less expensive capital. As market conditions change frequently, it is unknown when,
and if, this may be possible for each portfolio company. Risks associated with owning loans include the fact that prepayments may occur at any time, sometimes without
premium or penalty, and that the exercise of prepayment rights during periods of declining spreads could cause us to reinvest prepayment proceeds in lower-yielding
instruments. In the case of some of these loans, having the loan called early may reduce our achievable yield if the capital returned cannot be invested in transactions with
equal or greater expected yields.
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Our portfolio may be exposed in part to one or more specific industries, which may subject us to a risk of significant loss in a particular investment or investments if
there is a downturn in that particular industry.

Our portfolio may have significant exposure to one or more specific industries. A downturn in any particular industry in which we are invested could significantly impact
the aggregate returns we realize. If an industry in which we have significant investments suffers from adverse business or economic conditions, as these industries have to
varying degrees, a material portion of our investment portfolio could be affected adversely, which, in turn, could adversely affect our financial position and results of
operations.

To the extent original issue discount and payment-in-kind interest constitute a portion of our income, we will be exposed to typical risks associated with such income
being required to be included in taxable and accounting income prior to receipt of cash representing such income.

Our investments may include original issue discount, or OID, components and may include PIK interest or PIK dividend components. To the extent original issue
discount constitutes a portion of our income, we are exposed to typical risks associated with such income being required to be included in taxable and accounting income
prior to receipt of cash, including the following:

*  We must include in income each year a portion of the OID that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardless of whether cash representing such income is
received by us in the same taxable year. Because any OID or other amounts accrued will be included in investment company taxable income for the year of the
accrual, we may be required to make a distribution to our shareholders in order to satisfy our annual distribution requirements, even though we will not have received
any corresponding cash amount. As a result, we may have to sell some of our investments at times or at prices that would not be advantageous to us, raise additional
debt or equity capital or forgo new investment opportunities.

*  The higher yield of OID instruments reflect the payment deferral and credit risk associated with these
instruments.

*  Even if the accounting conditions for income accrual are met, the borrower could still default when our actual collection is supposed to occur at the maturity of the
obligation.

*  OID instruments may have unreliable valuations because their continuing accruals require continuing judgments about the collectability of the deferred payments and
the value of the collateral.

* OID instruments generally represent a significantly higher credit risk than coupon
loans.

*  OID income received by us may create uncertainty about the source of our cash distributions to shareholders. For accounting purposes, any cash distributions to
shareholders representing OID or market discount income are not treated as coming from paid-in capital, even though the cash to pay them comes from the offering
proceeds. Thus, although a distribution of OID or market discount interest comes from the cash invested by the shareholders, Section 19(a) of the 1940 Act does not
require that shareholders be given notice of this fact by reporting it as a return of capital.

*  The deferral of PIK interest has a negative impact on liquidity, as it represents non-cash income that may require distribution of cash dividends to shareholders in
order to maintain our RIC status. In addition, the deferral of PIK interest also increases the loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio at a compounding rate, thus, increasing the
risk that we will absorb a loss in the event of foreclosure.

*  OID and market discount instruments create the risk of non-refundable incentive fee payments to the Adviser based on non-cash accruals that we may not ultimately
realize.

We will be a non-diversified investment company within the meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we are not limited by the 1940 Act with respect to the proportion of
our assets that may be invested in securities of a single issuer.

We will be classified as a non-diversified investment company within the meaning of the 1940 Act, which means that we are not limited by the 1940 Act with respect to
the proportion of our assets that we may invest in securities of a single issuer. Our portfolio may be concentrated in a limited number of portfolio companies and industries.
Beyond the asset diversification requirements associated with our qualification as a RIC under the Code, we will not have fixed guidelines for diversification. To the extent
that we assume large positions in the securities of a small number of issuers, our NAV may
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fluctuate to a greater extent than that of a diversified investment company as a result of changes in the financial condition or the market’s assessment of the issuer. We may
also be more susceptible to any single economic or regulatory occurrence than a diversified investment company. As a result, the aggregate returns we realize may be
significantly adversely affected if a small number of investments perform poorly or if we need to write down the value of any one investment. Additionally, while we are not
targeting any specific industries, our investments may be concentrated in relatively few industries. As a result, a downturn in any particular industry in which we are invested
could also significantly impact the aggregate returns we realize.

We may hold the debt securities of leveraged companies that may, due to the significant volatility of such companies, enter into bankruptcy proceedings.

Leveraged companies may experience bankruptcy or similar financial distress. The bankruptcy process has a number of significant inherent risks. Many events in a
bankruptcy proceeding are the product of contested matters and adversary proceedings and are beyond the control of the creditors. A bankruptcy filing by a portfolio company
may adversely and permanently affect the portfolio company. If the proceeding is converted to a liquidation, the value of the issuer may not equal the liquidation value that
was believed to exist at the time of the investment. The duration of a bankruptcy proceeding is also difficult to predict, and a creditor’s return on investment can be adversely
affected by delays until the plan of reorganization or liquidation ultimately becomes effective. The administrative costs in connection with a bankruptcy proceeding are
frequently high and would be paid out of the debtor’s estate prior to any return to creditors. Because the standards for classification of claims under bankruptcy law are vague,
our influence with respect to the class of securities or other obligations we own may be lost by increases in the number and amount of claims in the same class or by different
classification and treatment. In the early stages of the bankruptcy process, it is often difficult to estimate the extent of, or even to identify, any contingent claims that might be
made. In addition, certain claims that have priority by law (for example, claims for taxes) may be substantial.

Our failure to make follow-on investments in our portfolio companies could impair the value of our portfolio.
Following an initial investment in a portfolio company, we may make additional investments in that portfolio company as “follow-on” investments, in seeking to:

e increase or maintain in whole or in part our position as a creditor or equity ownership percentage in a portfolio
company;

*  exercise warrants, options or convertible securities that were acquired in the original or subsequent financing;
or

e preserve or enhance the value of our
investment.

We have discretion to make follow-on investments, subject to the availability of capital resources and the provisions of the 1940 Act. Failure on our part to make follow-
on investments may, in some circumstances, jeopardize the continued viability of a portfolio company and our initial investment, or may result in a missed opportunity for us
to increase our participation in a successful operation. Even if we have sufficient capital to make a desired follow-on investment, we may elect not to make a follow-on
investment because we may not want to increase our level of risk, because we prefer other opportunities or because we are inhibited by compliance with BDC requirements or
the desire to maintain our RIC status. Our ability to make follow-on investments may also be limited by Churchill’s allocation policy.

Because we will not hold controlling equity interests in the majority of our portfolio companies, we may not be able to exercise control over our portfolio companies or to
prevent decisions by management of our portfolio companies, which could decrease the value of our investments.

We do not expect to hold controlling equity positions in the majority of our portfolio companies. Our debt investments may provide limited control features such as
restrictions, for example, on the ability of a portfolio company to assume additional debt, or to use the proceeds of our investment for other than certain specified purposes.
“Control” under the 1940 Act is presumed at more than 25% equity ownership, and may also be present at lower ownership levels where we provide managerial assistance.
When we do not acquire a controlling equity position in a portfolio company, we may be subject to the risk that a portfolio company may make business decisions with which
we disagree, and that the management and/or shareholders of a portfolio company may take risks or otherwise act in ways that are adverse to our interests. Due to the lack of
liquidity of the debt and equity investments that we typically hold in our portfolio companies, we may not be able to dispose of our investments in the event we disagree with
the actions of a portfolio company and may therefore suffer a decrease in the value of our investments.
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Defaults by our portfolio companies will harm our operating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financial or operating covenants imposed by us or other lenders could lead to defaults and, potentially, termination of its loans and
foreclosure on its assets. This could trigger cross-defaults under other agreements and jeopardize such portfolio company’s ability to meet its obligations under the debt or
equity securities that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extent necessary to seek recovery upon default or to negotiate new terms, which may include the waiver of
certain financial covenants, with a defaulting portfolio company.

In addition, many of our investments will likely have a principal amount outstanding at maturity, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the borrower is unable to
refinance or repay.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, our investments in such comp

Although we expect that our investments will be primarily secured, some investments may be unsecured and subordinated to substantive amounts of senior indebtedness.
The portfolio companies in which we invest usually have, or may be permitted to incur, other debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, the debt securities in which we invest.
By their terms, such debt instruments may provide that the holders are entitled to receive payment of interest or principal on or before the dates on which we are entitled to
receive payments in respect of the debt securities in which we invest. Also, in the event of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a portfolio
company, holders of debt instruments ranking senior to our investment in that portfolio company would typically be entitled to receive payment in full before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. After repaying senior creditors, the portfolio company may not have any remaining assets to use for repaying its obligation to us. In
the case of debt ranking equally with debt securities in which we invest, we would have to share any distributions on an equal and ratable basis with other creditors holding
such debt in the event of an insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of the relevant portfolio company.

Additionally, certain loans that we make to portfolio companies may be secured on a second-priority basis by the same collateral securing senior secured debt of such
companies. The first-priority liens on the collateral will secure the portfolio company’s obligations under any outstanding senior debt and may secure certain other future debt
that may be permitted to be incurred by the portfolio company under the agreements governing the loans. The holders of obligations secured by first-priority liens on the
collateral will generally control the liquidation of, and be entitled to receive proceeds from, any realization of the collateral to repay their obligations in full before us. In
addition, the value of the collateral in the event of liquidation will depend on market and economic conditions, the availability of buyers and other factors. There can be no
assurance that the proceeds, if any, from sales of all of the collateral would be sufficient to satisfy the loan obligations secured by the second-priority liens after payment in
full of all obligations secured by the first-priority liens on the collateral. If such proceeds were not sufficient to repay amounts outstanding under the loan obligations secured
by the second-priority liens, then, to the extent not repaid from the proceeds of the sale of the collateral, we will only have an unsecured claim against the portfolio company’s
remaining assets, if any.

The rights we may have with respect to the collateral securing the loans we make to our portfolio companies with senior debt outstanding may also be limited pursuant to
the terms of one or more intercreditor agreements that we enter into with the holders of such senior debt, including in unitranche transactions. Under a typical intercreditor
agreement, at any time that obligations that have the benefit of the first-priority liens are outstanding, any of the following actions that may be taken in respect of the collateral
will be at the direction of the holders of the obligations secured by the first-priority liens:

« the ability to cause the commencement of enforcement proceedings against the
collateral;

* the ability to control the conduct of such
proceedings;

* the approval of amendments to collateral
documents;

¢ releases of liens on the collateral;
and

 waivers of past defaults under collateral
documents.

We may not have the ability to control or direct such actions, even if our rights are adversely affected. In addition, a bankruptcy court may choose not to enforce an
intercreditor agreement or other agreement with creditors.

We may also make unsecured loans to portfolio companies, meaning that such loans will not benefit from any interest in collateral of such companies. Liens on such
portfolio companies’ collateral, if any, will secure the portfolio company’s
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obligations under its outstanding secured debt and may secure certain future debt that is permitted to be incurred by the portfolio company under its secured loan agreements.
The holders of obligations secured by such liens will generally control the liquidation of, and be entitled to receive proceeds from, any realization of such collateral to repay
their obligations in full before us. In addition, the value of such collateral in the event of liquidation will depend on market and economic conditions, the availability of buyers
and other factors. There can be no assurance that the proceeds, if any, from sales of such collateral would be sufficient to satisfy our unsecured loan obligations after payment
in full of all secured loan obligations. If such proceeds were not sufficient to repay the outstanding secured loan obligations, then our unsecured claims would rank equally
with the unpaid portion of such secured creditors’ claims against the portfolio company’s remaining assets, if any.

We may also make subordinated investments that rank below other obligations of the obligor in right of payment. Subordinated investments are generally more volatile
than secured loans and are subject to greater risk of default than senior obligations as a result of adverse changes in the financial condition of the obligor or in general
economic conditions. If we make a subordinated investment in a portfolio company, the portfolio company may be highly leveraged, and its relatively high LTV ratio may
create increased risks that its operations might not generate sufficient cash flow to service all of its debt obligations.

We may be subject to risks associated with syndicated loans.

From time to time, our investments may consist of syndicated loans. Under the documentation for such loans, a financial institution or other entity typically is designated
as the administrative agent and/or collateral agent. This agent is granted a lien on any collateral on behalf of the other lenders and distributes payments on the indebtedness as
they are received. The agent is the party responsible for administering and enforcing the loan and generally may take actions only in accordance with the instructions of a
majority or two-thirds in commitments and/or principal amount of the associated indebtedness. In most cases, we do not expect to hold a sufficient amount of the indebtedness
to be able to compel any actions by the agent. Accordingly, we may be precluded from directing such actions unless we act together with other holders of the indebtedness. If
we are unable to direct such actions, we cannot assure you that the actions taken will be in our best interests.

There is a risk that a loan agent may become bankrupt or insolvent. Such an event would delay, and possibly impair, any enforcement actions undertaken by holders of
the associated indebtedness, including attempts to realize upon the collateral securing the associated indebtedness and/or direct the agent to take actions against the related
obligor or the collateral securing the associated indebtedness and actions to realize on proceeds of payments made by obligors that are in the possession or control of any other
financial institution. In addition, we may be unable to remove the agent in circumstances in which removal would be in our best interests. Moreover, agented loans typically
allow for the agent to resign with certain advance notice.

We may be subject to risks associated with our investments in special situation companies.

We may make investments in companies involved in (or the target of) acquisition attempts or tender offers, or companies involved in spin-offs and similar transactions. In
any investment opportunity involving any such type of business enterprise, there exists the risk that the transaction in which such business enterprise is involved will either be
unsuccessful, take considerable time or result in a distribution of cash or a new security, the value of which will be less than the purchase price to us of the security or other
financial instrument in respect of which such distribution is received. Similarly, if an anticipated transaction does not in fact occur, we may be required to sell our investment
at a loss. In connection with such transactions (or otherwise), we may purchase securities on a when-issued basis, which means that delivery and payment take place sometime
after the date of the commitment to purchase and are often conditioned upon the occurrence of a subsequent event, such as approval and consummation of a merger,
reorganization or debt restructuring. The purchase price and/or interest rate receivable with respect to a when-issued security are fixed when we enter into the commitment.
Such securities are subject to changes in market value prior to their delivery.

The disposition of our investments may result in contingent liabilities.
A significant portion of our investments may involve private securities. In connection with the disposition of an investment in private securities, we may be required to
make representations about the business and financial affairs of the portfolio company typical of those made in connection with the sale of a business. We may also be

required to indemnify the purchasers of such investment to the extent that any such representations turn out to be inaccurate or with respect to potential liabilities. These
arrangements may result in contingent liabilities that ultimately result in funding obligations that we must satisfy through our return of distributions previously made to us.
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We may not realize gains from our equity investments.

We may in the future make investments that include warrants or other equity or equity-related securities. In addition, we may from time to time make non-control, equity
co-investments in companies in conjunction with private equity sponsors. Our goal is ultimately to realize gains upon our disposition of such equity interests. However, the
equity interests we receive may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accordingly, we may not be able to realize gains from our equity interests, and any
gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests may not be sufficient to offset any other losses we experience. We also may be unable to realize any value if
a portfolio company does not have a liquidity event, such as a sale of the business, recapitalization or public offering, which would allow us to sell the underlying equity
interests. We often seek puts or similar rights to give us the right to sell our equity securities back to the portfolio company issuer. We may be unable to exercise these put
rights for the consideration provided in our investment documents if the issuer is in financial distress.

Risks Relating to Our Shares
We may not be able to pay distributions, our distributions may not grow over time and/or a portion of our distributions may be a return of capital.

We intend to pay distributions to our shareholders. We cannot assure you that we will achieve investment results that will allow us to sustain a specified level of cash
distributions or make periodic increases in cash distributions. Our ability to pay distributions might be adversely affected by, among other things, the impact of one or more of
the risk factors described herein. In addition, the inability to satisfy the asset coverage test applicable to us as a BDC could limit our ability to pay distributions. All
distributions will be paid at the discretion of the Board and will depend on our earnings, our financial condition, maintenance of our RIC status, compliance with applicable
BDC regulations and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant from time to time. We cannot assure you that we will continue to pay distributions to our
shareholders.

When we make distributions, we will be required to determine the extent to which such distributions are paid out of current or accumulated earnings and profits.
Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated as a non-taxable return of capital to the extent of an investor’s basis in our Shares and,
assuming that an investor holds our Shares as a capital asset, thereafter as a capital gain.

We may choose to pay a portion of our dividends in our own Shares, in which case you may be required to pay tax in excess of the cash you receive.

We intend to adopt a dividend reinvestment plan that will provide for reinvestment of our dividends and other distributions on behalf of our shareholders that elect to opt
in to such plan. We may distribute taxable dividends that are payable in part in our Shares. Taxable shareholders receiving such dividends will be required to include the full
amount of the dividend as ordinary income (or as long-term capital gain or qualified dividend income to the extent such distribution is properly reported as such) to the extent
of our current and accumulated earnings and profits for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The tax rate for ordinary income will vary depending on a shareholder’s particular
characteristics. For individuals, the top marginal federal ordinary income tax rate effective beginning in 2018 is 37%. To the extent distributions paid by us to non-corporate
shareholders (including individuals) are attributable to dividends from U.S. corporations and certain qualified foreign corporations, such distributions generally will be eligible
for a maximum qualified dividend federal tax rate of 20%. However, in this regard, it is anticipated that distributions paid by us will generally not be attributable to such
dividends and, therefore, generally will not qualify for the preferential federal tax rate. Distributions of our net capital gains (which is generally our realized net long-term
capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital losses) properly reported by us as “capital gain dividends” will be taxable to a U.S. shareholder as long-term capital
gains currently at a maximum federal tax rate of 20%.

As aresult of receiving dividends in the form of our Shares, a U.S. shareholder may be required to pay tax with respect to such dividends in excess of any cash received.
If a U.S. shareholder sells the Shares it receives as a dividend in order to pay this tax, the sales proceeds may be less than the amount included in income with respect to the
dividend, depending on the market price of our Shares at the time of the sale. Furthermore, with respect to non-U.S. shareholders, we may be required to withhold federal tax
with respect to such dividends, including in respect of all or a portion of such dividend that is payable in Shares. In addition, if a significant number of our shareholders
determine to sell our Shares in order to pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put downward pressure on the value of our Shares.

In addition, as discussed above, our loans may contain a PIK interest provision. The PIK interest, computed at the contractual rate specified in each loan agreement, is
added to the principal balance of the loan and recorded as interest income.
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To avoid the imposition of corporate-level U.S. federal income tax, we will need to make sufficient distributions, a portion of which may be paid in our Shares, regardless of
whether our recognition of income is accompanied by a corresponding receipt of cash.

Investing in our Shares may involve an above-average degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with our investment objective may result in a higher amount of risk than alternative investment options and a higher risk of
volatility or loss of principal. Our investments in portfolio companies may be highly speculative and aggressive and, therefore, an investment in our Shares may not be
suitable for someone with lower risk tolerance.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law and our Charter and Bylaws could deter takeover attempts and have an adverse effect on the price of our Shares.

The Maryland General Corporation Law and our Charter and Bylaws contain provisions that may discourage, delay or make more difficult a change in control of us or the
removal of our directors. We are subject to the Maryland Business Combination Act, subject to any applicable requirements of the 1940 Act. The Board has adopted a
resolution exempting from the Maryland Business Combination Act any business combination between us and any other person, subject to prior approval of such business
combination by the Board, including approval by a majority of our independent directors. If the resolution exempting business combinations is repealed or the Board does not
approve a business combination, the Maryland Business Combination Act may discourage third parties from trying to acquire control of us and increase the difficulty of
consummating such an offer. The SEC staff has taken the position that, under the 1940 Act, an investment company may not avail itself of the Maryland Control Share
Acquisition Act. As a result, we will amend our Bylaws to be subject to the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, only if the Board determines that it would be in our best
interests and, after notification, the SEC staff does not object to our determination that our being subject to the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act does not conflict with
the 1940 Act. If such conditions are met, and we amend our Bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, the Maryland Control Share
Acquisition Act also may make it more difficult for a third party to obtain control of us and increase the difficulty of consummating such a transaction.

We intend to adopt certain measures that may make it difficult for a third-party to obtain control of us, including provisions of our Charter classifying the Board in three
staggered terms and authorizing the Board to classify or reclassify shares of our capital stock in one or more classes or series and to cause the issuance of additional shares of
our stock. These provisions, as well as other provisions of our Charter and Bylaws, may delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change in control that might otherwise be in
the best interests of our shareholders.

There are restrictions on the ability of holders of our Shares to transfer such Shares in excess of the restrictions typically associated with a private offering of securities
under Regulation D and other exemptions from registration under the Securities Act, and these restrictions could limit the liquidity of an investment in our Shares and
the price at which holders may be able to sell the Shares.

We are relying on an exemption from registration under the 1933 Act and state securities laws in offering our Shares pursuant to a subscription agreement. As such,
absent an effective registration statement covering our Shares, such shares may be resold only in transactions that are exempt from the registration requirements of the 1933
Act and with the prior written consent of the Adviser. Our Shares will have limited transferability which could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of
the Company that might involve a premium price for our securities or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.

Risks Related to this Offering
Shareholders may be subject to filing requirements under the 1934 Act as a result of an investment in us.

Because our Shares will be registered under the 1934 Act, ownership information for any person who beneficially owns 5% or more of our Shares must be disclosed in a
Schedule 13D or Schedule 13G or other filings with the SEC. Beneficial ownership for these purposes is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and includes
having voting or investment power over the securities. In some circumstances, investors who choose to reinvest their dividends may see their percentage stake in us increased
to more than 5%, thus triggering this filing requirement. Although we provide in our quarterly financial statements the amount of outstanding Shares and the amount of the
investor’s Shares, the responsibility for determining the filing obligation and preparing the filing remains with the investor. In addition, owners of 10% or more of our Shares
are subject to reporting obligations under Section 16(a) of the 1934 Act.
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Shareholders may be subject to the short-swing profits rules under the 1934 Act as a result of an investment in us.

Persons who hold more than 10% of a class of our Shares may be subject to Section 16(b) of the 1934 Act, which recaptures for the benefit of the issuer profits from the
purchase and sale of registered Shares within a six-month period.

We have broad discretion over the use of proceeds of this offering and will use proceeds in part to satisfy operating expenses.
We have significant flexibility in applying the proceeds of this offering and may use the net proceeds from this offering in ways with which you may not agree, or for
purposes other than those contemplated at this time. We will also pay operating expenses, and may pay other expenses such as due diligence expenses of potential new

investments, from net proceeds. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that net proceeds of this offering, pending full investment, are
used to pay operating expenses.
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ITEM 2. FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
[To be updated after consummation of the Acquisition to include comparative information and MD&A required by Regulation S-K]
Overview

We were formed on March 13, 2018, as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware and we converted into a corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of Maryland on June 18, 2019. We are a specialty finance company organized to maximize the total return to our shareholders primarily in the form of
current income achieved through investing in senior secured loans to private equity-owned U.S. middle market companies.

We intend to elect to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act and intend to elect to be treated, and intend to qualify annually thereafter, as a RIC under Subchapter M
of the Code for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a BDC and a RIC, we will be required to comply with certain regulatory requirements.

Immediately prior to the Company’s election to be regulated as a BDC, the Company, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, intends to complete the
Acquisition, pursuant to which it will acquire all of the equity interests of the SPV, Churchill Middle Market CLO V Ltd., a Cayman exempt limited company managed as a
CLO vehicle that is currently managed by Nuveen Alternatives Advisors LLC and sub-advised by Churchill. The investment portfolio of the SPV consists primarily of Senior
Loans. In connection with the Acquisition, the Company expects the Board to review and approve the fair value of the Legacy Portfolio based on management’s internal
analysis and assurance from a third-party valuation firm. The SPV currently has a revolving credit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which the Company expects to retain
after the Acquisition.

Prior to the Acquisition, 100% of the preference shares issued by the SPV (which preference shares represent the economic residual interest in the SPV) were held by
TIAA. In connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, and prior to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, the Company expects to issue Shares
to TIAA in exchange for all of the outstanding preference shares of the SPV, as a result of which the SPV will become our wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary.

We are currently in the development stage and have not commenced operations. Since inception, there has been no activity other than an initial $1,000 capital
contribution received from TIAA in exchange for 50 Shares. To date, our efforts have been limited to organizational and initial operating activities, the cost of which has been
borne by the Adviser. We have agreed to repay the Adviser for all initial organizational and operating costs incurred upon receipt of a formal commitment of external capital,
subject to the provisions of the Expense Support Agreement. In the event receipt of a formal commitment of external capital does not occur, all initial organization and
operating costs will be borne by the Adviser. As there has been no formal commitment of external capital to date, no such costs have been recorded by us. See “ Item I(c).
Description of Business — Expense Support Agreement.”

Revenues
We plan to generate revenues in the form of interest income from the debt securities we hold and dividends and capital appreciation on any equity-related securities. The
debt we invest in will typically not be rated by any rating agency, but if it were, it is likely that such debt would be below investment grade. In addition, we may also generate

revenue in the form of commitment, loan origination, structuring or diligence fees, fees for providing managerial assistance to our portfolio companies, and possibly
consulting fees. Certain of these fees may be capitalized and amortized as additional interest income over the life of the related loan.
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Expenses

The expenses incurred by each Adviser and/or its affiliates, when and to the extent engaged in providing investment advisory and management services to the Company,
and the compensation and routine overhead expenses of personnel allocable to these services to the Company, will be provided and paid for by each Adviser, as applicable,
and not by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, unless the Adviser or the Sub-Adviser elects to bear or waive any of the following costs, the Company will bear all other
out-of-pocket costs and expenses of our operations and transactions, including, without limitation: (i) fees and costs incurred in organizing the Company; (ii) fees and costs
associated with calculating NAV (including the cost and expenses of any independent valuation firm); (iii) expenses, including travel, entertainment, lodging and meal
expenses, incurred by the Advisers, or members of their investment teams, or payable to third parties, in evaluating, developing, negotiating, structuring and performing due
diligence on prospective portfolio companies, including such expenses related to potential investments that were not consummated, and, if necessary, enforcing the
Company’s rights; (iv) fees and expenses incurred by the Advisers (and their affiliates) or Administrator or its affiliates) payable to third parties, including agents, consultants
or other advisors, in monitoring financial and legal affairs for the Company and in conducting research and due diligence on prospective investments and equity sponsors,
analyzing investment opportunities, structuring the Company’s investments and monitoring investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis; (v) any and all fees,
costs and expenses incurred in connection with the incurrence of leverage and indebtedness of the Company, including borrowings, dollar rolls, reverse purchase agreements,
credit facilities, securitizations, margin financing and derivatives and swaps, and including any principal or interest on the Company’s borrowings and indebtedness (including,
without limitation, any fees, costs, and expenses incurred in obtaining lines of credit, loan commitments, and letters of credit for the account of the Company and in making,
carrying, funding and/or otherwise resolving investment guarantees); (vi) fees and costs associated with offerings, sales, and repurchases of the Company’s Shares and other
securities; (vii) fees and expenses payable under any underwriting, dealer manager or placement agent agreements, if any; (viii) investment advisory fees payable under the
Investment Advisory Agreement; (ix) administration fees and expenses, if any, payable under the Administration Agreement (including payments under the Administration
Agreement between us and the Administrator, based upon our allocable portion of the Administrator’s overhead in performing its obligations under the Administration
Agreement, including rent and the allocable portion of the cost of the Company’s chief financial officer and chief compliance officer, and their respective staffs); (x) costs
incurred in connection with investor relations, board of directors relations, and with preparing for and effectuating the listing of Shares on any securities exchange; (xi) any
applicable administrative agent fees or loan arranging fees incurred with respect to Portfolio Investments by the Advisers, the Administrator or an affiliate thereof; (xii) any
and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in implementing or maintaining third-party or proprietary software tools, programs or other technology for the benefit of the
Company (including, without limitation, any and all fees, costs and expenses of any investment, books and records, portfolio compliance and reporting systems, general
ledger or portfolio accounting systems and similar systems and services, including, without limitation, consultant, software licensing, data management and recovery services
fees and expenses); (xiii) transfer agent, dividend agent and custodial fees and expenses; (xiv) federal and state registration fees; (xv) all costs of registration and listing the
Shares on any securities exchange; (xvi) federal, state and local taxes; (xvii) independent directors’ fees and expenses, including reasonable travel, entertainment, lodging and
meal expenses, and any legal counsel or other advisors retained by, or at the discretion or for the benefit of, the independent directors; (xviii) costs of preparing and filing
reports or other documents required by the SEC or other regulators, and all fees, costs and expenses related to compliance-related matters (such as developing and
implementing specific policies and procedures in order to comply with certain regulatory requirements) and regulatory filings related to the Company’s activities and/or other
regulatory filings, notices or disclosures of the Advisers and their respective affiliates relating to the Company and its activities; (xix) costs of any reports, proxy statements or
other notices to shareholders, including printing costs; (xx) fidelity bond, directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance, and any other insurance premiums;
(xxi) direct costs and expenses of administration, including printing, mailing, long distance telephone, copying, secretarial and other staff, independent auditors, tax preparers
and outside legal costs; (xxii) proxy voting expenses; (xxiii) all expenses relating to payments of dividends or interest or distributions in cash or any other form made or
caused to be made by the Board of Directors to or on account of holders of the securities of the Company, including in connection with any dividend reinvestment plan or
direct stock purchase plan; (xxiv) costs incurred in connection with the formation or maintenance of entities or vehicles to hold the Company’s assets for tax or other
purposes; (xxv) the allocated costs incurred by the Advisers and/or the Administrator in providing managerial assistance to those portfolio companies that request it; (xxvi)
allocable fees and expenses associated with marketing efforts on behalf of the Company; (xxvii) all fees, costs and expenses of
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any litigation involving the Company or its portfolio companies and the amount of any judgments or settlements paid in connection therewith, directors and officers, liability
or other insurance (including costs of title insurance) and indemnification (including advancement of any fees, costs or expenses to persons entitled to indemnification) or
extraordinary expense or liability relating to Company’s affairs; (xxviii) fees, costs and expenses of winding up and liquidating the Company’s assets; and (xxix) all other
expenses incurred by the Company, the Advisers or the Administrator in connection with administering the Company’s business.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

As we have not yet commenced commercial activities, the only transaction to date has been the receipt of an initial capital contribution of $1,000 from TIAA in exchange
for 50 Shares. We expect to generate cash primarily from (i) the net proceeds of the Private Offering, (ii) cash flows from our operations, (iii) any financing arrangements we
may enter into in the future and (iv) any future offerings of our equity or debt securities. We may fund a portion of our investments through borrowings from banks and
issuances of senior securities.

Our primary use of cash will be for (i) investments in portfolio companies and other investments to comply with certain portfolio diversification requirements, (ii) the cost
of operations (including paying the Advisers), (iii) debt service of any borrowings and (iv) cash distributions to the holders of the Shares.

Contractual Obligations

We will enter into the Advisory Agreements and the Administration Agreement with our Advisers, as the case may be, and Administrator, respectively, to provide us with
investment advisory services and administrative services. Payments for investment advisory services under the Advisory Agreements and reimbursements under the
Administration Agreement are described in “Item 1(c). Description of Business — Investment Advisory Agreement” “Item 1(c). Description of Business — Administration
Agreement,” and “Item 1(c). Description of Business — Investment Advisory Agreement — Payment of Our Expenses.”

We intend to establish one or more credit facilities and/or subscription facilities or enter into other financing arrangements to facilitate investments and the timely
payment of our expenses. It is anticipated that any such credit facilities will bear interest at floating rates at to be determined spreads over LIBOR. Actions by the BBA,
regulators or law enforcement agencies may result in changes to the manner in which LIBOR is determined. For example, on July 27, 2017, the United Kingdom’s Financial
Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, announced that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021. It is expected that a transition away from the widespread use of
LIBOR to alternative rates will occur over the course of the next several years. As a result of this transition, interest rates on financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates, as well
as the revenue and expenses associated with those financial instruments, may be adversely affected. Further, any uncertainty regarding the continued use and reliability of
LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate could adversely affect the value of our financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates. The elimination of LIBOR or any other changes or
reforms to the determination or supervision of LIBOR could have an adverse impact on the market for or value of any LIBOR-linked securities, loans, and other financial
obligations or extensions or credit held by or due to us or on our overall financial condition or results of operations. Additionally, in connection with the elimination of
LIBOR, we may be exposed to higher borrowing costs associated with our credit facilities, subscription facilities or other financing arrangements, or we may be exposed to
basis risk resulting from a potential mismatch in the reference rate used in our Portfolio Investments versus the reference rate used for our credit facilities, subscription
facilities, or other financing arrangements.

We cannot assure Shareholders that we will be able to enter into a credit facility on favorable terms or at all. In connection with a credit facility or other borrowings,

lenders may require us to pledge assets, commitments and/or drawdowns (and the ability to enforce the payment thereof) and may ask to comply with positive or negative
covenants that could have an effect on our operations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may become a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of our business to fund investments and to meet the financial needs of
our portfolio companies. These instruments may include commitments to extend credit and involve, to varying degrees, elements of liquidity and credit risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the balance sheet. We may also enter into joint ventures with one or more third parties whereby we will be exposed to investments and investment
strategies that are not part of our investment strategy described herein.

[ itative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We will be subject to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates that may result in changes to our net investment income. Because we expect to fund a
portion of our investments with borrowings, our net investment income is expected to be affected by the difference between the rate at which we invest and the rate at which
we borrow. As a result, there can be no assurance that a significant change in market interest rates will not have a material adverse effect on our net investment income.

Related Parties

See “Item 7. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” for a description of certain transactions and relationships with related parties.
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ITEM 3. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are located at 430 Park Avenue, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10022, and are provided by the Administrator in accordance with the terms of our
Administration Agreement. We believe that our office facilities are suitable and adequate for our business as it is contemplated to be conducted.
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ITEM 4. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of January [

1, 2020, the beneficial ownership of each current director, the Company’s executive officers, each person known to us to

beneficially own 5% or more of the outstanding Shares, and the executive officers and directors as a group. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of
the SEC and includes voting or investment power with respect to the Shares. Ownership information for those persons who beneficially own 5% or more of our Shares is
based upon filings by such persons with the SEC and other information obtained from such persons, if available. Unless otherwise indicated, the Fund believes that each
beneficial owner set forth in the table has sole voting and investment power over such Shares. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of all executive officers and directors is
¢/o Nuveen Churchill BDC, Inc., 430 Park Avenue, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10022.

Name and Address

Shares Owned Percentage™

Interested Directors
Kenneth Kencel
Michael Perry
Independent Directors
Reena Aggarwal
David Kirchheimer
Kenneth Miranda
Stephen Potter

James Ritchie
Executive Officers
Shai Vichness
Thomas Grenville
John McCally
Christopher Rohrbacher
Marissa Short

Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (12 persons)

10% Holders

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America®

(1) Percentage of beneficial ownership is based on [

2020.

] Shares outstanding as of January [

(2) In connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, and prior to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, the Company issued [ ] Shares to TIAA in exchange for all of the
outstanding preference shares of the SPV, as a result of which the SPV will become our wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary. It is expected that TIAA’s ownership percentage of the Company will be

reduced upon the initial drawdown from investors in the Private Offering.
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ITEM S. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE

OFFICERS

Our business and affairs will be managed under the direction of the Board. The responsibilities of the Board include, among other things, the oversight of our investment
activities, the quarterly valuation of our assets, oversight of our financing arrangements and corporate governance activities. Our Board consists of seven directors, five of
whom will not be “interested persons” of the Company or of the Advisers as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act and are “independent,” as determined by the Board.
These individuals are referred to as independent directors. The Board appoints the Company’s executive officers, who serve at the discretion of the Board.

Board of Directors and Executive Officers

Directors

Under our Charter and Bylaws, the directors are divided into three classes. Directors of each class hold office for terms ending at the third annual meeting of our
shareholders after their election and when their respective successors are elected and qualify. However, the initial members of the three classes of directors have initial terms
ending at the first, second and third annual meeting of our shareholders after the Initial Closing of the offering, which is expected to occur in the first quarter of 2020,
respectively. Each director will hold office for the term to which he or she is elected and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies. Each director may stand for re-

election at the end of each term. Information regarding each director is set forth below:

Position

Director Since

Term Expires

Name Age
Interested Directors:

Kenneth Kencel 60
Michael Perry 52
Independent Directors:

Reena Aggarwal 61

David Kirchheimer 63

Kenneth Miranda 58

Stephen Potter 62

James Ritchie 64

The address for each of our directors is ¢/o Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc., 430 Park Avenue, 14t Floor, New York, NY 10022.

Executive Officers Who Are Not Also Directors

Chief Executive Officer, President, Director and Chairman

Director

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Position

2019
2019

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2020
2021

2022
2021
2021
2020
2022

Name Age
Shai Vichness 37
Thomas Grenville 49
John McCally 39
Christopher Rohrbacher 48
Marissa Short 36

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Chief Compliance Officer
Vice President and Secretary

Vice President and Assistant Secretary

Controller
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Biographical Information
Directors

Our directors have been divided into two groups — interested directors and independent directors. An interested director is an “interested person” as defined in
Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act.

Interested Directors
Ken Kencel, Chief Executive Officer, President & Chairman

Kenneth Kencel serves as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of the Company and has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of
Churchill since 2015. Throughout his over 30-year career Mr. Kencel has accrued a broad range of experience in leading middle market financing businesses. From May 2014
to April 2015, he was President and a Director of Carlyle GMS Finance (Carlyle’s publicly traded business development company). Previously, he founded and was President
and CEO of Churchill Financial; and served as Head of Leveraged Finance for Royal Bank of Canada as well as Head of Indosuez Capital—a leading middle market merchant
banking and asset management business. Mr. Kencel also helped to found high yield finance businesses at both Chase Securities (now JP Morgan) and SBC Warburg (now
UBS).

Mr. Kencel serves on the Pension Investment Advisory Committee for the Archdiocese of New York. He is on the Board of Trustees at Canisius High School and is also a
member of the Finance and Investment Committees. Mr. Kencel is a guest lecturer at Boston University Questrom School of Business and a former member of the Board of
Advisors and Adjunct Professor at the McDonough School of Business at Georgetown University. He earned his B.S. in Business Administration, magna cum laude, from
Georgetown University and his J.D. from Northwestern University School of Law.

Michael Perry

Michael A. Perry is a director of the Company. Michael A. Perry is an Executive Vice President and the Head of U.S. Advisory Services for Nuveen, where he is
responsible for delivering Nuveen’s insights, capabilities and solutions to best service clients and grow revenues. Previously, Mr. Perry was head of Global Product,
responsible for driving a consistent, global viewpoint and strategy across all aspects of product creation and management. He also led Structured Products and Alternative
Investments, responsible for building and growing the closed-end fund and alternative investment businesses. Mr. Perry is a member of Nuveen’s Management Committee.
Before joining Nuveen in July 2015, Mr. Perry spent five years at UBS Wealth Management, serving on its Executive Committee and responsible for investment advisory
programs and research, planning, funds, alternative investments, insurance and the UBS Trust Company. Prior to UBS, Mr. Perry spent 15 years at Merrill Lynch as a senior
executive leading a number of investment businesses focused on the wealth management channel. He also serves on the board of Youth, Inc. which empowers youth serving
nonprofit organizations in the New York City area. Mr. Perry holds a B.S. in Industrial and Operations Engineering from the University of Michigan and an M.B.A. from the
NYU Stern School of Business. Mr. Perry is a valuable member of our board of directors because of his extensive experience with alternative investments and retail, high net
worth and institutional client channels.

Independent Directors
Reena Aggarwal

Reena Aggarwal is a director of the Company. Dr. Aggarwal is currently the Vice Provost for Faculty and Robert E. McDonough Professor of Finance at Georgetown
University, and has been employed by Georgetown University since 2000. Dr. Aggarwal has previously held various positions including Interim Dean and Deputy Dean of
Georgetown’s McDonough School of Business; Visiting Professor of Finance at MIT’s Sloan School of Management; FINRA Academic Fellow; Academic Fellow at the U.S.

SEC; Visiting Research Scholar at the International Monetary Fund; Fulbright Scholar to Brazil; World Economic Forum Global Agenda Council on the Future of Financing
and

73



Capital; and as a Distinguished Scholar at the Reserve Bank of India’s CAFRAL. Dr. Aggarwal serves on the Board of Cohen and Steers, New York Life Investment
Management IndexIQ and Brightwood Capital. She received a Ph.D. in finance from the University of Maryland and M.M.S. from BITS Pilani, India.

David Kirchheimer

David M. Kirchheimer is a director of the Company. Mr. Kirchheimer has served as an Advisory Partner at Oaktree Capital Management (“Oaktree”) since his retirement
from Oaktree in March 2017. Prior thereto, he was the Chief Financial Officer of Oaktree and a director of its then-publicly owned affiliate. Before joining Oaktree at its
founding in 1995 as Chief Administrative and Financial Officer, Mr. Kirchheimer’s 16 years of experience consisted primarily of Executive VP and CFO of Republic Pictures
Corporation, a then-publicly held entertainment company, and PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he became a Certified Public Accountant (now inactive) and rose to senior
audit manager. Mr. Kirchheimer currently serves on the board of CURO Group Holdings Corp. and of various non-profit organizations, including the financial advisory panel
of The Aerospace Corporation. He graduated Phi Beta Kappa and summa cum laude with a B.A. degree in economics from Colorado College and earned an M.B.A. in
accounting and finance from the Booth School of Business of the University of Chicago.

Kenneth Miranda

Kenneth M. Miranda is a director of the Company. He was appointed Cornell University’s Chief Investment Officer effective July 1, 2016. Prior to this, he had been the
Director of the International Monetary Fund’s Investment Office since 2000 and has served as a visiting scholar at the International Monetary Fund. He also served as an
advisor to the Administration Committee of the IMF Staff Retirement Plan. He currently serves as a member of the Advisory Committee on Investments for the Food and
Agriculture Organization, and up until June 30, 2016, was a member of the Investment Sub-committee of Cornell University. In addition, he serves on the Investment
Committee of the National Geographic Society. Formerly, he was the President of the Board of Directors of the Bank-Fund Staff Federal Credit Union and a Senior Advisor
on the George Washington University Committee on Investments. He holds a PhD in Economics from the University of Chicago, a BS in Foreign Service from Georgetown
University, and is a CFA charter holder.

Stephen Potter

Stephen Potter is a director of the Company. From 2008-2017, Mr. Potter served as President of Northern Trust Asset Management (NTAM), a large global asset
management firm, and as CEO of Northern Trust Investments, a registered investment adviser. From 2001-2008, Mr. Potter served as CEO of Northern Trust Global Services,
Ltd. and led all of Northern Trust’s business activities outside the United States. In his various leadership roles at Northern Trust Corporation, Mr. Potter actively engaged
with the board of directors and regulators focused on business strategy, risk management and long term talent development. Mr. Potter currently serves on the boards of
Miami Corporation, Rush University Medical Center, Duke University Trinity College, the British American Business Council, the Solti Foundation, and the American
School in London US Foundation. Mr. Potter holds an AB in Economics and History from Duke University and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from Northwestern
University.

James J. Ritchie

James J. Ritchie is a director of the Company. He currently serves on the boards of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc., a Richmond-based specialty insurance company, and Old
Mutual Bermuda, formerly a Bermuda-based financial services company now in run-off. At various times from 2007 to 2018, he served as chairman of the boards of
Brightsphere Investment Group plc, a global asset management firm, F&G Life Insurance Company, a life & annuity insurance company and Quanta Capital Holdings, Ltd., a
property and casualty insurance holding company. Prior to serving as chairman of the boards of these firms, he chaired their respective audit committees as well as those of
KMG America Corporation, a life and health insurance company, Ceres Group, Inc., a health insurance company, and Lloyds Syndicate 4000. From 2001 to 2003, he served
as CFO of White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd., a Bermuda-based insurance holding company. Prior thereto, he held senior management positions in Cigna Corporation
and Price Waterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers). He is a member of the National Association of Corporate Directors and the American Institute
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of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ritchie received an MBA from the Rutgers Graduate School of Business Administration and an AB economics degree with honors from
Rutgers College.

Executive Officers who are not also Directors
Shai Vichness, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Shai Vichness serves as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company and as a Senior Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of Churchill.
Previously, as Managing Director and Head of Senior Leveraged Lending for Nuveen, Mr. Vichness was responsible for initiating Nuveen’s investment program in middle
market senior loans and was directly involved in the launch of Churchill as an affiliate in 2015. Since the launch of Churchill, Mr. Vichness has been a member of Churchill’s
Investment Committee and has been actively engaged in the management of the firm, including the development of its infrastructure and operations. Mr. Vichness joined
Nuveen in 2005 and has spent his entire career in the private debt markets, with a significant amount of time spent in the firm’s workout and restructuring department. Mr.
Vichness holds a BBA from Baruch College, CUNY and is a CFA charterholder.

Thomas Grenville, Chief Compliance Olfficer

Thomas Grenville is the Chief Compliance Officer of the Company and has served as chief compliance officer for various Nuveen affiliates since 2010. Prior to joining,
Mr. Grenville was at the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission for seven years where he led examinations of hedge funds, investment companies and investment advisers.
He also worked for two years at the State of Oregon’s Division of Finance and Corporate Securities. Mr. Grenville received a BA from Swarthmore College, a JD from
Benjamin N. Cardozo Law School and a LLM in Environmental and Natural Resources Law from Lewis and Clark Law School, and a M.B.A. from the University of
California, Berkeley. He is a member of the Oregon Bar, and has been designated as a Certified Fraud Examiner by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE).

John McCally, Vice President and Secretary

John McCally is a Vice President and the Secretary of the Company and has served as an Associate General Counsel in the TIAA and Nuveen legal departments since
2010. Mr. McCally provides legal support for various investment and asset management teams within the Nuveen and TIAA businesses, including those engaged in public
and private fixed income, derivatives, structured product and infrastructure investment markets. Mr. McCally worked as internal legal counsel in connection with the launch
of the Churchill business. Prior to joining the organization in 2010, Mr. McCally was an associate with Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP, specializing in derivatives,
structured products and investment management, based in its Washington, DC office. Mr. McCally received a BA from Duke University and a juris doctor from The George
Washington University Law School.

Christopher Rohrbacher, Vice President and Assistant Secretary

Christopher Rohrbacher is a Vice President and the Assistant Secretary of the Company and a Managing Director and Associate General Counsel at Nuveen. Prior to
joining Nuveen in 2008, he was an associate in the Investment Management Group at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP. He is a graduate of Carleton College and
the University of Chicago Law School.
Marissa Short, Controller

Marissa Short joined Churchill Asset Management in 2018 and currently serves as Controller of the Company and Vice President of Finance at Churchill with thirteen
years of financial services experience. Previously, she was a senior manager in the Wealth and Asset Management Practice at Ernst & Young LLP, responsible for the

planning, implementation, and completion of financial statement audits for top tier SEC and non-SEC clients. Ms. Short received her B.S. in Accounting and Business
Administration from Lehigh University and is a Certified Public Accountant in the State of New York.
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Board Leadership Structure

The Board monitors and performs an oversight role with respect to the business and affairs of the Company. Among other things, the Board approves the appointment of,
and reviews and monitors the services and activities performed by, the Advisers, the Administrator and our officers and approves the engagement, and reviews the
performance of, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm.

Under the Bylaws, the Board may designate a chair to preside over the meetings of the Board and meetings of the shareholders and to perform such other duties as may be
assigned to him or her by the Board. The Company does not have a fixed policy as to whether the chair of the Board should be an independent director and believes that the
flexibility to select its chair and reorganize its leadership structure from time to time is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Presently, Kenneth Kencel serves as the chair of the Board. Mr. Kencel is considered an interested director because he is an officer of the Company and the Advisers.
The Company believes that Mr. Kencel’s history with the Company, familiarity with the Nuveen investment platform and extensive experience investing in and managing
private equity and debt investments qualifies him to serve as chair of the Board. Moreover, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of our shareholders for Mr. Kencel
to lead the Board because of his broad experience with the Nuveen platform, day-to-day management and operation of other investment funds and significant background in
the financial services industry, as described above.

The Board does not have a lead independent director. However, Mr. Ritchie, the chairman of the Audit Committee, is an independent director and acts as a liaison
between the independent directors and management between meetings of the Board and is involved in the preparation of agendas for Board and committee meetings. The
Board believes that its leadership structure is appropriate in light of the Company’s characteristics and circumstances because the structure allocates areas of responsibility
among the individual directors and the committees in a manner that encourages effective oversight. The Board also believes that its size creates a highly efficient governance
structure that provides ample opportunity for direct communication and interaction between the Advisers and the Board.

Board Role in Risk Oversight and Compliance

The Board performs its risk oversight function primarily through (a) the Audit Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Special
Transactions Committee (collectively, the “Committees”), which report to the entire Board and are comprised solely of independent directors, and (b) reports received from
the Company’s Chief Compliance Officer in accordance with the Company’s compliance policies and procedures.

As described below in more detail under “Audit Committee,” “Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee” and “Special Transactions Committee”, the
Committees assist the Board in fulfilling its risk oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee’s risk oversight responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting processes, the Company’s systems of internal controls regarding finance and accounting and audits of the Company’s financial statements
and discussing with management the Company’s major financial risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures, including the
Company’s risk assessment and risk management policies. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s risk oversight responsibilities include nominating
directors for election by the Company’s shareholders in the event of director vacancies, developing and recommending to the Board a set of corporate governance principles
and overseeing the evaluation of the Board and its committees. The Special Transactions Committee’s risk oversight responsibilities include reviewing and making certain
findings in respect of co-investment transactions and monitoring compliance with the conditions of the Order, as well as certain other matters pertaining to potential or actual
conflicts of interest.

The Board also performs its risk oversight responsibilities with the assistance of the Company’s Chief Compliance Officer. The Chief Compliance Officer will prepare a
written report annually discussing the adequacy and effectiveness of the compliance policies and procedures of the Company and certain of its service providers. The Chief
Compliance Officer’s report, which will be reviewed by the Board, will address at a minimum: (a) the operation of the compliance policies and procedures of the Company
and certain of its service providers since the last report; (b) any material
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changes to such policies and procedures since the last report; (c) any recommendations for material changes to such policies and procedures as a result of the Chief
Compliance Officer’s annual review; and (d) any compliance matter that has occurred since the date of the last report about which the Board would reasonably need to know
to oversee the Company’s compliance activities and risks. In addition, the Chief Compliance Officer will meet separately in executive session with the independent directors
periodically, but in no event less than once each year.

The Company believes that the role of the Board in risk oversight is effective and appropriate given the extensive regulation to which it is already subject as a BDC.
Specifically, as a BDC, the Company must comply with certain regulatory requirements that control the levels of risk in its business and operations. For example, the
Company’s ability to incur indebtedness is limited such that its asset coverage must equal at least 150% immediately after each time it incurs indebtedness and the Company
generally has to invest at least 70% of its total assets in “qualifying assets.” In addition, the Company intends to elect to be treated as a regulated investment company, or RIC,
under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code. As a RIC, the Company must, among other things, meet certain income source and asset diversification requirements.

The Board believes that its existing role in risk oversight is appropriate. However, the Board re-examines the manner in which it administers its oversight function on an
ongoing basis to ensure that it continues to meet the Company’s needs.

Committees

The Board has an Audit Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a Special Transactions Committee and may form additional committees in
the future.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of Reena Aggarwal, David Kirchheimer, Kenneth Miranda, Stephen Potter and James Ritchie, each of whom is an independent
director. Mr. Ritchie serves as chair of the Audit Committee. The Board has determined that each of Ms. Aggarwal, Mr. Kirchheimer and Mr. Ritchie is an “audit committee
financial expert” as that term is defined under Item 407 of Regulation S-K, as promulgated under the 1934 Act. Our Audit Committee members meet the current independence
and experience requirements of Rule 10A-3 of the 1934 Act.

In accordance with its written charter adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee (a) assists the Board’s oversight of the integrity of our financial statements, the
independent registered public accounting firm’s qualifications and independence, our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the performance of our
independent registered public accounting firm; (b) reviews the Audit Committee report, as required by the SEC, to be included in our annual proxy statement; (c) oversees the
scope of the annual audit of our financial statements, the quality and objectivity of our financial statements, accounting and policies and internal controls over financial
reporting; (d) establishes guidelines and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the valuation of the Company’s investments, and is responsible for aiding the Board
in determining the fair value of debt and equity securities for which current market values are not readily available; (e) determines the selection, appointment, retention and
termination of our independent registered public accounting firm, as well as approving the compensation thereof; (f) reviews reports regarding compliance with the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (g) pre-approves all audit and non-audit services provided to us by such independent registered public accounting firm; and
(h) acts as a liaison between our independent registered public accounting firm and the Board.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (the “Nominating Committee™) is comprised of Reena Aggarwal, David Kirchheimer, Kenneth Miranda, Stephen
Potter and James Ritchie, each of whom is considered an independent director. Mr. Kirchheimer serves as chair of the Nominating Committee.

In accordance with its charter adopted by the Board, the Nominating Committee recommends to the Board persons to be nominated by the Board for election on an annual
basis and in the event any vacancy on the Board may arise. The
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Nominating Committee will consider for nomination to the Board candidates submitted by our shareholders or from other sources it deems appropriate. In considering whether
to recommend any particular candidate for inclusion in the Board’s slate of recommended director nominees, the Nominating Committee applies the criteria included in its
charter. These criteria include the candidate’s standards of character and integrity, knowledge of the Company’s business and industry, conflicts of interest, willingness to
devote time to the Company and ability to act in the interests of all shareholders. The Nominating Committee does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no
particular criterion is a prerequisite for each prospective nominee. The Board does not have a specific diversity policy, but considers diversity of race, religion, national origin,
gender, sexual orientation, disability, cultural background and professional experiences in evaluating candidates for board membership. The Board believes diversity is
important because a variety of viewpoints contribute to an effective decision-making process.

The Nominating Committee also makes recommendations with regard to the tenure of the directors and is responsible for overseeing an annual evaluation of the Board
and its committee structure to determine whether the structure is operating effectively.

Special Transactions Committee

The Special Transactions Committee (the “Special Transactions Committee™) is comprised of Reena Aggarwal, David Kirchheimer, Kenneth Miranda, Stephen Potter
and James Ritchie, each of whom is considered an independent director of the Company. Mr. Potter serves as chair of the Special Transactions Committee.

The Special Transactions Committee will be responsible for reviewing and making certain findings in respect of co-investment transactions under the conditions of the
Order that the Company has been granted by the SEC as well as certain other matters pertaining to actual or potential conflicts of interest.

Portfolio Management

All investment decisions for the Company will require the unanimous approval of the members of the Joint Investment Committee comprised of senior investment
personnel of both Investment Teams. The initial members of the Joint Investment Committee are Ken Kencel, Jason Strife and Randy Schwimmer. The Joint Investment
Committee will also be advised by the Senior Loan Investment Committee and the Junior Capital Investment Committee. The Senior Loan Investment Committee is currently
comprised of Ken Kencel, Randy Schwimmer, George Kurteson, Shai Vichness, Chris Cox and Mat Linett. The Junior Capital Investment Committee is currently comprised
of Ken Kencel, Jason Strife, Derek Fricke and Anne Philpott. See “Item I. Business — Description of Business — Investment Advisory Agreement’ for more information,
including information regarding the termination provisions of the Investment Advisory Agreement. See “ltem I. Business — Description of Business — Joint Investment
Committee” for biographies for members of the Joint Investment Committee, Senior Loan Investment Committee and Junior Capital Investment Committee.

Promoters and Certain Control Persons

The Advisers may be deemed promoters of the Company. We will enter into the Investment Advisory Agreement with the Adviser and the Sub-Advisory Agreement with
Churchill. The Adviser, for its services to us, will be entitled to receive a portion of the management fees and a portion of the incentive fees in addition to the reimbursement
of certain expenses. In addition, under the Investment Advisory Agreement, we expect, to the extent permitted by applicable law and in the discretion of our Board, to
indemnify the Adviser and certain of its affiliates. Churchill, for its services to us, will be entitled to receive a portion of the management fees and a portion of the incentive
fees in addition to the reimbursement of certain expenses. In addition, under the Sub-Advisory Agreement, we expect, to the extent permitted by applicable law and in the
discretion of our Board, to indemnify Churchill and certain of its affiliates. See “Item I (c). Description of Business—General.”
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ITEM 6. EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION

Compensation of Executive Officers

We do not currently have any employees and do not expect to have any employees. Services necessary for our business are provided by individuals who are employees of
the Advisers, the Administrator or their respective affiliates, pursuant to the terms of the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Sub-Advisory Agreement and the
Administration Agreement, as applicable. Our day-to-day administrative operations are managed by the Administrator. Most of the services necessary for the origination and
administration of our investment portfolio will be provided by investment professionals employed by Churchill or their respective affiliates.

Each of our executive officers is an employee of an affiliate of the Administrator. We reimburse the Administrator for our allocable portion of expenses incurred by the
Administrator in performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement, including our allocable portion of the cost of our officers and their respective staffs, and we
reimburse the Adviser for certain expenses under the Investment Advisory Agreement. See “ Item 1(c). Description of Business — Investment Advisory Agreement’ and “Item
7. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.”

Compensation of Directors
No compensation will be paid to our interested directors. Prior to an Exchange Listing, each independent director will receive a retainer of $75,000 annually for serving
on the Board. Following an Exchange Listing, each independent director will receive a retainer of $100,000 annually for serving on the Board. Prior to an Exchange Listing,

the chair of the Audit Committee will receive an additional $7,500 annual fee. Following an Exchange Listing, the chair of the Audit Committee will receive an additional
$10,000 annual fee. We will also reimburse each of the independent directors for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with each meeting attended.
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ITEM 7. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Transactions with Related Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons
Investment Advisory Agreement

We intend to enter into the Investment Advisory Agreement with the Adviser pursuant to which we will pay management fees (before and after an Exchange Listing) and
incentive fees (only after an Exchange Listing) to the Adviser. See “Item 1(c). Description of Business — Investment Advisory Agreement.” We expect that the Investment
Advisory Agreement will be approved by the Board. Unless earlier terminated, the Investment Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for a period of two years from the
date it first becomes effective and will remain in effect from year-to-year thereafter if approved annually by a majority of the Board, including a majority of independent
directors, or by the holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities.

Sub-Advisory Agreement

The Adviser intends to enter into the Sub-Advisory Agreement with the Churchill pursuant to which Churchill will be entitled to a portion of the management and
incentive fees paid to the Adviser. See “ Item 1(c). Description of Business— Sub-Advisory Agreement.” We expect that the Sub-Advisory Agreement will be approved by the
Board. Unless earlier terminated, the Sub-Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for a period of two years from the date it first becomes effective and will remain in effect
from year-to-year thereafter if approved annually by a majority of the Board, including a majority of independent directors, or by the holders of a majority of our outstanding
voting securities.

Administration Agreement

We intend to enter into the Administration Agreement with the Administrator, pursuant to which the Administrator will be responsible for providing us with clerical,
bookkeeping, recordkeeping and other administrative services at such facilities. See “Item 1(c). Description of Business— Administration Agreement.”

Relationship with the Adviser, Churchill and Potential Conflicts of Interest

We, the Adviser and Churchill, and our respective direct or indirect members, partners, officers, directors, employees, agents and affiliates may be subject to certain
potential conflicts of interest in connection with our activities and investments. For example, the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement with respect to management and
incentive fees may create an incentive for Churchill to approve and cause us to make more speculative investments than we would otherwise make in the absence of such fee
structure. In addition, certain personnel of the Adviser and/or Churchill serve, or may serve, as officers, directors, members, or principals of entities that operate in the same or
a related line of business as we do, or of investment funds, accounts, or investment vehicles managed by them. Similarly, Churchill may have other clients with similar,
different or competing investment objectives as us. In serving in these multiple capacities, they may have obligations to other clients or investors in those entities, the
fulfillment of which may not be in the best interests of the Company or our shareholders.

Churchill or its affiliates may also earn additional fees related to the securities in which the Company invests, which may result in conflicts of interests for the senior
investment professionals and members of the investment committee making investment decisions. For example, Churchill and its affiliates may act as an arranger, syndication
agent or in a similar capacity with respect to securities in which the Company invests, in which case Churchill and its affiliates receive compensation from the issuers of such
securities, which compensation would be paid to them separately from management fees paid by the Company. Additionally, affiliates of Churchill may act as the
administrative agent on credit facilities under which such securities are issued, which may contemplate additional compensation to such affiliates for the service of acting as
administrative agent thereunder. Churchill may also simultaneously be managing certain securities for the Company and the same investments on a whole-loan, whole-
security basis for TIAA pursuant to separate engagements, which may lead to conflicts of interest.
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In certain instances, it is possible that other entities managed by Churchill or a proprietary account of TIAA may be invested in the same or similar loans or securities as
held by the Company, and which may be acquired at different times at lower or higher prices. Those investments may also be in securities or other instruments in different
parts of the company’s capital structure that differ significantly from the investments held by the Company, including with respect to material terms and conditions, including
without limitation seniority, interest rates, dividends, voting rights and participation in liquidation proceeds. Consequently, in certain instances these investments may be in
positions or interests which are potentially adverse to those taken or held by the Company. In such circumstances, measures will be taken to address such actual or potential
conflicts, which may include, as appropriate, establishing an information barrier between or among the applicable personnel of the relevant affiliated entities (including as
between officers of Churchill), requiring recusal of certain personnel from participating in decisions that give rise to such conflicts, or other protective measures as shall be
established from time to time to address such conflicts.

Further, an affiliate of TIAA may serve as the administrative or other named agent on behalf of the lenders with respect to investments by the Company and/or one or
more of its affiliates. In some cases, investments that are originated or otherwise sourced by Churchill may be funded by a Loan Syndicate organized by Churchill or its
affiliates. The Loan Syndicate Participants, in addition to the Company and its affiliates may include other lenders and various institutional and sophisticated investors
(through private investment vehicles in which they invest). The entity acting as agent may serve as an agent with respect to loans made at varying levels of a borrower’s
capital structure. Loan Syndicate Participants may hold investments in the same or distinct tranches in the loan facilities of which the Portfolio Investment is a part or in
different positions in the capital structure under such Portfolio Investment. As is typical in such agency arrangements, the agent is the party responsible for administering and
enforcing the terms of the loan facility, may take certain actions and make certain decisions in its discretion and generally may take material actions only in accordance with
the instructions of a designated percentage of the lenders. In the case of loan facilities that include both senior and subordinate tranches, the agent may take actions in
accordance with the instructions of the holders of one or more of the senior tranches without any right to vote or consent (except in certain limited circumstances) by the
subordinated tranches of such indebtedness. Churchill expects that the Portfolio Investments held by the Company and its affiliates may represent less than the amount of debt
sufficient to direct, initiate or prevent actions with respect to such loan facility or a tranche thereof of which the Company’s investment is a part (other than preventing those
that require the consent of each lender). As a result of an affiliate of TIAA acting as agent for an agented loan where a Loan Syndicate Participant may own more of the
related indebtedness of the obligor or hold indebtedness in a position in the capital structure of an obligor different from that of the Company and its affiliates, such Loan
Syndicate Participants will be in a position to exercise more control with respect to the related loan facility than that which Churchill could exercise on behalf of the
Company, and may exercise such control in a manner adverse to the interests of the Company.

In addition, TIAA, as advised by NAA, may be a limited partner investor in many of the private equity funds that own the portfolio companies in which the Company
will invest or TIAA may otherwise have a relationship with the private equity funds or portfolio companies, which may give rise to certain conflicts or limit the Company’s
ability to invest in such portfolio companies. TIAA (and other NAA-managed private clients) may also hold passive equity co-investments in such private equity funds or
portfolio companies owned by such fund, or in holding companies elsewhere in the capital structure of the private equity fund or portfolio company, which may give rise to
certain conflicts for the investment professionals of NAA when making investment decisions.

Churchill, and its affiliates, have procedures and policies in place designed to manage the potential conflicts of interest between its fiduciary obligations to us and its
similar fiduciary obligations to other clients. An investment opportunity that is suitable for multiple clients of the Churchill and its affiliates may not be capable of being
shared among some or all of such clients due to the limited scale of the opportunity or other factors, including regulatory restrictions imposed by the 1940 Act. There can be
no assurance that Churchill’s or its affiliates’ efforts to allocate any particular investment opportunity fairly among all clients for whom such opportunity is appropriate will
result in an allocation of all or part of such opportunity to us. Not all conflicts of interest can be expected to be resolved in our favor.

In order to address these issues, Churchill has put in place an investment allocation policy that addresses the restrictions under the 1940 Act and seeks to ensure the

equitable allocation of investment opportunities. In the absence of using the Order from the SEC that permits greater flexibility relating to co-investments, Churchill will apply
the
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investment allocation policy to determine which entities will proceed with an investment. When we engage in permitted co-investments, we will do so in a manner consistent
with Churchill’s allocation policy. In situations where co-investment with other entities managed by Churchill is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an
opportunity to invest in different securities of the same issuer, Churchill will need to decide whether we or such other entity or entities will proceed with the investment.
Churchill will make these determinations based on its policies and procedures, which generally require that such opportunities be offered to eligible accounts in a manner that
will be fair and equitable over time.

Co-Investment Opportunities

We may co-invest with Churchill’s and its affiliates’ other clients in certain circumstances where doing so is consistent with applicable law and SEC staff interpretations.
For example, we may co-invest with such accounts consistent with guidance promulgated by the SEC staff permitting us and such other accounts to purchase interests in
privately placed securities so long as certain conditions are met, including that Churchill, acting on our behalf and on behalf of other clients, negotiates no term other than
price. We may also co-invest with Churchill’s or its affiliates’ other clients as otherwise permissible under regulatory guidance, applicable regulations, and Churchill’s
allocation policy, which Churchill maintains in writing. Under this allocation policy, a fixed percentage of each opportunity, which may vary based on asset class and from
time to time, is offered to us and similar eligible accounts, as periodically determined by Churchill. The Company may also co-invest on a concurrent basis with other
affiliates of the Company and Churchill pursuant to the Order. Under the terms of the Order, a majority of the Company’s independent directors are required to make certain
determinations in connection with a co-investment transaction, including that (1) the terms of the proposed transaction are reasonable and fair to the Company and the
Company’s shareholders and do not involve overreaching of the Company or the Company’s shareholders on the part of any person concerned and (2) the transaction is
consistent with the interests of the Company’s shareholders and is consistent with the Company’s investment strategies and policies.

Placement Agent Arrangements

Broker-dealers that are affiliates of the Company and/or one or more of its affiliates or third parties may act as placement agents or distributors to assist in the placement
of shares of our common stock to certain of our shareholders. Any placement fees associated with the placement agent services will be paid by the Adviser, with no
reimbursement by the Company. The potential for the placement agents to receive compensation in connection with a shareholder's investment in us presents a potential
conflict of interest in recommending that such shareholder invest in the Company. The prospect of receiving, or the receipt of, additional compensation, as described above, by
the placement agents may provide such placement agents and/or their salespersons with an incentive to favor sales of shares and interests in funds whose affiliates make
similar compensation available over sales of interests in funds (or other fund investments) with respect to which the placement agent does not receive additional compensation,
or receives lower levels of additional compensation. Prospective investors should take such payment arrangements into account when considering and evaluating any
recommendations related to the shares of our common stock.

Certain Business Relationships
Certain of our current directors and officers are directors or officers of the Advisers.
Material Non-Public Information
The Advisers’ investment professionals may serve as directors of, or in a similar capacity with, companies in which we invest or in which we are considering making an

investment. Through these and other relationships with a portfolio company, these individuals may obtain material non-public information that might restrict our ability to
buy or sell the securities of such company under the policies of the company or applicable law.
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Promoters and Certain Control Persons

The Advisers may be deemed a promoter of the Company. See “Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers—Promoters and Control Persons.”

ITEM 8. LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS

Neither we nor the Advisers are currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, are any material legal proceeding threatened against us or
them. From time to time, we and/or the Advisers may be a party to certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business, including proceedings relating to the
enforcement of our rights under contracts with our portfolio companies. Our business is also subject to extensive regulation, which may result in regulatory proceedings

against us. While the outcome of these legal or regulatory proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not expect that these proceedings will have a material effect
upon our financial condition or results of operations.
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ITEM 9. MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS

Market Information

Our Shares will be offered and sold in transactions exempt from registration under the 1933 Act under Section 4(a)(2) and Regulation D. See ‘Ttem 10. Recent Sales of
Unregistered Securities” for more information. There is no public market for our Shares currently, nor can we give any assurance that one will develop.

Because Shares are being acquired by investors in transactions “not involving a public offering,” they are “restricted securities” and may be required to be held
indefinitely. Our Shares may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or otherwise disposed of unless (i) the Adviser’s consent is granted, and (ii) the Shares are registered
under applicable securities laws or specifically exempted from registration (in which case the shareholder may, at our option, be required to provide us with a legal opinion,
in form and substance satisfactory to us, that registration is not required). Accordingly, an investor must be willing to bear the economic risk of investment in the Shares until
we are liquidated. No sale, transfer, assignment, pledge or other disposition, whether voluntary or involuntary, of the Shares may be made except by registration of the transfer
on our books. Each transferee will be required to execute an instrument agreeing to be bound by these restrictions and the other restrictions imposed on the Shares and to
execute such other instruments or certifications as are reasonably required by us.

Holders

Prior to the Acquisition, 100% of the preference shares issued by the SPV (which preference shares represent the economic residual interest in the SPV) were held by
TIAA. In connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, and prior to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, the Company expects to issue Shares
to TIAA in exchange for all of the outstanding preference shares of the SPV, as a result of which the SPV will become our wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary.

Additionally, in conjunction with our formation, we issued and sold 50 Shares to TIAA, for an aggregate purchase price of $1,000.
Please see “Item 4. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” for disclosure regarding the holders of our common stock.
Valuation of Portfolio Investments

The Board determines the NAV of the Shares quarterly. The NAV per Share is equal to the value of the Company’s total assets minus its liabilities and the liquidation
value of any preferred shares outstanding divided by the total number of Shares outstanding.

Our investments are valued in accordance with the fair value principles established by FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820,Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures (“ASC Topic 820”) and in accordance with the 1940 Act. ASC Topic 820’s definition of fair value focuses on the amount that would be received to sell the
asset or paid to transfer the liability, in the principal, or most advantageous, market and prioritizes the use of market-based inputs (observable) over entity-specific inputs
(unobservable) within a measurement of fair value.

Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price for those securities for which a market quotation is readily available and (ii) for all other
securities and assets, fair value is as determined in good faith by our Board. Because the Company expects that there typically will not be a readily available market price for
its target portfolio investments, the Company expects that the value of most of its portfolio investments will be their fair value as determined by the Board consistent with a
documented valuation policy and consistently applied valuation process. In making these determinations, the Board will receive input from management and the Audit
Committee. In addition, the Board has retained independent valuation firms to review the valuation of each portfolio investment for which a market quotation is not available
at least once during each 12-month period.
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Our Board will make this fair value determination on a quarterly basis and in such other instances when a decision regarding the fair value of the portfolio investments is
required. Factors considered by our Board as part of the valuation of investments include credit ratings/risk, the portfolio company’s current and projected earnings, current
and expected leverage, ability to make interest and principal payments, the estimated remaining life of the investment, liquidity, compliance with applicable loan covenants,
price to earnings (or other financial) ratios of the portfolio company and other comparable companies, current market yields and interest rate spreads of similar securities as of
the measurement date. Other factors taken into account include, changes in the interest rate environment and the credit markets, generally, that may affect the price at which
similar investments would trade. The Board may also base its valuation on recent investments and securities with similar structure and risk characteristics. Churchill obtains
market data from its ongoing investment purchase efforts, in addition to specific transactions that close and are announced in industry publications. External information may
include (but is not limited to) observable market data derived from the U.S. loan and equity markets. In compiling market data Churchill may utilize third party data as an
indicator of current market conditions.

ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. ASC Topic 820
also provides guidance regarding a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes information used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings and
provides for enhanced disclosures determined by the level within the hierarchy of information used in the valuation. In accordance with ASC Topic 820, these inputs are
summarized in the three levels listed below:

*  Level 1—Valuations are based on unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement
date.

e Level 2—Valuations are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

* Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of observable input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the investment.

Active, publicly-traded instruments are classified as Level 1 and their values are generally based on quoted market prices, even if the market’s normal daily trading
volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Fair value is generally determined as the price that would be received for an investment in a current sale, which assumes an orderly market is available for the market
participants at the measurement date. If available, fair value of investments is based on directly observable market prices or on market data derived from comparable assets.
Our valuation policy considers the fact that no ready market may exist for many of the securities in which we invest and that fair value for its investments must be determined
using unobservable inputs.

With respect to investments for which market quotations are not readily available (Level 3), our Board will undertake a multi-step valuation process each quarter, as
described below:

*  Our quarterly valuation process will begin with each portfolio company or investment being initially valued by the professionals of the applicable Investment Team
that are responsible for the portfolio investment;

*  Preliminary valuation conclusions will then be documented and approved by the applicable Investment Team’s Investment
Committee;

*  Third-party valuation firms engaged by, or on behalf of, the Board will provide positive assurance on portions of the portfolio each quarter (such that each
investment will be reviewed by a third-party valuation firm at
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least once on a rolling 12-month basis), including a review of management’s preliminary valuation and recommendation of fair value;

¢ Our Audit Committee will then review the valuations approved by the applicable Investment Team’s Investment Committee and, where appropriate, the independent
valuation firms and recommend those values to our Board; and

*  Our Board will then discuss valuations and determine the fair value of each investment in our portfolio in good faith, based on the input of the applicable Investment
Team, and, where appropriate, the respective independent valuation firms and our Audit Committee.

Determinations in Connection with our Offerings

In connection with each offering of our Shares, to the extent we do not have shareholder approval to sell below NAV, our Board or an authorized committee thereof will
be required to make a good faith determination that we are not selling our Shares at a price below the then current net asset value of our Shares at the time at which the sale is
made. Our Board or an authorized committee thereof will consider the following factors, among others, in making such determination:

« the net asset value of our Shares disclosed in the most recent periodic report we filed with the
SEC;

*  our management’s assessment of whether any material change in the net asset value of our Shares has occurred (including through the realization of gains on the
sale of our portfolio securities) during the period beginning on the date of the most recently disclosed net asset value of our Shares and ending as of a time within
48 hours (excluding Sundays and holidays) of the sale of our Shares; and

» the magnitude of the difference between (i) a value that our Board or an authorized committee thereof has determined reflects the current (as of a time within 48
hours excluding Sundays and holidays) net asset value of our Shares, which is based upon the net asset value of our Shares disclosed in the most recent periodic
report we filed with the SEC, as adjusted to reflect our management’s assessment of any material change in the net asset value of our Shares since the date of the
most recently disclosed net asset value of our Shares, and (ii) the offering price of our Shares in the proposed offering.

These processes and procedures are part of our compliance policies and procedures. Records will be made contemporaneously with all determinations described in this
section and these records will be maintained with other records we are required to maintain under the 1940 Act.

Distribution Policy

The Company generally intends to distribute substantially all of its available net investment income on a quarterly basis, as determined by the Board in its discretion, and
in accordance with RIC requirements. Net realized capital gains, if any, will generally be distributed or deemed distributed at least annually. Pursuant to the Company’s
dividend reinvestment plan, shareholders will automatically receive cash dividends and other distributions unless they elect to have their dividends and other distributions
reinvested in additional Shares. See “Item 1(c). Description of Business—Dividend Reinvestment Plan.”
Reports to Shareholders

We will furnish our shareholders with annual reports containing audited financial statements, quarterly reports, and such other periodic reports as we determine to be

appropriate or as may be required by law. Upon the effectiveness of this Registration Statement, we will be required to comply with all periodic reporting, proxy solicitation
and other applicable requirements under the 1934 Act.
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ITEM 10. RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED
SECURITIES

Prior to the Acquisition, 100% of the preference shares issued by the SPV (which preference shares represent the economic residual interest in the SPV) were held by
TIAA. In connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, and prior to our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act, the Company expects to issue Shares
to TIAA in exchange for all of the outstanding preference shares of the SPV, as a result of which the SPV will become our wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary.

Additionally, in conjunction with our formation, we issued and sold 50 Shares to TIAA, for an aggregate purchase price of $1,000.

These Shares were issued and sold in reliance upon the available exemptions from registration requirements of Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act.
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ITEM 11. DESCRIPTION OF REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES TO BE REGISTERED

The following description is based on relevant portions of the Maryland General Corporation Law (“MGCL”) and on our Articles of Incorporation (as amended or
supplemented from time to time, the “Charter”) or our Bylaws (as amended or supplemented from time to time, the “Bylaws”). This summary possesses the provisions
deemed to be material, but is not necessarily complete.

General

The authorized stock of the Company consists of 500,000,000 shares of stock, par value $0.01 per share, all of which are initially designated as common stock. There are
no outstanding options or warrants to purchase our stock. No stock has been authorized for issuance under any equity compensation plans. Under Maryland law, our
shareholders generally are not personally liable for our debts or obligations.

Under our Charter, our Board is authorized to classify and reclassify any unissued shares of stock into other classes or series of stock without obtaining shareholder
approval. As permitted by the MGCL, our Charter provides that the Board, without any action by our shareholders, may amend the Charter from time to time to increase or

decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or series that we have authority to issue.

The following are our outstanding classes of securities as of [ ], 2019:

[O)
A3 Amount Outstanding
Amount Held by Exclusive of
a ?) Us or for Amounts Shown
Title of Class Amount Authorized Our Account Under(3)
Common stock 500,000,000 — [ 1]

Common Stock

All Shares have equal rights as to earnings, assets, voting, and dividends and, when they are issued, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.
Distributions may be paid to our shareholders if, as and when authorized by our Board and declared by us out of assets legally available therefor. Our Shares have no
preemptive, conversion or redemption rights and may not be transferred without the consent of the Adviser and may not be transferred if restricted by federal and state
securities laws or otherwise by contract. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, each Share would be entitled to share ratably in all of our assets that are
legally available for distribution after we pay all debts and other liabilities and subject to any preferential rights of holders of our preferred stock, if any preferred stock is
outstanding at such time. Each Share is entitled to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders, including the election of directors. Except as provided with
respect to any other class or series of stock, the holders of our Shares will possess exclusive voting power.

Limitation on Liability of Directors and Officers; Indemnification and Advance of Expenses

Maryland law permits a Maryland corporation to include in its charter a provision limiting the liability of its directors and officers to the corporation and its shareholders
for money damages except for liability resulting from (a) actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money, property or services or (b) active and deliberate dishonesty
established by a final judgment as being material to the cause of action. Our Charter contains such a provision which eliminates directors’ and officers’ liability to the
maximum extent permitted by Maryland law, subject to the requirements of the 1940 Act.

Our Charter authorizes us, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law and subject to the requirements of the 1940 Act, to indemnify any present or former

director or officer or any individual who, while serving as our director or officer and at our request, serves or has served another corporation, real estate investment trust,
limited liability
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company, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise as a director, officer, partner, trustee, member or manager from and against any claim or

liability to which that person may become subject or which that person may incur by reason of his or her service in any such capacity and to pay or reimburse their reasonable
expenses in advance of final disposition of a proceeding. Our Charter obligates us, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law and subject to the requirements of the
1940 Act, to indemnify any present or former director or officer or any individual who, while serving as our director or officer and at our request, serves or has served another
corporation, real estate investment trust, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise as a director, officer, partner,

trustee, member or manager and who is made, or threatened to be made, a party to the proceeding by reason of his or her service in that capacity from and against any claim or
liability to which that person may become subject or which that person may incur by reason of his or her service in any such capacity and to pay or reimburse his or her
reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition of a proceeding. Our Charter also permits us to indemnify and advance expenses to any person who served a predecessor
of us in any of the capacities described above and any of our employees or agents or any employees or agents of our predecessor. In accordance with the 1940 Act, we will not
indemnify any person for any liability to which such person would be subject by reason of such person’s willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard
of the duties involved in the conduct of his or her office.

Maryland law requires a corporation (unless its charter provides otherwise, which our Charter does not) to indemnify a director or officer who has been successful in the
defense of any proceeding to which he or she is made, or threatened to be made, a party by reason of his or her service in that capacity. Maryland law permits a corporation to
indemnify its present and former directors and officers, among others, against judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reasonable expenses actually incurred by them in
connection with any proceeding to which they may be made, or threatened to be made, a party by reason of their service in those or other capacities unless it is established that
(a) the act or omission of the director or officer was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding and (1) was committed in bad faith or (2) was the result of active and
deliberate dishonesty, (b) the director or officer actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or services or (c) in the case of any criminal proceeding, the
director or officer had reasonable cause to believe that the act or omission was unlawful. However, under Maryland law, a Maryland corporation may not indemnify for an
adverse judgment in a suit by or in the right of the corporation or for a judgment of liability on the basis that a personal benefit was improperly received unless, in either case a
court orders indemnification, and then only for expenses. In addition, Maryland law permits a corporation to advance reasonable expenses to a director or officer in advance of
final disposition of a proceeding upon the corporation’s receipt of (a) a written affirmation by the director or officer of his or her good-faith belief that he or she has met the
standard of conduct necessary for indemnification by the corporation and (b) a written undertaking by him or her or on his or her behalf to repay the amount paid or
reimbursed by the corporation if it is ultimately determined that the standard of conduct was not met.

Certain Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law and Our Charter and Bylaws

The MGCL and our Charter and Bylaws contain provisions that could make it more difficult for a potential acquirer to acquire us by means of a tender offer, proxy
contest or otherwise, the material ones of which are discussed below. These provisions are expected to discourage certain coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover
bids and to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to negotiate first with our Board. We expect the benefits of these provisions to outweigh the potential
disadvantages of discouraging any such acquisition proposals because, among other things, the negotiation of such proposals may improve their terms.

Classified Board of Directors
Our Board is divided into three classes of directors serving staggered terms initially expiring in 2020, 2021 and 2022. Upon expiration of their initial terms, directors of
each class will be elected to serve for three-year terms and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualify, and each year one class of directors will be elected by

the shareholders. A classified board may render a change in control of us or removal of our incumbent management more difficult. We believe, however, that the longer time
required to elect a majority of a classified Board will help to ensure the continuity and stability of our management and policies.
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Election of Directors

Our Bylaws, as authorized by our Charter, provide that the affirmative vote of the holders of a plurality of all votes cast at a meeting of shareholders duly called, and at
which a quorum is present, will be required to elect a director. Pursuant to our Charter our Board may amend the bylaws to alter the vote required to elect directors.

Number of Directors; Vacancies; Removal

Our Charter provides that the number of directors will be set only by the Board in accordance with our Bylaws. Our Bylaws provide that a majority of our entire Board
may at any time increase or decrease the number of directors. However, unless our Bylaws are amended, the number of directors may never be less than one nor more than
nine. Our Charter provides that, at such time as we have at least three independent directors and our Shares are registered under the 1934 Act, as amended, we will elect to be
subject to the provision of Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL regarding the filling of vacancies on the Board. Accordingly, at such time, except as may be provided by the
Board in setting the terms of any class or series of preferred stock, any and all vacancies on the Board may be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining
directors in office, even if the remaining directors do not constitute a quorum, and any director elected to fill a vacancy will serve for the remainder of the full term of the
directorship in which the vacancy occurred and until a successor is elected and qualifies, subject to any applicable requirements of the 1940 Act.

Our Charter provides that a director may be removed only for cause, as defined in the Charter, and then only by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes
entitled to be cast in the election of directors.

Action by Shareholders

Under the MGCL, shareholder action can be taken only at an annual or special meeting of shareholders or (unless the charter provides for shareholder action by less than
unanimous written consent, which our Charter does not) by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting. These provisions, combined with the requirements of our Bylaws
regarding the calling of a shareholder-requested special meeting of shareholders discussed below, may have the effect of delaying consideration of a shareholder proposal
until the next annual meeting.

Advance Notice Provisions for Shareholder Nominations and Shareholder Proposals

Our Bylaws provide that with respect to an annual meeting of shareholders, nominations of persons for election to the Board and the proposal of business to be considered
by shareholders may be made only (1) pursuant to our notice of the meeting, (2) by or at the direction of the Board or (3) by a shareholder of the Company who is a
shareholder of record both at the time of giving of notice provided for in our Bylaws and at the time of the annual meeting, who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has
complied with the advance notice provisions of the Bylaws. With respect to special meetings of shareholders, only the business specified in our notice of the meeting may be
brought before the meeting. Nominations of persons for election to the Board at a special meeting may be made only (1) by or at the direction of the Board or (2) provided that
the Board has determined that directors will be elected at the meeting, by a shareholder of the Company who is a shareholder of record both at the time of giving of notice
provided for in our Bylaws and at the time of the special meeting, who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has complied with the advance notice provisions of the
Bylaws.

The purpose of requiring shareholders to give us advance notice of nominations and other business is to afford our Board a meaningful opportunity to consider the
qualifications of the proposed nominees and the advisability of any other proposed business and, to the extent deemed necessary or desirable by our Board, to inform
shareholders and make recommendations about such qualifications or business, as well as to provide a more orderly procedure for conducting meetings of shareholders.
Although our bylaws do not give our Board any power to disapprove shareholder nominations for the election of directors or proposals recommending certain action, they
may have the effect of precluding a contest for the election of directors or the consideration of shareholder proposals if proper procedures are not followed and of discouraging
or deterring a third party from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect its own slate of directors or to approve its own proposal without regard to whether consideration of
such nominees or proposals might be harmful or beneficial to us and our shareholders.
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Calling of Special Meetings of Shareholders

Our Bylaws provide that special meetings of shareholders may be called by our Board and certain of our officers. Additionally, our Bylaws provide that, subject to the
satisfaction of certain procedural and informational requirements by the shareholders requesting the meeting, a special meeting of shareholders will be called by the secretary
of the Company upon the written request of shareholders entitled to cast not less than a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.

Approval of Extraordinary Corporate Action; Amendment of Charter and Bylaws

Under Maryland law, a Maryland corporation generally cannot dissolve, amend its charter, merge, sell all or substantially all of its assets, engage in a share exchange or
engage in similar transactions outside the ordinary course of business, unless approved by the affirmative vote of shareholders entitled to cast at least two-thirds of the votes
entitled to be cast on the matter. However, a Maryland corporation may provide in its charter for approval of these matters by a lesser percentage, but not less than a majority
of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our Charter generally provides for approval of charter amendments and extraordinary transactions by the shareholders
entitled to cast at least a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our Charter also provides that certain charter amendments, any proposal for our conversion,
whether by charter amendment, merger or otherwise, from a closed-end company to an open-end company and any proposal for our liquidation or dissolution requires the
approval of the shareholders entitled to cast at least 75% of the votes entitled to be cast on such matter (provided, however, that in connection with subscribing to purchase
Shares prior to an Exchange Listing, each shareholder will grant an irrevocable proxy to our Board to vote their Shares in favor of liquidating or dissolving the Company if
the Company does not effectuate an Exchange Listing within 5 years of the Initial Closing, subject to up to two 1-year extensions in the discretion of the Board). However, if
such amendment or proposal is approved by a majority of our continuing directors (in addition to approval by our Board), such amendment or proposal may be approved by a
majority of the votes entitled to be cast on such a matter. The “continuing directors” are defined in our charter as (1) our current directors, (2) those directors whose
nomination for election by the shareholders or whose election by the directors to fill vacancies is approved by a majority of our current directors then on the Board or (3) any
successor directors whose nomination for election by the shareholders or whose election by the directors to fill vacancies is approved by a majority of continuing directors or
the successor continuing directors then in office.

Our Charter and Bylaws provide that the Board will have the exclusive power to make, alter, amend or repeal any provision of our Bylaws.
No Appraisal Rights

Except with respect to appraisal rights arising in connection with the Control Share Act discussed below, as permitted by the MGCL, our Charter provides that
shareholders will not be entitled to exercise appraisal rights unless a majority of the Board determines such rights apply.

Control Share Acquisitions

The MGCL provides that control shares of a Maryland corporation acquired in a control share acquisition have no voting rights except to the extent approved by a vote of
two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter (the “Control Share Act”). Shares owned by the acquirer, by officers or by directors who are employees of the
corporation are excluded from shares entitled to vote on the matter. Control shares are voting shares of stock which, if aggregated with all other shares of stock owned by the
acquirer or in respect of which the acquirer is able to exercise or direct the exercise of voting power (except solely by virtue of a revocable proxy), would entitle the acquirer
to exercise voting power in electing directors within one of the following ranges of voting power:

¢ one-tenth or more but less than one-
third;

*  one-third or more but less than a majority;
or
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* a majority or more of all voting
power.

The requisite shareholder approval must be obtained each time an acquirer crosses one of the thresholds of voting power set forth above. Control shares do not include
shares the acquiring person is then entitled to vote as a result of having previously obtained shareholder approval. A control share acquisition means the acquisition of control
shares, subject to certain exceptions.

A person who has made or proposes to make a control share acquisition may compel the Board of the corporation to call a special meeting of shareholders to be held
within 50 days of demand to consider the voting rights of the shares. The right to compel the calling of a special meeting is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
including an undertaking to pay the expenses of the meeting. If no request for a meeting is made, the corporation may itself present the question at any shareholders meeting.

If voting rights are not approved at the meeting or if the acquiring person does not deliver an acquiring person statement as required by the statute, then the corporation
may redeem for fair value any or all of the control shares, except those for which voting rights have previously been approved. The right of the corporation to redeem control
shares is subject to certain conditions and limitations, including, as provided in our bylaws compliance with the 1940 Act. Fair value is determined, without regard to the
absence of voting rights for the control shares, as of the date of the last control share acquisition by the acquirer or of any meeting of shareholders at which the voting rights of
the shares are considered and not approved. If voting rights for control shares are approved at a shareholders meeting and the acquirer becomes entitled to vote a majority of
the shares entitled to vote, all other shareholders may exercise appraisal rights. The fair value of the shares as determined for purposes of appraisal rights may not be less than
the highest price per share paid by the acquirer in the control share acquisition.

The Control Share Act does not apply (a) to shares acquired in a merger, consolidation or share exchange if the corporation is a party to the transaction or (b) to
acquisitions approved or exempted by the charter or bylaws of the corporation. Our Bylaws contain a provision exempting from the Control Share Act any and all acquisitions
by any person of our shares of stock. There can be no assurance that such provision will not be amended or eliminated at any time in the future. However, we will amend our
Bylaws to be subject to the Control Share Act only if the Board determines that it would be in our best interests and if the SEC staff does not object to our determination that
our being subject to the Control Share Act does not conflict with the 1940 Act.

Business Combinations

Under Maryland law, “business combinations” between a Maryland corporation and an interested shareholder or an affiliate of an interested shareholder are prohibited
for five years after the most recent date on which the interested shareholder becomes an interested shareholder (the “Business Combination Act”). These business
combinations include a merger, consolidation, share exchange or, in circumstances specified in the statute, an asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of equity securities.
An interested shareholder is defined as:

* any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the corporation’s outstanding voting stock;
or

« an affiliate or associate of the corporation who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the
voting power of the then-outstanding voting stock of the corporation.

A person is not an interested shareholder under this statute if the Board approved in advance the transaction by which the shareholder otherwise would have become an

interested shareholder. However, in approving a transaction, the Board may provide that its approval is subject to compliance, at or after the time of approval, with any terms
and conditions determined by the Board.
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After the five-year prohibition, any business combination between the Maryland corporation and an interested shareholder generally must be recommended by the Board
of the corporation and approved by the affirmative vote of at least:

*  80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of outstanding shares of voting stock of the corporation;
and

»  two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of voting stock of the corporation other than shares held by the interested shareholder with whom or with whose
affiliate the business combination is to be effected or held by an affiliate or associate of the interested shareholder.

These super-majority vote requirements do not apply if the corporation’s common shareholders receive a minimum price, as defined under Maryland law, for their shares
in the form of cash or other consideration in the same form as previously paid by the interested shareholder for its shares.

The statute permits various exemptions from its provisions, including business combinations that are exempted by the Board before the time that the interested
shareholder becomes an interested shareholder. We expect our Board to adopt a resolution that any business combination between us and any other person is exempted from
the provisions of the Business Combination Act, provided that the business combination is first approved by the Board, including a majority of the directors who are not
“interested persons” as defined in the 1940 Act. This resolution may be altered or repealed in whole or in part at any time; however, our Board will adopt resolutions so as to
make us subject to the provisions of the Business Combination Act only if the Board determines that it would be in our best interests and if the SEC staff does not object to our
determination that our being subject to the Business Combination Act does not conflict with the 1940 Act. If this resolution is repealed, or the Board does not otherwise
approve a business combination, the statute may discourage others from trying to acquire control of us and increase the difficulty of consummating any offer.

Conflict with 1940 Act

Our Bylaws provide that, if and to the extent that any provision of the MGCL, including the Control Share Act (if we amend our Bylaws to be subject to such Act) and the
Business Combination Act, or any provision of our Charter or Bylaws conflicts with any provision of the 1940 Act, the applicable provision of the 1940 Act will control.

Exclusive Forum

Our Charter and Bylaws provide that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive
forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Company, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director,
officer or other employee of the Company to the Company or the Company’s shareholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the MGCL,
the Charter or Bylaws or the securities, antifraud, unfair trade practices or similar laws of any international, national, state, provincial, territorial, local or other governmental
or regulatory authority, including, in each case, the applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or (iv) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal
affairs doctrine will be a federal or state court located in the state of Maryland, provided that to the extent the appropriate court located in the state of Maryland determines that
it does not have jurisdiction over such action, then the sole and exclusive forum will be any federal or state court located in the state of Maryland. Any person or entity
purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Company will be deemed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to have notice of and consented
to these exclusive forum provisions and to have irrevocably submitted to, and waived any objection to, the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in connection with any such
action or proceeding and consented to process being served in any such action or proceeding, without limitation, by United States mail addressed to the shareholder at the
shareholder’s address as it appears on the records of the Company, with postage thereon prepaid.
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Transfer and Resale Restrictions

Shares of the Company may not be directly or indirectly sold, transferred, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of
the Adviser, which consent may be given or withheld in the sole discretion of the Adviser. Any costs associated with a transfer by a shareholder may be borne by such
shareholder.

Furthermore, following any Exchange Listing, our shareholders will be subject to lock-up restrictions pursuant to which they will be prohibited from selling Shares for a
certain period after the date of the Exchange listing. The specific terms of this restriction and any other limitations on the sale of our Shares in connection with or following an
Exchange Listing will be agreed in advance between our board of directors and our Adviser, acting on behalf of our investors, and the underwriters of the Exchange Listing or
other similar institutions, acting on our behalf, in connection with a listing.

ITEM 12. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND
OFFICERS

Limitation on Liability of Directors; Indemnification and Advance of Expenses
See “Item 11. Description of Registrant’s Securities to be Registerec — Limitation on Liability of Directors and Olfficers; Indemnification and Advance of Expenses.”’

Advisory Agreements

Under the Advisory Agreements, the Advisers and their affiliates (each, an “Indemnitee”) are not liable to the Company for (i) mistakes of judgment or for action or
inaction that such person reasonably believed to be in the Company’s best interests absent such Indemnitee’s gross negligence, knowing and willful misconduct, or fraud or
(ii) losses or expenses due to mistakes of judgment, action or inaction, or the negligence, dishonesty or bad faith of any broker or other agent of the Company who is not an
affiliate of such Indemnitee, provided that such person was selected, engaged or retained without gross negligence, willful misconduct, or fraud.

The Company will indemnify each Indemnitee against any liabilities relating to the offering of its Shares or its business, operation, administration or termination, if the
Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner it believed to be in, or not opposed to, the Company’s interest and except to the extent arising out of the Indemnitee’s gross
negligence, fraud or knowing and willful misconduct. The Company may pay the expenses incurred by the Indemnitee in defending an actual or threatened civil or criminal
action in advance of the final disposition of such action, provided the Indemnitee agrees to repay those expenses if found by adjudication not to be entitled to indemnification.
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ITEM 13. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
DATA

Set forth below is an index to our financial statements attached to this Registration Statement.

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVEEN CHURCHILL BDC INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*
Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2019*
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2019*
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended December 31, 2019*
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2019*
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2019*

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements*

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*
Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2018*
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2018*
Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended December 31, 2018*
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018*
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2018*

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements*

*  To be filed by
amendment.

ITEM 14. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

There are not and have not been any disagreements between the Company and its accountant on any matter of accounting principles, practices, or financial statement
disclosure.

95



ITEM 15. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
EXHIBITS

(a) List separately all financial statements
filed

The financial statements attached to this Registration Statement are listed under “Item 13. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’

(b) Exhibits

3.1 Articles of Incorporation*

32 Articles of Amendment and Restatement**

33 Bylaws**

34 Certificate of Merger of Churchill Middle Market CLO V Ltd.**

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement**

4.2 Form of Stock Certificate®*

10.1 Investment Advisory Agreement between the Fund and the Adviser**

10.2 Sub-Advisory Agreement between the Adviser the Sub-Adviser**

10.3 Administration Agreement between the Fund and the Administrator®*

10.4 Custody Agreement between the Fund and U.S. Bank National Association**

10.5 Dividend Reinvestment Plan**

10.6 Expense Support Agreement between the Fund and the Adviser**

10.7 Transfer Agent Servicing Agreement between the Fund and U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC**
10.8 Agreement and Plan of Merger**

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and among Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc., as collateral manager, each of the borrowers from time to
time party thereto, each of the lenders from time to time party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and U.S. Bank
National Assocation as collateral agent**

109

21.1 List of Subsidiaries**
* Filed
herewith.

**  To be filed by
Amendment.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc.

By:

Name: Kenneth Kencel
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 23, 2019
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Exhibit 3.1

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
NUVEEN CHURCHILL BDC INC.

ARTICLE I
INCORPORATOR

The undersigned, John McCally, whose address is 8500 Andrew Carnegie Blvd., C2-08-04, Charlotte, North Carolina 28262, being at
least eighteen years of age, does hereby form a corporation under the laws of the State of Maryland.

ARTICLE 1I
CORPORATE TITLE

The name of the corporation is: Nuveen Churchill BDC Inc. (the “Corporation”).

ARTICLE III
BUSINESS PURPOSE

The purpose for which the Corporation is formed is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized
under the general laws of the State of Maryland as now or hereafter in force.

ARTICLE IV
RESIDENT AGENT AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE
The name of the resident agent of the Corporation in the State of Maryland is CSC-Lawyers Incorporating Service Company, whose

address is 7 St. Paul Street, Suite 820, Baltimore, Maryland 21202. The street address of the principal office of the Corporation in the State of
Maryland is ¢/o CSC-Lawyers Incorporating Service Company, 7 St. Paul Street, Suite 820, Baltimore, Maryland 21202.

ARTICLE V
SHARES

The Corporation has authority to issue 500,000,000 shares at $0.01 par value per share.



ARTICLE VI
DIRECTORS

The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed under the direction of the Board of Directors. The number of directors of
the Corporation initially shall be one, which number may be increased or decreased only by the Board of Directors pursuant to the Bylaws,
but shall never be less than the minimum number required by the Maryland General Corporation Law. The name of the director who shall
serve until the first meeting and until his successor is duly elected and qualified is:

Kenneth J. Kencel

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed these Articles of Incorporation and acknowledge the same to be my act on this 17t day of
June, 2019.

SIGNATURE OF INCORPORATOR:

/s/ John McCally
John McCally

Filing parties return address:
8500 Andrew Carnegie Blvd., C2-08-04,
Charlotte, North Carolina 28262

I hereby consent to my designation in this document as resident agent for this Corporation.

CSC-LAWYERS INCORPORATING SERVICE
COMPANY

/s/ Erin Richardson

Erin Richardson

Signature Page to Articles of Incorporation



